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PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants and Registered PIE Auditor

LEGAL ADVISOR TO THE COMPANY
DeHeng Law Offices (Hong Kong) LLP

REGISTERED OFFICE

P. 0. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road
Grand Cayman, KY1-1205
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Hong Kong

HEAD OFFICE, HEADQUARTERS AND
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN

THE PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF CHINA (THE “PRC")
5/F., Block Two

No. 27 Huailin Road

Huaide Village, Humen Town

Dongguan City, the PRC

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Hang Seng Bank Limited

83 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
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Hong Kong
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Hong Kong
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Hong Kong
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of the directors (the “Directors”)
of Speedy Global Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the audited consolidated results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group” or “Speedy Global”)
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

For the year 2023, the Group’s revenue decreased to approximately
HK$462.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately 17.7%
as compared to the year 2022, while loss for the year attributable
to equity holders decreased to approximately HK$5.0 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 85.5% as compared to the
year 2022.

Apparel Supply Chain Servicing Business

The apparel supply chain servicing business which offers a wide
range of woven wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear and sweater knitwear
products to a number of owners or agents of global reputable brands
(the “Apparel Supply Chain Servicing Business”) continued to be the
core business of the Group. For the year 2023, revenue under Apparel
Supply Chain Servicing Business was approximately HK$462.3 million
(2022: HK$561.8 million) and loss attributable to Apparel Supply
Chain Servicing Business was approximately HK$5.0 million (2022:
loss HK$34.5 million). Being in line with our strategy to focus on our
strengths in product design and development, as well as quality
control and production management, we design, develop and produce
men's and women's woven wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear and sweater
knitwear products to respond to constantly evolving consumer
preferences. A decrease in revenue for the year 2023 was mainly due
to decrease in sales from the existing customers.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to 2024, the Group will continue to pay close attention
to the development of the domestic and international epidemic and
changes in the markets to agilely respond and take appropriate
actions.

In order to explore for more new opportunities with the existing and
potential customers, the Group will enhance product innovation
and creativity continuously. For production management, the Group
will continue to enhance the operating efficiency by simplifying the
production processes which results in a shorter product delivery
time. In addition, the Group will work closely with our customers to
consolidate the fabrication in order to obtain better material prices
with mass volume which will enhance our cost competitiveness.
Moreover, we will try to simplify the Group’s organisation structure
with each operating process in order to save costs.

We are still closely monitoring the property market to determine the
appropriate investment strategy for the Group’s Property Investment
and Development Business. We will seek any appropriate property
investment and development project if we believe that it can magnify
the Group's shareholders’ return.

APPRECIATION

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to extend my
sincere gratitude to all fellow directors, management and our staff
for their unwavering dedication and contribution to our Group's
development. | would also like to thank all of our shareholders, for
their trust and continuous support over a challenging year 2023.

Speedy Global Holdings Limited
Huang Chih Shen
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

BE+-HA=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31

December
—E-=
2023
BHEBT
HK$ million
Wz Revenue 462.3 561.8 -17.7%
EF Gross profit 39.3 42.6 -7.7%
EFE Gross profit margin 8.5% 7.6%
NAEEZEA AR Loss for the year attributable to
FNEE equity holders of the Company (5.0) (34.5) -85.5%
AATEEZE A AL Netloss margin attributable to
FEEE equity holders of the Company -1.1% -6.1%
FRARFEZFEFA A Basic and diluted losses per share for
BB ERER loss attributable to equity holders
MEEEE of the Company for the year
(BB (HK$ per share) (0.0083) (0.0574)
R+=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—EZ=HF =
2023
BHEBTT
Financial Position HK$ million
mBNEEFE Net current assets 58.8 44.9 31.0%
BEBRHE Total assets 261.0 319.9 -18.4%
RITEE Bank borrowings 65.9 108.3 -39.2%
afEesE Total liabilities 191.4 244.4 21.7%
ZA/NEIE EES TS DN Equity attributable to equity holders of
FElG = the Company 69.5 75.4 -7.8%
R+t=—A=+—8
As at 31 December
—E-=F —EF-=
Financial Statistics 2023 2022
B & Current ratio’ 1.3 1.2
& EE O 2 Return on assets? -1.7% -9.1%
e EIE=S Return on equity? -6.8% -35.1%
B EL R Gearing ratio* F#EA n/a T#EA n/a
FERERS(R) Inventory turnover days (days)® 40 33
FEWER A A& (R )° Trade receivable turnover days (days)¢ 47 58
FEREREFAERE (/) Trade payable turnover days (days)’ 59 54

1. MBLERENRBEERRB AR 1.

2. BERMBESENARTEDTEAREFAERR
FHEELE  FRIA100%

3. BARBAENRARRAEEFAABRGEANBRRE 3.
TR AR BIRIA100%

4. BELETAENRITER WBENFEALEER 4
BERAS IR EEYRERRITERGE LR
I LA100%

5. FEREHEAERFATFHFEEHRRFEERA 5.
BRAZFREE

6. FEARER KA ¥ A BUR S N F AT RYBRS R ER 6.
FEEBR I BRAZEREGTE

7. RNEERAEABHESENFAFHRNESGEE 7.
PR BRAZFRERGTE

N

Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities

Return on assets = loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company/
average total assets x 100%

Return on equity = loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company/
average total equity x 100%

Gearing ratio = Bank borrowings, finance payables and lease liabilities net of cash
and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits/total equity x 100%

Inventory turnover days = average inventory balance/cost of sales for the year x
number of days for the year

Trade receivable turnover days = average trade and bills receivable/revenue for the
year x number of days for the year

Trade payable turnover days = average trade payable/cost of sales for the year x
number of days for the year
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BZ+-A=1+—-HILEE
Year ended 31 December

FEIT —T--fF —T-—F —T-TF
in HK$'000 2022 2021 2020
EF RESULTS
W zs Revenue 462,331 561,797 750,474 685,688 1,117,035
EF Gross profit 39,323 42,597 48,795 59,982 144,858
BrPT1S B A (Loss)/profit before income tax
(&18),/&F (5,323) (32,049) (38,302) (153,025) 33,810
Friskile,/ Income tax credit/(expense)
(A%) 373 (2,409) 7,028 4,176 (7,161)
ERN(EE)  (Loss)/profit for the year
gl (4,950) (34,458) (31,274) (148,849) 26,649
R+t=A=+-—H
At 31 December
FAET —E-— —E-—F —ZT-FF
in HK$'000 2022 2021 2020
BEERER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EEBE Total assets 260,961 319,857 437,268 497,153 700,330
BERHE Total liabilities 191,426 244,426 316,560 346,822 387,702
EEFE Net assets 69,535 75,431 120,708 150,331 312,628
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group focuses on providing one stop solution to our customers
by the provision of apparel supply chain services including product
design and development, fashion trend ascertaining and sampling,
raw material sourcing, production order and merchandise sourcing
management, quality control, packaging, inventory management and
logistics management.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

BE+t-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—EB-=F —E=-=

2023 2022

BEER BERBT

HK$ million HK$ million

& Revenue 462.3 561.8

EH Gross profit 39.3 42.6

RATIRERTFB ARG Loss for the year attributable to equity holders

FABE of the Company (5.0) (34.5)

RZZEEZ=ZF - WFERDP17.7% 2 4 In 2023, the revenue decreased by 17.7% to approximately HK$462.3

462, 300 OOO/E 7t (=% — — % : 561,800,000/

o) cAEERAEBRLEIEHRKEBRERR
B $H &R A P ER

FEFR 7. 7%% #939,300,0008 0 (ZE ==
& :42,600,0008 L) HEBZHRREEEREF
RISHERTER D EFEIEMELZSN (ZF
ZZF:7.6%) FEREAR_ZT_=FH
TEBHKAEIZ AEEEEEBNE SR
1% 4 1B B B K AN BT AV FE B ©

M =T = =4 H1$%15 E518 495,000,000/ 7T
(ZF = Z % :34,500,000% 7T) - B8R 2 £
E2HRBEMNBEMBARGERER ) B
M ZF - = F5S%E1E%91,000,0008 7T (=
T 4 - E51819,400,000/8 7T ) °

HEREHMAX

HERLHBE Y ETBERNR _S_—FEELH
HEEMEBNEEENEETIARAEH
X o5& &% 8 R 2 & £91,500,0007%8 7T
(ZFT = —4 :3,400,000 7T ) * T E2 A A
MEBBHBARKCEREBER N Z2==
2,000,0005 7T ) °

million (2022: HK$561.8 million). The decrease in the Group's revenue
was mainly due to decrease in sales from the existing customers.

Gross profit decreased by 7.7% to approximately HK$39.3 million (2022:
HK$42.6 million) mainly due to the decrease in sale orders from the
major customers. The gross profit margin increased to approximately
8.5% (2022: 7.6%), mainly attributable to the implementation of
effective cost control during the year 2023. The management of
the Group will continue to implement cost-saving measures where
appropriate.

During the year 2023, we recorded a loss of approximately HK$5.0
million (2022: HK$34.5 million). The decrease in loss was mainly
attributable to the downsizing of the scale of operation of our 10ss-
making subsidiary, which recorded a net loss of approximately HK$1.0
million for the year 2023 (2022: net 10ss of HK$19.4 million).

SELLING AND MARKETING EXPENSES

Selling and marketing expenses mainly represented employees’
wages for salesmen and commission expenses related to sales of
goods incurred during the year 2023. Selling and marketing expenses
decreased to approximately HK$1.5 million (2022: HK$3.4 million)
mainly due to the downsizing of the scale of operation of our loss-
making subsidiary (2022: HK$2.0 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ITEBAX

THRHEYXTEEEE FBELITHAEN
BRERAMAS EHMAX BAZEWERE
A MERLZAS TEREAIBLELY
40,300,000/ 7t ( = Z = — 4 : 54,700,000/%
L) EZRARNBIENHEB AR ELERE
R/ HRA ZF — = 4%15 491,700,000/ 7T
— T = 46,600,000/ 7T ) K (i)E B 48 7 53
Y B ZE = ZFH#926,200,0008 TR = =
T~ = FHI#716,100,0007 JT °

Hip s, (&1E) —F8

= F = = F A H Uk &5 % 58 49500,00078 T
(ZE =4 HfbE518/%$%584,300,000% 7T ) =
B 7 # [0 2 BT M ES 2 1 UK BR 3R 49600,000
VS TT - 8 T OF [ H 5 18 49200,0007 7T ©
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7,100,0005 7T ( —F = —£F : 6,300,000 7T) ©
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KRB ERBERMERBEATEFED
ENHEMAEAEREBELEMSEH - N =
T_=F FFHELRK400,0008 T (=F
Z 4 8B 522,400,000 7T ) ©

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses mainly represented the employee benefit
expenses for our management, finance and administrative personnel,
entertainment expenses, rental expenses for our office premises,
depreciation and travelling expenses. Administrative expenses
decreased to approximately HK$40.3 million (2022: HK$54.7 million)
mainly due to (i) the downsizing of the scale of operation of loss-
making subsidiary, which recorded approximately HK$1.7 million for
the year 2023 (2022: HK$6.6 million) and (ii) the decrease of employee
benefits expense from approximately HK$26.2 million for the year
2022 to approximately HK$16.1 million during the year 2023.

OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) - NET

Other gains — net of approximately HK$0.5 million during the year 2023
(2022: Other losses — net HK$4.3 million) mainly comprised write-back
of trade receivables previously written off of approximately HK$0.6
million offsetting the net foreign exchange losses of approximately
HK$0.2 million.

FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

Finance income increased by 226.5% to approximately HK$3.2 million
for the year 2023 (2022: HK$1.0 million) primarily due to the increase
in interest income as a result of the increase in short-term deposits.

Finance costs increased by 12.6% to approximately HK$7.1 million for
the year 2023 (2022: HK$6.3 million). Finance costs for the year 2023
mainly represented interest expense on bank borrowings. Increase
in the interest expense on bank borrowings was primarily due to
increase of interest rate during the year 2023.

INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE)

Income tax credit/(expense) mainly represented amounts of current
income tax paid or payable and the deferred income tax at the
applicable tax rates in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations in Hong Kong, the PRC and Cambodia. During the year
2023, income tax credit was approximately HK$0.4 million (2022:
income tax expense of HK$2.4 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Our property, plant and equipment decreased from approximately
HK$27.6 million as at 31 December 2022 to approximately HK$9.1
million as at 31 December 2023, which was mainly attributable to the
provision of impairment on a subsidiary in Cambodia of approximately
HK$9.9 million and depreciation of approximately HK$9.0 million. The
impairment was resulted from a decreased valuation, which stemmed
from deteriorating financial performance and rising operational costs,
in particular, wages, of such subsidiary.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

The right-of-use assets decreased from approximately HK$2.6 million
as at 31 December 2022 to approximately HK$0.2 million as at 31
December 2023. Such decrease was primarily due to the expiration of
a lease agreement for factory building in Cambodia in May 2023.

INVENTORIES

Inventories balance decreased from approximately HK$48.1 million
as at 31 December 2022 to approximately HK$43.3 million as at 31
December 2023 due to drop in sales during the year 2023 which
resulted in an increase in the inventory turnover days (2023: 40 days,
2022: 33 days).

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables decreased by HK$15.6 million to approximately
HK$51.6 million as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: HK$67.2
million) which is in line with the decrease in revenue during the year
2023.

We generally grant customers a credit period of 30 to 90 days and
they are generally required to settle their trade balances with us by
bank transfer or by cheque.

Our trade receivables turnover days for the year 2023 were 47 days
(2022: 58 days). The decrease in turnover days was because of faster
settlement from the customers during the year 2023.

PREPAYMENT

Prepayment increased by approximately HK$9.3 million to
approximately HK$16.3 million as at 31 December 2023 (31 December
2022: HK$7.0 million) mainly because increase in prepayment for
purchase of raw materials and subcontractors.
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TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables increase from HK$66.5 million as at 31 December 2022
to HK$69.5 million as at 31 December 2023 because more purchases
were made before current year end.

We generally enjoy a credit term of up to 90 days to settle payment.
Our trade payables turnover days for the year 2023 were 59 days
(2022: 54 days). The increase in turnover days was because of delay
payments to the suppliers during the year 2023.

BORROWINGS

The Group had bank borrowings as at 31 December 2023 in the sum
of approximately HK$65.9 million which are denominated in HKS. All
bank borrowings were made from banks in Hong Kong at floating
interest rates. As at 31 December 2023, approximately HK$60.6 million
was repayable within one year, approximately HK$0.6 million was
repayable between one to two years, approximately HK$2.0 million
was repayable between two to five years, approximately HK$2.7
million was repayable over five years and all subject to repayable
on demand clauses. No financial instruments were used for hedging
purposes, nor were there any foreign currency net investments
hedged by current borrowings and/or other hedging instruments.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year 2023, the Group maintained a healthy liquidity
position, with working capital financed by both internal resources
and bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2023, our short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately
HK$127.1 million, of which approximately HK$90.0 million denominated
in HKS, approximately HK$14.4 million in Renminbi, approximately
HK$21.8 million in USD and approximately HK$0.9 million in other
currencies. As at 31 December 2023, the current ratio of the Group
was 1.3 (31 December 2022: 1.2). The Group was in a strong net cash
position as at 31 December 2023. The Group has sufficient and readily
available finance resources for general working capital requirement
and foreseeable capital expenditure.

12 ARSI AR AT o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



S5V & DT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BE

AEEENTEHRHR LRBEEROVBE
R AMNEROBEREAEFRE2HOR
HESHN - AEETEFHETENEEN
%&%%#E‘Wihﬁﬁgﬂﬁ AEEHR
BESAR EFSRVNERAKENRDE
ﬁ%ﬁnﬁﬁﬁ%l%ﬁ%i%ﬁéﬁ%&h
mMEREEEHBEALE-

S BE R B

SMNERBRIRE ARAXR S CHAEERE
BEARRBINEBHIRE FE -

EHRPMERZPACHEREEXBBENER
WREE BN E B THER - SMNERBRBIESL -
BRUARBAXTERNEEENEE R

Al s EIMERR T ER G AINEFHEN S
B E - AR ERIB E TRTE R &) LR
SN LR

AEBETEBERE HEEFERYIIER
BRE AREETFERENEEFEMEE
EERER JARBETEREIINHREE
o

R-Z_=F AEEVEMNBENHBIA
NS R o

EXRGER

R-ZB-_=ZF ARANERNGBLBEMNE
REH) - ARBWEA BRI E BN AR -

BERAYE

RIBE-_=ZF+_A=+—H AEELET
MEXREAFAE(ZZE_ZF+=-A=+—
H:4)-

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the period under review. The Group strives
to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit
assessments and evaluations of the financial status of its customers.
To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the Group's
liquidity position to ensure that sufficient financial resources are
available in order to meet its funding requirements and commitment
timely.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations.

Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions
or recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency that
is not the entity’s functional currency. For group companies with
Renminbi or US dollars as their functional currency, foreign exchange
risk arises primarily from translation of amounts denominated in
foreign currencies. The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by
closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates.

The Group has investments in the PRC, whose net assets are exposed
to foreign currency translation risk. Currency exposure arising from
the net assets of the Group's investments in the PRC can be managed
through dividends paid outside the PRC.

During the year 2023, the Group did not commit to any financial
instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no material change in the capital structure of the
Company during the year 2023. The capital of the Company comprises
ordinary shares and other reserves.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any significant
capital commitments (31 December 2022: Nil).
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INFORMATION ON EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 1,096 employees,
including the executive Directors. Total staff costs (including
Directors’ emoluments) for the year ended 31 December 2023
were approximately HK$60.2 million, as compared to approximately
HK$64.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2022. Remuneration
is determined with reference to market norms as well as individual
employees’ performance, qualification and experience.

On top of basic salaries, bonuses may be paid with reference to the
Group's performance as well as individual’s performance. Other staff
benefits include contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme in Hong Kong and the provision of pension funds,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance and other relevant
insurance for employees who are employed by our Group pursuant
to the PRC and Cambodia rules and regulations and the prevailing
regulatory requirements.

The salaries and benefits of the Group’s employees are kept
at a competitive level and employees are rewarded on a
performance-related basis within the general framework of the
Group's salary and bonus system, which is reviewed annually. The
Group also operates a share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 26 May 2022 where options to subscribe for shares may be granted
to the Directors and employees of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

During the year 2023, the Group did not hold any significant
investment in equity interest in any other company.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have plan for material
investments and capital assets.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year 2023.

CHARGE OF ASSETS

There was no charge on the Group's assets as at 31 December 2023
(31 December 2022: Nil).
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On 27 December 2023, a subsidiary of the Company has received a
letter from the tax authority in Cambodia regarding its accounting
records. Under the Cambodian tax regulations, an entity has an
obligation to pay Income Tax at 20% of taxable profit or Minimum
Tax at 1% of total revenue exclusive of value added tax, whichever is
higher, if the entity is not qualified for the conditions for exemption
of Minimum Tax. The potential tax exposure (excluding penalty and
interest) of the Group is estimated to be approximately USD0.2 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$1.6 million).

The Group considers that the Cambodia tax authorities’ position is
unfounded and has challenged their assertion. It is not practical to
estimate the potential financial effect of the above assertion of the
tax authorities but the Group considers that it is not probable that a
material liability will arise if the Group can well defend its position with
the tax authorities. Therefore the Group has not recognised a provision
in relation to the above assertion of the tax authorities in these
consolidated financial statements.

NEW BUSINESS OPPORTUNITY

There was no New Business Opportunity (as defined in the Company’s
prospectus dated 31 December 2012 headed “Relationship with
Controlling Shareholders — New Business Opportunity”) referred by
the controlling shareholders of the Company as provided under the
non-competition undertaking.
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EXZCAENEEERELER - TRHEH  OurBoard is responsible and has general powers for the management

EFeRERAFELEEAFRBAEMNE  and conduct of the business. The following table sets forth information

#}: regarding members of the Board during the year and up to the date of
this annual report:

ZEHH

Appointment Date

BITES Executive Directors
\mEOREE Mr. Huang Chih Shen —E——FNAA=+NA

28 September 2011 53
EBREN T Ms. Huang Li Hun, Serlina —E-EF-A+UH

14 February 2020 55
BYHTES Independent

Non-executive Directors

ETHEE Mr. Wong Ting Kon —E—_—H+_-_A=-+mWmH

24 December 2012 53
i 2+ Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina —E-—#+-_A-+mWMA

24 December 2012 51
SR IR SR A Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence —E-—H+_-_A=-+mWmA

24 December 2012 76
PR M IE T+ Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny —E——E+-A=-+mA*

24 December 2012* 66
PR 18 IR 5T A Mr. Chan Tsang Mo —E-=F)N\A=+—H

31 August 2023 39

* RZEZ=F—A=+—HEE * Resigned on 31 January 2023
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CHAIRMAN, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER & EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Mr. Huang Chih Shen (E&R), aged 53, is the chairman, chief
executive officer and an executive Director of the Company, and one
of the founders of the Group. He was appointed as the Director with
effect from 28 September 2011. Mr. Huang is primarily responsible for
the overall management, operations and the charting and reviewing
of corporate directions and strategies of the Group. Mr. Huang has
approximately 27 years of experience in the business of the garment
industry. Prior to establishing the Group in 2003, he has been a
director of Shing Fun Knitting & Garment Limited, a related company,
since March 1994. Mr. Huang is one of the founders and has been
the director of Speedy Garment Manufacturing (Hong Kong) Company
Limited (“Speedy Garment”), an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, since its incorporation in 2004. Furthermore, he
has been the director of most of the Group's subsidiaries, including
Jointex Garment Manufacturing Limited ("Jointex Garment”),
Dongguan Speedy Garment Manufacturing Company Limited (“Speedy
Dongguan”), Pageant Enterprise (Hong Kong) Limited (“Pageant”) and
Well Faith Enterprise Limited (“Well Faith”). Mr. Huang was appointed
as a Honorary President of the Hong Kong Association of Youth
Development since November 2017. Mr. Huang was a director of
2010/2011 the 43rd, an advisor of 2011/2012 the 44th, 2012/2013 the
45th, 2013/2014 the 46th, 2014/2015 the 47th and 2015/2016 the 48th
of Yan Chai Hospital Board Office. Mr. Huang received his secondary
school education in Hong Kong until March 1986. As at 31 December
2023, Mr. Huang held 100% interest in Sky Halo Holdings Limited (“Sky
Halo"), our corporate Controlling Shareholder.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Huang Li Hun, Serlina (EE1), aged 55, is appointed as
our executive Director on 14 February 2020. She has over 26 years
of experience in the textile industry and the garment field in Hong
Kong, the PRC, Europe and the United States of America. Ms. Huang
graduated from the Lingnan University in Hong Kong in 1993 with a
Higher Diploma in Banking & Finance and subsequently obtained a
bachelor's degree in Business Administration in 1996. She joined Well
Faith, a subsidiary of the Company, in April 2016 and is currently the
managing director of Well Faith. She is responsible for managing Well
Faith’s business, including sales and marketing. Ms. Huang is the sister
of Mr. Huang Chih Shen, an executive Director and the controlling
shareholder of the Company. As at 31 December 2023, Ms. Huang held
approximately 0.02% interest in the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Ting Kon (EE#), aged 53, is an independent
non-executive Director. He joined the Group on 24 December 2012
when he was appointed as an independent non-executive Director. He
holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from University of Windsor,
Canada. Mr. Wong is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Wong is currently a partner of Chan Wong & Company C.PA.
Mr. Wong has been serving as an independent non-executive director
of Bortex Global Limited (stock code: 08118) from October 2017 to
March 2022.

Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina (Z# M), aged 51, is an
independent non-executive Director. She joined the Group on
24 December 2012 when she was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director. She obtained a bachelor degree in Laws from
City University of Hong Kong in 1995 and a master degree of Laws in
International & Commercial Law from University of Sheffield in 1996.
Ms. Pang was admitted as a solicitor in 1999 and is currently a solicitor
and work in private practice.
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Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence (&%), aged 76, is
an independent non-executive Director. He joined the Group on
24 December 2012 when he was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director. Mr. Chang obtained a bachelor’s degree in
arts from the University of Hong Kong in November 1970, a diploma
in education from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in December
1976 and a master’'s degree in education from Harvard University in
June 1981. Mr. Chang was the principal of Jockey Club Ti-I College
from January 1989 to August 2000. Mr. Chang was the headmaster
of Diocesan Boys' School from September 2000 to August 2012.
Mr. Chang has been serving as an independent non-executive director
of Dragon King Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 08493) from
January 2018 to April 2021. Mr. Chang is also at present a freelance
writer for SingTao Newspaper.

Mr. Chan Tsang Mo (BRI 54 ) , aged 39, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in August 2023. Mr. Chan has over
16 years of finance, accounting and treasury experience. Mr. Chan
assumed various positions in professional accounting and financial
firms from 2006 to 2016. Since October 2017, he has been the director
of Morton Professional Services Limited and is responsible for advising
on company formation, business establishments and legal compliance
related matters. Mr. Chan has been admitted as a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in January 2010 and is
currently a practicing member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Chan graduated from the City University of
Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Business Administration degree in
Accountancy in November 2006.
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From February 2019 to May 2020, Mr. Chan was an independent non-
executive director of Hong Kong Finance Investment Holding Group
Limited (currently known as Wisdom Wealth Resources Investment
Holding Group Limited) (stock code: 7), a company whose issued
shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
From September 2022 to July 2023, Mr. Chan was an independent
nonexecutive director of Hong Wei (Asia) Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 8191), a company whose issued shares are listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan was the company secretary
and authorised representative of Optima Automobile Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8418) and Century Energy International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8132), both companies whose issued shares
are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, from October 2019 to
September 2021 and from April 2020 to August 2021, respectively.
Mr. Chan was the company secretary and authorised representative
of HG Semiconductor Limited (stock code: 6908) from May 2023 to
June 2023, a company whose issued shares were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Since January 2019, Mr. Chan has been
an independent non-executive director of Geotech Holdings Ltd.
(stock code: 1707), a company whose issued shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Since April 2023, Mr. Chan has
been an independent non-executive director of Sing Lee Software
(Group) Limited (stock code: 8076), a company whose issued shares
are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan has also been
the company secretary and authorised representative of China
International Development Corporation Limited (stock code: 264) and
Yues International Holdings Group Limited (stock code: 1529), both
companies whose issued shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, since February 2018 and June 2022, respectively.
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From March 2020 to October 2020, Mr. Chan was an independent non-
executive director of Rentian Technology Holdings Limited (‘Rentian”)
(former stock code: 885), a company whose issued shares were listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange before cancellation of its
listing on 30 May 2022. A winding up order pursuant to the Companies
(Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Chapter 32 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Winding Up Order”) was made by the
High Court of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region against Rentian
on 21 October 2020. The Winding Up Order was made upon a winding
up petition received on 19 March 2020 in respect of certain alleged
indebtedness owed to certain individual bondholders amounting to
approximately HK$195 million. The official receiver was appointed as
the provisional liquidator of Rentian on 21 October 2020. Please refer
to the announcement issued by Rentian dated 21 October 2020 for
further information in relation to the winding up proceedings. Rentian
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and,
together with its subsidiaries, were principally engaged in the business
of provision of integrated smart internet-of-things solutions to
enterprise customers, human machine interactive devices, intelligent
documentation services, security investment and money lending in
Hong Kong and China prior to the cancellation of its listing. According
to Mr. Chan, he is not a party to such winding up proceedings and is
not aware of any current or potential claim that has been or will be
made against him as a result of such proceedings. Mr. Chan tendered
his resignation letter as an independent non-executive director to
Rentian on 22 October 2020.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yu Ka Gung (REB) , aged 37, the company secretary and the
chief financial officer of the Company, is in charge of planning and
management of accounting, finance related matters and corporate
reporting of the Group. Mr. Yu joined the Group in October 2017 as
the financial controller of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Yu had worked as financial controller in a listed
company in Hong Kong. He has more than 10 years of experience
working in accounting, financial management and auditing. Mr. Yu
obtained a bachelor's degree in Accounting from Edinburgh Napier
University and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Adapting and adhering to recognised standards of corporate
governance principles and practices has always been one of the top
priorities of the Company. The Board believes that good corporate
governance is one of the key areas that lead to the success of the
Company and in balancing the interests of shareholders, customers
and employees, and the Board is devoted to ongoing enhancements
of the efficiency and effectiveness of such principles and practices.

During the year 2023, the Company had complied with the code
provisions (the “Code Provisions”) set out in the Corporate Governance
Code contained in Part 2 of Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), except
for the following deviation:

)

Code Provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The roles of the
chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company are
not separate and both are performed by Mr. Huang Chih Shen.
Since the Directors meet regularly to consider major matters
affecting the operations of the Company, the Directors consider
that this structure will not impair the balance of power and
authority between the Directors and the management of
the Company and believe that this structure will enable the
Company to make and implement decisions promptly and
efficiently. The Company understands the importance to comply
with the Code Provision C.2.1 and will continue to consider the
feasibility of appointing a separate chief executive officer.

Code Provision B.2.4(b) stipulates that where all the
independent non-executive directors of an issuer have served
more than nine years on the board, the issuer should appoint
a new independent non-executive director on the board at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. Since all the then
independent non-executive Directors have served for more
than nine years, the Company endeavoured to identify suitable
candidate as a new independent non-executive director after
the termination of the then possible transaction in relation to
the possible sale of approximately 67.09% of the then entire
issued share capital of the Company on 16 June 2023. Given
the short period of time, the Company was unable to identify
and appoint a suitable candidate at the annual general meeting
in June 2023. The Company recognises the importance to
comply with the Code Provision B.2.4(b) and appointed Mr.
Chan Tsang Mo as the new independent non-executive Director
on 31 August 2023.
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CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for
securities transactions. All Directors confirmed that, after specific
enquiries were made by the Company, they have complied with the
required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code throughout
the period from 1 January 2023 to the date of the Board meeting
approving the annual results announcement for the year 2023.

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by relevant employees on terms no less exacting than
the required standard set out in the Model Code. All the relevant
employees who, because of their office or employment, are likely to
be in possession of inside information in relation to the Company’s
securities has been requested to follow such code when dealing in
the securities of the Company.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board currently comprises six Directors, of which two are
executive Directors, and four are independent non-executive Directors.
The composition of the Board and the biographical details of each
Director are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile” on pages 16 to 21 of this annual report.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Board discusses the overall strategy as well as the operational
and financial performance of the Company. Other Board meetings
will be held when necessary. Such Board meetings involve the active
participation, either in person or through other electronic means of
communication, of a majority of Directors. The table below sets out
the attendance of all members of the Board at the meetings held
during the year 2023:

BEEHEZR
Directors’

Attendance
Exages
Board Meeting

BITES: Executive Directors:
BERIE (EEFITHAEE) Mr. Huang Chih Shen (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) 5/5
mEER T Ms. Huang Li Hun, Serlina 5/5
BYFHTES: Independent Non Executive Directors:
BEEBLE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 5/5
B0k Eegn Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 5/5
RIS A Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 5/5
BRIRWEL (RZFZ=4 Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny (Resigned on 31 January 2023)

—A=+—HEFHF) 11
BRISR LA (RZFZ=4F Mr. Chan Tsang Mo (Appointed on 31 August 2023)

NA=+—HZFE) ~/-
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There are currently four independent non-executive Directors who
represent over one half of the Board and Mr. Wong Ting Kon has the
appropriate professional qualifications as required by the Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.

Appropriate notices are given to all Directors in advance for attending
regular and other Board meetings. Meeting agendas and other
relevant information are provided to the Directors in advance of Board
meetings. All Directors are consulted to include additional matters in
the agenda for Board meetings.
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Directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary with a view to ensuring that Board procedures, and all
applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

Both draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all Directors
for their comment and records. Minutes of Board meetings are kept by
the company secretary and such minutes are open for inspection at
any reasonable time on reasonable prior notice by any Director.

GENERAL MEETING

All Directors attended the annual general meeting of the Company on
30 June 2023.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and managing the
Company's affairs, including the responsibilities for the adoption
of long term strategies and appointing and supervising senior
management to ensure that the operation of the Group is conducted
in accordance with the objective of the Group. The Board is also
responsible for determining the Company's corporate governance
policies which include: (i) development and review of the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance; (i) review and
monitoring of the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management; (iii) review and monitor the
issuer’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (iv) develop, review and monitoring of the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and (v) review of the Company'’s disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding
and monitoring the Company in discharging its duties, certain
responsibilities are delegated to various Board committees which
have been established by the Board to deal with different aspects of
the Company'’s affairs. Unless otherwise specified in their respective
written terms of reference as approved by the Board, these Board
committees are governed by the Company's articles of association
as well as the Board’s policies and practices (in so far as the same
are not in conflict with the provisions contained in the articles of
association). With the new composition of members of the nomination
committee, remuneration committee, audit committee and conflicts
committee, the independent non-executive Directors will be able to
effectively devote their time to perform the duties required by the
respective Board committees.
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The Board has also delegated the responsibility of implementing
its strategies and the day-to-day operation to the management of
the Company under the leadership of the executive Directors. Clear
guidance has been made as to the matters that should be reserved to
the Board for its decision which include matters on, inter alia, capital,
finance and financial reporting, internal controls, communication
with shareholders, Board membership, delegation of authority and
corporate governance.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group. The financial statements set out on pages 87 to
180 were prepared on the basis set out in Note 2.1 to the financial
statements. Financial results of the Group are announced in a timely
manner in accordance with statutory and/or regulatory requirements.
The declaration of reporting responsibility issued by the external
auditors of the Company on the Company’s financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 77 to 86 of this
annual report.

Throughout the year 2023, the Company complied with Rules 3.10(1),
(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. Except as disclosed in the section
“Directors and Senior Management Profile” above, there is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship among
members of the Board.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent in accordance with the guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each Director upon their respective appointment received relevant
guideline materials and attends a training regarding the duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant laws and regulations
applicable to the Directors, duty of disclosure of interest of the Group.
Continuing briefings and professional development to Directors will be
arranged whenever necessary.

During the year 2023, the Directors have attended external training
and/or seminars and have read materials covering topics such as
business and performance of the Company and accounting issues.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

All independent non-executive Directors have entered into letters of
appointment with the Company for a specific term of three years,
subject to re-election.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, at each
annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation. However, if the number of Directors
is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one third shall be the retiring Directors. The Directors who shall retire
in each year will be those who have been the longest in the office
since their last re-election or appointment, but as for persons who
became or were last re-elected as Directors on the same day, those
who should retire will (unless they otherwise agree among themselves)
be determined by lot. Such retiring Directors may, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting. All Directors
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until
the first general meeting of shareholders after their appointment and
be subject to re-election at such meeting and all Directors appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee on 24 December
2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with Code
Provisions B.3.1. Its terms of reference are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the nomination committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular basis; to
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members; to
assess the independence of the independent non-executive Directors;
and to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors. The
nomination committee comprises four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence (Chairman),
Mr. Wong Ting Kon, Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina and Mr. Chan Tsang
Mo.
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During the year 2023, one meeting of the homination committee was
held and the attendance records of individual committee members are
as follows:

HE
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Number of
Meetings
Attended/Held

SRS A Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 11
EERLE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 11
EZG5] EeGan Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 11
PRISH A (RZFZ=4 Mr. Chan Tsang Mo

NA=+—HZF) (Appointed on 31 August 2023) /-
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Nomination Procedure

When identifying suitable candidates for directorship, the nomination
committee will carry out the selection process by making reference
to the skills, experience, education background, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, and also the Company’s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations required for the positions.
All candidates must be able to meet the standards as set forth in
Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be
appointed as an independent non-executive Director should also meet
the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Qualified candidates will then be recommended to the Board for
approval.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy in September
2013 and amended the policy in December 2018. Pursuant to the
board diversity policy, the nomination committee will carry out
the selection process by making reference to a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
background and ethnicity, in addition to educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. If it
involves the appointment of an independent non-executive director
of the Board, the Nomination Committee shall also consider the
perspectives, skills and experience that the person can bring to the
Board, and how the person would contribute to the diversity of the
Board. The Company shall take into account its own business model
and specific needs, and disclose the rationale for the factors it uses
for this purpose. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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The following is a chart showing the diversity profile of the Board as at
the date of this annual report:

Chinese
EIN

Ethnicity Age Group Directorship with
i3 FHraR| the Company
(Number of years)
BEARQR]
BE (F5H)

For the purpose of implementation of the board diversity policy, the
following measurable objectives were adopted and achieved:

(1) at least one third of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive directors;

(2) at least one of the members of the Board shall have obtained
accounting or other professional qualifications;

(3) atleast 40% of the members of the Board shall have more than
20 years of experience in the garment industry and shall have
China-related work experience;

(4) at least one of the members of the Board shall have property
investment and development experience; and

(5) at least one director of a different gender to the Board.

WORKFORCE DIVERSITY

The Company also considers relevant factors in the recruitment and
selection of key management and other personnel, and strives to
maintain gender diversity. As at 31 December 2023, the male and
female of all staff (including the senior management) of the Company
accounted 31.3% and 68.7% respectively. The Company will continue
to maintain gender diversity among all its staff as the goal and review
its policies on employee recruitment and management in a timely
manner in accordance with the Company'’s business development and
needs.

R o ANNUAL REPORT 2023 29



FFRBIBWS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

FMEES

ARBIR_E——F+_A-+WWHKILH
MZ &g WRME - BRI 2E3.25%3.26{4% I
FEEARERE -FTHMEZE e EMBES
B Ty 15 ST RMESCEN.2F LAER 4% - 1ERE B i &0
B A AR E R ATRUEEIE -

FHZEe T ERERRENEBEETLA
SESREREZERBTMBRRLREAEAE
ZeRMEERER URFRUEEZESHEER
AEFM - RTEEZMENRRFEST IR
BB EARALEM BESELAE
BRETE - MEEBARRZRAMRITHMR -
BYFRITEFTZHMERE ERERKREM
ARBEBHEMB I RER (BRE2ERE
ERRER)EGRAIDB-BUIFNTES
ZHEhREE R K ME BAER
MIZBLETE -HNEZ B Eh U BLIFRNT
BEEER DR AZHEMLL (XF) "TEH
A RNEREMBRIBR A -

EEMEFBRENIHIRAMESS -

R-FB-_=F HMEZESLHRIT - REH"
A(ERBRE)FERATEEZRR FHHR
TEERBENZBETAREHRMEES
EARBSREEBZHFMIR SZEEX
Bz HFrRsgmT:

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee on 24 December
2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.25
and 3.26 of the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the
remuneration committee was adopted in compliance with Code
Provisions E.1.2. Its terms of reference are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the overall remuneration policy
and structure relating to all Directors and senior management of
the Group and to ensure none of the Directors determine their own
remuneration. The emoluments of executive Directors are determined
based on the skills, knowledge, individual performance as well as
contributions, the scope of responsibility and accountability of such
Directors, taking into consideration the Company’s performance
and prevailing market conditions. The remuneration policy of
independent non-executive Directors is to ensure that they are
adequately compensated for their efforts and time dedicated to the
Company's affairs including their participation in respective Board
committees. The emoluments of independent non-executive Directors
are determined with reference to their skills, experience, knowledge,
duties and market trends. The remuneration committee consists of
four independent non-executive Directors namely Ms. Pang Yuen Shan,
Christina (Chairlady), Mr. Wong Ting Kon, Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung,
Terence and Mr. Chan Tsang Mo.

Details of remuneration of Directors are set out in Note 35 to the
financial statements.

During the year 2023, one meeting of the remuneration committee
was held to, amongst others, assess performance of executive
directors, approve terms of the executive directors’ service contracts,
and review and approve the remuneration packages of the Directors
and senior management of the Company. The attendance records of
individual committee members are as follows:

HE
ETEERE

Number of
Meetings
Attended/Held

EZ08] Ee G Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 11
EE#HELE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 11
SRIVEE SR A4 Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 11
PRIEREE (RZF-=4F Mr. Chan Tsang Mo

NA=+—HZMHE) (Appointed on 31 August 2023) —/-
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 24 December 2012
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 and Rule
3.22 of the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the audit
committee was adopted in compliance with Code Provisions D.3.3
to D.3.7. Its terms of reference are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the audit committee, among other things,
are to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditors, review the financial
statements and provide material advice in respect of financial
reporting, and oversee risk management and internal control
procedures of the Company at least annually. The audit committee
consists of four independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Wwong Ting Kon (Chairman), Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina, Mr. Chang
Cheuk Cheung, Terence and Mr. Chan Tsang Mo.

The audit committee reports to the Board and has held
regular meetings since its establishment to review and make
recommendations to improve the Group’s financial reporting process
and internal controls.

During the year 2023, two audit committee meetings were held to
review and discuss with the management of the Company and the
external auditors the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, as well as internal controls and other financial reporting
matters. The attendance records of individual committee members are
set out below:

HE
ETERRE

Number of
Meetings
Attended/Held

EEBRLE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 2/2
EZ08] Ee G Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 2/2
SR M S A Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 2/2
BRIERE4E (R-ZF—=4F Mr. Chan Tsang Mo

NA=+—HZF) (Appointed on 31 August 2023) —/-

RoF-=F SHERABEZARBIE
FE - BHERR RN BN S B TR R

o

During the year 2023, the Board has not taken a different view from
the audit committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditors.
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CONFLICTS COMMITTEE

The Company established a conflicts committee on 24 December
2012. The primary duties of the conflicts committee are to monitor
and identify actual or potential issues of conflict of interests among
the Company’s Controlling Shareholders, and to ensure that the
Controlling Shareholders involving such conflicting interests would
take appropriate precautions and abstain from making decisions in
connection with such issues. The conflicts committee consists of four
independent non-executive Directors and one independent external
expert, Mr. Yip Yam Kuen.

During the year 2023, one meeting of the conflicts committee
were held to, amongst others, review the deed of non-competition
undertakings in respect of the Controlling Shareholders entered into
on 24 December 2012 to ensure ongoing compliance with the same
by the Controlling Shareholders. The attendance records of individual
committee members are as follows:

HE
HITERNRE

Number of
Meetings
Attended/Held

Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny (Resigned on 31 January 2023)

—A=+—HET) —/-
BEEBLE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 11
T+ Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 11
SRS A Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 1/1
PRISE LA (RZFZ=4F Mr. Chan Tsang Mo

NA=+—HZAME) (Appointed on 31 August 2023) —/-
HERELE Mr. Yip Yam Kuen 11

RE R & AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

BE T =F+_A=1T—HILFEHRE
ROk B & 5 BN S5 AT AT AR S AR AR TS S A
ZERMT:

The fees in respect of audit services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers for the year ended 31 December 2023 are
set out as follows:

et ENEA
Fee paid/

payable
(F#&T)
(HK$'000)

KEEEZRD Audit services for the Group 1,500
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yu Ka Gung, being our company secretary, is primarily responsible
for the company secretarial work of the Group. Mr. Yu Ka Gung is also
the Company’s chief financial officer. The Company confirms that
Mr. Yu Ka Gung, for the year of 2023, attended no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems in order to safeguard the interests of the shareholders
and the assets of the Company against unauthorised use or
disposition, ensuring maintenance of proper books and records for the
provision of reliable financial information, and ensuring compliance
with the relevant rules and regulations. The Board is also responsible
for overseeing the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis, and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
established systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Group adopts a complete process style of risk management in a
functional bottom up manner, including risk identification, assessment,
evaluation and treatment. The functional areas across the Group
provide input of risks with treatments, which are appraised and
maintained. The risk management system, as well as the internal
control system, are continuous, proactive and systematic processes.

With the implementation of internal audit function, the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems is reviewed by
conducting internal audit assignments. Recommendations for major
observations of control weaknesses from the audits will be provided,
S0 as to resolve material internal control defects.
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The Audit Committee, which was delegated by the Board, has
conducted annual review, via an appointed Certified Public Accountant
firm to perform internal audit function, on the effectiveness of
the Group's risk management and internal control system put in
place by management covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls of the Company and
its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2023. The Audit
Committee considered that the risk management and internal control
system of the Group are effective and adequate.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The following procedures for shareholders of the Company to convene
an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM") of the Company are
prepared in accordance with the Articles of Association as follows:

(1) Two or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company;, shall have the right, by written notice, to require
an EGM to be called by the Directors of the Company for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

(2)  Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company at the following:

Principal office of the Company in Hong Kong

Address:  Unit 501, 5/F, Stelux House
698 Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon
Hong Kong

Email: info@speedy-global.com

(3) If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board does not proceed
duly to convene the meeting to be held within a further 21 days,
the requisitionists themselves or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them may do
so in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings may be convened by the Board, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.
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For matters in relation to the Board, the shareholders can contact the
Company at the following:

Address:  Unit 501, 5/F, Stelux House
698 Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

Email: info@speedy-global.com

Tel: (852) 3583 1111

Fax: (852) 3583 1118

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company, a
shareholder should lodge a written notice of his or her proposal
(“Proposal”) with his or her detailed contact information at the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the Board will be asked to include the Proposal in the
agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for consideration
of the Proposal raised by the shareholder concerned at the general
meeting varies according to the nature of the Proposal as follows:

(1) At least 14 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal requires
approval by way of ordinary resolution of the Company.

(2) At least 21 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal requires
approval by way of a special resolution of the Company in an
EGM of the Company or an ordinary resolution of the Company
in an annual general meeting of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of good communications with
all shareholders. The Company believes that maintaining a high level
of transparency is a key to enhance investor relations. The Company
is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of corporate
information to its shareholders and public investors.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its corporate
publications including annual reports and public announcements.
Extensive information about the Company’s activities for the year
ended 31 December 2023 has been provided in this annual report.
While the AGM provides a valuable forum that facilitates direct
communications between the Board and its shareholders, the
Company also maintains its website www.speedy-global.com to
provide an alternative communication channel for the public and
its shareholders. All corporate communication and Company'’s
latest updates are available on the Company’s website for public’s
information.

On 30 June 2023, certain amendments was made to the existing
amended and restated memorandum and articles of association of
the Company (the "Amended M&A") by way of adoption of the second
amended and restated memorandum and articles of association (the
“Second Amended M&A") in substitution for and to the exclusion
of the Amended M&A, for the purposes of, among other things, (i)
bringing the M&A in alignment with the Core Shareholder Protection
Standards set out in Appendix A1 of the Listing Rules; (i) allowing
general meetings to be held as electronic meetings (also referred
to as virtual general meetings) or as hybrid meetings where the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) may participate by
electronic means or by attending the meetings physically; (i) making
house-keeping amendments to the Second Amended M&A to clarify
the existing practices of the Company and to reflect certain updates in
relation to the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands (including under
the Companies Act (As Revised) of the Cayman Islands) and Listing
Rules; and (iv) making consequential amendments in line with the
Proposed Amendments.

Save as disclosed above, there has been no significant change in the
Company'’s constitutional documents during the year 2023.

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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ABOUT SPEEDY GLOBAL

Speedy Global Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “group” or “Speedy
Global”), a leading supply chain service provider, is actively
involved in various sectors of the apparel industry in 2023.
Our comprehensive services cover a wide spectrum, including
product design and development, fashion trend analysis
and sampling, raw material sourcing, production order and
merchandise sourcing management, quality control, packaging,
inventory management, and logistics management.

Within our apparel supply chain servicing segment, we specialize
in providing end-to-end solutions for the production of an
extensive range of men’'s and women’s woven wear, cut-and-
sewn knitwear, and sweater knitwear products. Our services
cater to owners or agents of globally recognized and reputable
apparel retail brands. With our strong industry expertise and
network, we ensure the sourcing and delivery of high-quality
products to our clients across continents.

The Group appointed Allied Sustainability and Environmental
Consultants Group Limited (stock code: 8320) as an independent
consultant to prepare the Environmental, Social, and Governance
Report, the “Report” and to conduct materiality assessment on
the Group's sustainable development.

ABOUT THE REPORT

2.1. Introduction
This is the eighth ESG Report published by the Group.
with a vision of “Weaving a Value-added Garment Supply
Chain”, the Group would like to share its efforts in retaining
competitiveness in the garment market, preserving a close-
knit team and community and moving toward sustainability
in this Report.
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2.2,

2.3.

Reporting Standards

The Report was prepared in accordance with the ESG
Reporting Guide set out in the Appendix C2 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). In preparation of the Report, the Group strictly
adhered to the principles of Materiality, Quantitative,
Balance and Consistency to disclose the ESG-related
measures and performances.

The corporate governance of the Group was prepared in
accordance with all applicable code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code under Appendix C1 of the
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. Information regarding
the Group's corporate governance was set out separately
in the “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

Reporting Scope

The Report summarised the ESG performances of the
Group during the 2023 financial year from 1 January 2023
to 31 December 2023 (the “Reporting Period”).

The Report covered the operations of the apparel supply
chain services. The reporting scope included the following
major business units of the Group:

° Speedy Garment Manufacturing (Hong Kong)
Company Limited,

° Jointex Garment Manufactory Limited,;

° Dongguan Speedy Garment Manufacturing Company
Limited;

° Koyip Garment (Dongguan) Manufactory Limited,

° Pageant Enterprise (Hong Kong) Limited;

° Well Faith Enterprise Limited; and

° Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited

Part of the Group’s manufacturing process was outsourced

to independent contractors; therefore, the relevant
disclosure was excluded from the Report.
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2.4,

2.5.

The Group’s businesses in apparel retail and property
investment were also excluded from the Report as no
transaction was recorded during the Reporting Period.
Likewise, the Report excluded the Group's remaining
subsidiaries because of the insignificant level of impact of
their operations on the Group’s environmental and social
aspects. However, the Group shall consider any ESG-related
impacts due to any major future change in the business
scope of these subsidiaries.

Board of Director’s Statement on ESG Governance

The Board believes that sustainable development is the key
to successful development of companies in the long term.
The Group is committed to incorporating environmental,
social and governance considerations into its business
operations, and pledges to improve the sustainability
performances through resources optimisation in the
operation. As the highest governance body, the Board is
responsible for the overall direction and decision making
related to ESG governance, and assigned top management
to coordinate the implementation of ESG initiatives and
reporting. In accordance with the material ESG-related
topics identified through stakeholder engagement surveys,
the Group’s ESG performance, progress, opportunities and
risks are regularly reviewed and discussed by the Board.

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality
Assessment

The Group recognizes the value of stakeholders’ viewpoints
in shaping its long-term business growth. To foster active
engagement with stakeholders, the Group is committed
to establishing effective communication channels and
gathering their feedback.

To facilitate this process, the Group enlisted the help of an
external consultant to conduct an anonymous quantitative
online survey with both internal and external stakeholders.
The results of the survey were thoroughly analyzed by the
Group, leading to the creation of a materiality ranking.
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E3 &
Topics Rank
R&ES 1
Anti-corruption

BritZET Rkogs|ss T 2
Prevention of child labour and forced labour

RiERFILE 3
Protecting customer privacy

ERERRS 4
Employment management system

EmZrRhREEER 5
Product safety and quality management

ZRHERNTIERE 6
A safe and healthy working environment

BIREME B IR 7
Resources and material management

EmERE 8
Product responsibility

IREE AHERE 9
Protecting intellectual property rights

Zit FEEE RERIESR 10
Diversity, equal opportunity and eliminating discrimination

BE MR 11
Employer-employee relations

NERBELLEH 12
Fair and responsible marketing

RAKER 13
Water management

JaKE R 14
Wastewater management

HIlRER 15
Training and development

BEREE (BREHTHEREE HORRREREREE) 16

Energy management (including energy target set, energy saving and
energy efficiency improvement)

BEEYER (BREEEY) 17
Waste management (Non-hazardous waste)

Bzt = 18
Caring for the community

HEREER 19
Supply chain management

BERERE (REEREMETEER SEEERERE) 20

Energy management (including management and monitoring of direct and/or
indirect energy consumption)

FE ¥ RIRE b 21
Responding to climate change

RERERERYRER 22
Greenhouse gas and air emissions management

EREEHRBERRAAREREKNTE 23
Managing the impact of operations on the environment and natural resources

BENER (BEREED) 24

Waste management (Hazardous waste)
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2.6.

Through conducting a materiality assessment, the Group
gained a deep understanding of stakeholders’ perspectives
and insights. The Board will consider the identified material
issues when formulating the Group’s ESG approaches and
measures. The Group is committed to ongoing review of
these material issues and providing transparent reporting
on its ESG performance.

Contact Information

For any comments or recommendations on the Report,
please contact the Group through the contacts details set
out below:

BE Unit 501, 5/F, Stelux House
NEF B 698 Prince Edward Road East
K F BRI San Po Kong, Kowloon

B EEDLSESE

&5 1 (852) 3583 1111
{E& : (852) 3583 1118
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Hong Kong

Tel:  (852) 3583 1111
Fax: (852) 3583 1118

GARMENT MARKET COMPETITIVENESS

3.1.

Product Development

The Group's primary goal was to establish its brand as
a leader in the garment apparel industry through the
provision of superior services and high-quality products. To
achieve this objective, the Group has remained committed
to maintaining its standards, ensuring the delivery of
premium products and services that cater to the specific
preferences of customers.

As a prominent player in the garment apparel industry, the
Group consistently pursued enhancements in the design
and quality of its entire product range. Furthermore, the
Group regularly evaluated and adjusted factors such as
cost, production, quality, technology, and design to align
with market demands and trends, effectively meeting the
needs of its niche market.

To provide innovative and customised designs, the Group
has set up the Research and Development Centres (the
“Centres”) with showrooms. On one hand, the Centres
ensured that all products and designs met customers’
requirements and expectations. On the other hand, the
Centres constantly drove improvements and innovation
in products and services by providing tailored designs.
With the establishment of the Centres, the Group was able
to leverage its extensive knowledge of market trends to
create advanced products.
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Raw Material
Sourcing 535 30 1 U A
Select and recommend quality raw material suppliers
snem  BAREESHRANESIHEEEER
Production RIBTEHETER RS EL 2
Management Retain and manage a diversified list of third-party manufacturers and
g allocate production according to requirements of different sales orders
o B FEESROEERERZEERNER
Distribution Warehousing, inventory control and delivery of products to designated
warehouses and retail outlets
3.2, tEEgEER 3.2. Supply Chain Management

The Group acknowledges the critical role of suppliers
and contractors in ensuring product quality and timely
delivery. As a result, the Group’s operational model and
policy are centered around enhancing the management of
supplier and contractor quality. To promote supply chain
diversification, the Group plans to expand its network of
suppliers in Southeast Asia, including Cambodia.

Within the operational model, the Group enforces strict
measures to oversee suppliers and contractors, conducting
assessments to identify environmental and social risks
throughout the supply chain. Suppliers/contractors that
fail to meet or undergo the assessment requirements are
excluded from consideration.

To effectively manage procurement practices, the Group
has implemented a monitoring system. This system tracks
the purchasing price of raw materials, enabling long-term
evaluation. Regular reviews of the system records are
conducted to identify any abnormal fluctuations in prices
or supplies. Additionally, all procurement procedures are
standardized to ensure suppliers’ compliance with relevant
laws and regulations. The operations of the Group are
located in Hong Kong, People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") and Cambodia.
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3.3.

The breakdown of suppliers by geographic location were
listed as below:

HEmEE
Breakdown by Number of
Geographic Location suppliers
Cambodia 29
Hong Kong 8
PRC 141
Total 178

Product Quality and Safety

In order to enhance its competitiveness, the Group
has prioritized quality assurance policies and product
responsibility. To ensure the quality of fabrics and
garments, the Group engaged the National Product
Quality Supervision and Inspection Centre for Apparel and
Garment Products of Textile Industry to conduct thorough
checks.

In recognition of the Group's ongoing commitment, the
Business Social Compliance Initiative, a reputable initiative
focused on improving social performance in global supply
chains, awarded the Group with a quality management
certification. This certification serves as a testament to
the Group's dedication to delivering quality products and
ensuring customer satisfaction. As part of its ongoing
pursuit of global recognition, the Group remains committed
to offering tailored and high-quality products and services
to its customers.

Throughout the value chain, from product design to
delivery, the Group has consistently adhered to standard
requirements and relevant laws and regulations. As a result
of these efforts, there were no significant complaints or
product recalls during the Reporting Period. However, in
the event of any future complaints, the Group is committed
to promptly and professionally addressing the issues and
implementing measures to prevent similar occurrences
from happening again.
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Product Quality

Quality control is a top priority for the Group at its
Cambodia factory. To ensure customer satisfaction, the
Quality Assurance (QA) department conducts thorough
tests on incoming materials, focusing on durability and
pigmentation. Clear operational guidelines and strict
standards are prominently displayed at workstations
for employees to adhere to. The Inspection department
conducts quality checks at various stages of production to
assess products prior to packaging.

Product Safety

In the factory, ensuring the delivery of safe products was
another top priority for the Group. From sourcing and
manufacturing to packaging, the Group implemented
stringent procedures and standards for inspecting fabric
materials and products. As an example, every finished
product was required to undergo a metal detector
screening before shipping to prevent any needles from
being attached to the sweaters.

Intellectual Property and Data Protection

To enhance competitiveness and maintain a responsible
and ethical business image, the Group has implemented
policies to protect intellectual property rights and the
privacy of all consumers, suppliers, and contractors.

Regarding suppliers’ intellectual property rights and
confidentiality, the Group enforces restrictions on the
unauthorized use of their trademarks in any events.
Furthermore, the Group has established a comprehensive
recording system and procedures for the collection and
handling of data. These procedures are outlined in the
Group's internal rules, and all employees are required to
adhere to them. Additionally, the Information Technology
Department strictly prohibits unauthorized employees
from accessing any party’s private data through electronic
devices or relevant systems.
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The Group recognizes that dedicated employees are
fundamental to its business success, as they contribute
to daily operations and drive long-term development. As
a result, the Group is committed to fostering an inclusive
workplace where employees can fully dedicate themselves
and experience continuous growth alongside the Group.
To cultivate such an environment, the Group places great
emphasis on managing its human resources in a respectful
and equitable manner.

Employment and Labour Standards

The Group has adopted a non-discriminatory and inclusive
approach to recruitment, selecting suitable candidates
based on their skills and qualifications. Throughout
the recruitment process, candidates are required to
provide proof of qualifications, identification verification
documents, and working permits to ensure the elimination
of child labor and forced labor risks. In the event that
any instances of forced or child labor are discovered, the
Group takes immediate action to intervene and provides
appropriate compensation based on the SA8000 standard
developed by Social Accountability International.

The Group places significant importance on the
employment relationship with its employees and strictly
prohibits unjustified dismissals. The termination notice
period is clearly stated in the employment contracts in
compliance with the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong,
and open communication is maintained with employees.

In order to foster a cohesive and harmonious working
culture, the Group has established an anti-discrimination
policy in accordance with local laws. This policy ensures
equal opportunities for all employees and prohibits
discrimination based on gender, race, age, religion, and
disability in the workplace. To strengthen employee
relationships and foster a sense of belonging, the Group
organizes staff activities and festive celebrations.
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To attract and retain talent, the Group offers competitive
remuneration packages, additional paid leave, reasonable
working hours, and rest periods. Additionally, outstanding
employees are recognized through rewards and bonuses
as a means of acknowledging and encouraging their
continuous hard work. In the Reporting Period, the Group
ensured compliance with all relevant laws and regulations
pertaining to employment and labor practices. No instances
of non-compliance were identified in the following areas:
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunities, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Group had a
total of 1,096 employees. The employment breakdown by
different categories is listed as below:

EEAH
Number of
Employees
BEBAY Total Number of Employees 1,096
EHRIE D By Gender
3 Male 343
Z Female 753
REBERE S By Employee Category
EIEE Management 34
SY Senior 26
CUEN Junior 1,036
BRERERE D By Age Group
ER315% <31 338
31Z2405% 31-40 547
INEN)3 41-50 162
50 A £ >50 49
R BN EE S By Geographical Location
H PRC 114
) Hong Kong 20
R Cambodia 962
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K=
Turnover Rate

B Overall 52.0%
EHRIE D By Gender
s Male 53.6%
Z Female 51.3%
RERMARE D By Age Group
ERA315% <31 60.1%
312405% 31-40 49.7%
A E5053% 41-50 57.4%
505% PA £ >50 12.2%
R BNEE D By Geographical Location
s PRC 46.0%
BB Hong Kong 0%
SRR Cambodia 53.8%
FTE A Calculation:

MK LR =Z 1R 5 R B OB A 20
ZIE R & B #8100

=22 BEHN T ESAF
AEEBHIRBBEREHHER
BEIAIEL TERE TIRMHL 2R
BEHIERE Bt NEEETT
EEMEBT G A#HBENT
¥fE UREEHEBARALR
MM HPETRSEL 2 H
B MEBNETE2EBHBR
I TE BE R 5 1A ) E AR E R AT
it - ANEBEEIRE TEEM
FREMES VL EMNZT 2R IR
DTEEHHRARMEZE -

Turnover rate = employee in the specified category leaving
employment/number of employee in the specified category
* 100

Safe and Healthy Workplace

The Group is committed to providing a safe and healthy
workplace for its employees through proactive risk
identification and prevention efforts. To this end, the Group
conducts thorough risk assessments to identify potential
industrial hazards and initiates preventive measures to
enhance safety. Furthermore, on-site safety audits are
carried out to analyze the effectiveness of implemented
safety measures, identify areas for improvement, and
develop action plans. The Group also ensures that
employees have access to necessary safety equipment in
workshops to minimize the risk and impact of industrial
accidents.
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In the Cambodia factory, several measures are
implemented to oversee and maintain on-site safety. A
dedicated Safety Committee is established to regularly
review and update safety practices. Safety warnings
and operational guidelines are prominently displayed,
while fire safety training and emergency evacuation
drills are conducted on a regular basis to enhance staff's
preparedness and response in case of emergencies. On-
site medical facilities are also available to provide medical
support to staff at all times.

As a result of the sound safety measures, the Group
complied with all applicable laws and regulations in regard
to occupational health and safety with no report of work-
related fatality in the past three years. However, the
Group has encountered 5 work-related injury cases which
resulted to 5 lost working days during the Reporting Period.
Nonetheless, the Group is actively implementing mitigation
measures to minimize the occurrence and impact of such
incidents.
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Training and Development

The Group recognised a strong workforce as the key to
maintain efficiency of its business operation, and strived to
support employees’ capacity building. Induction trainings
were provided to factory staff as a way to convey the
Group’s expectations and enhance their capability to
conduct duty. During the Reporting Period, 17 junior
employees (6 female and 11 male) participated in a
42 hours training programme, covering topics such as
production techniques and safety standards. The training
and development breakdown by different categories as of
the end of the Reporting Period is listed as below:

BEEE
BE& ZIEE Fi 2 ¥ 19
A B (%) B

Percentage Average
of training training hours
Number of employee completed per
Employees (%) employee

S HEFYMNESAE  Total Number of Employees

took part in training

MR E 5 8z Employees trained by

== Gender
= Male
g4 Female

ZEEERE DN Employees trained by

ZIEE Employee Category
EIE[E Management
(ST Senior
SRS Junior

23 21 2.1
15 65.2 1.9
8 34.8 25
6 26.1 1
0 0 0
17 73.9 25
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4.2.

Calculation:

Percentage of employee trained = employees who took
part in training/number of employees * 100

Anti-corruption

In order to maintain a strong commitment to ethical
and transparent business practices, the Group has
implemented internal policies and standards that provide
guidance to employees on preventing corrupt behaviors,
such as bribery, extortion, fraud, and money laundering.
The Group has also established a whistleblowing policy
and designated channels through which employees can
report any suspected misconduct. Investigations into
reported cases are conducted by senior management,
who are responsible for taking appropriate follow-up
actions. Furthermore, during the Reporting Period, 5
board members and 1 management staff participated
in a six-hour anti-corruption training session to ensure
their familiarity with the latest anti-corruption laws and
standards.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not
encountered any material non-compliance with local laws
and regulations relating to anti-corruption.

Communities Engagement

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group is committed
to bringing positive impacts in the community in which
it operates. As a way to contribute back to the local
community, the Group has donated approximately
HK$20,000 to World Vision Hong Kong Ltd during the
Reporting Period. The Group also encouraged employees
to participate in volunteering activities and has formed a
volunteering service team.
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5. ENVIRONMENTAL CONSCIOUSNESS

5.1.

5.2.

Climate Change

The Group acknowledges the significant risks posed by
climate change, both in terms of physical and transition
risks, affecting various sectors and geographical regions.
Recognizing the importance of climate change mitigation
and adaptation for the sustainability of its operations, the
Group has proactively identified potential physical and
transitional risks that could impact its business.

Operating in Hong Kong, PRC and Cambodia, the Group is
mindful of the increasing frequency of extreme weather
events such as typhoons and heavy rainfall associated
with climate change. In response, the Group has developed
comprehensive emergency plans to effectively address
these threats and ensure business continuity.

Regarding climate transition risks, the Group anticipates
stricter environmental policies and regulations, including
carbon emission requirements, in the future. To prepare
for such regulatory changes, the Group has established
internal standards that go beyond basic compliance,
demonstrating its commitment to proactively adapt to
evolving environmental standards and requirements.

Environmental Management

The Group places great importance on environmental
protection in its production management practices,
recognizing the significance and implications of sustainable
practices.

To integrate sustainable values into its daily business
operations, the Group has implemented a range of
environmental control measures. In line with the
International Organization for Standardization's
Environmental Management System Standards (ISO
14001), the Group has established a set of environmental
management policies. These policies not only adhere to
international standards but also align with the 12 principles
of the Worldwide Responsible Apparel Production. By
following these policies, the Group ensures compliance
with local environmental laws and regulations, preventing
any non-compliance issues.
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5.3.
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5.3.

As a global provider that outsources manufacturing,
the Group acknowledges its responsibility to promote
environmental stewardship among its suppliers and
contractors. To monitor their environmental impacts and
compliance, the Group has implemented an environmental
manual. This manual requires suppliers and contractors
to thoroughly implement environmental management
practices and comply with all relevant environmental laws
and regulations in their respective operating regions.

In the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with all
applicable laws and regulations in relation to environmental
protection, emissions, resource consumption and waste
management.

Energy Use and Emissions

On top of managing the performance of the contractors,
the Group also placed an emphasis on reducing its
environmental footprint. In this regard, the Group
implemented measures to periodically monitor and
progressively reduce both energy consumption and
emissions.

Energy Consumption

The Group utilized electricity across various areas under
its operational control, including offices, factory buildings,
showrooms, canteens, dormitories, and other common
areas. Vehicular transportation relied on petrol fuel, while
wood fuel was used for generating hot water.

To promote energy conservation, the Group adopted a host
of policies and measures:

- a policy requiring employees to switch off all lighting,
electrical appliances, and equipment when not in use

- factory buildings displayed environmentally friendly
operating guidelines for staff adherence

- The Dongguan location, implemented efficient lighting
fixtures

- The Cambodia factory incorporated passive building
designs to maximize natural lighting and reduce
electricity usage and an annual environmental audit
is conducted to assess the feasibility of installing
energy-efficient appliances
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- BUYEANRG MR - a monitoring system to assess and regulate energy
BEIROEFE - LAE I E R consumption to facilitate future reduction plans and
BRI W R R M EE B identify any abnormal trends
£

- EHEEH ?iﬁﬁﬁ‘é BB g - installation of electricity meters in the factory to
B SH AT 1T R R A monitor consumption and conduct risk assessments.

AYBUBERRER RBFET To show support for the development of renewable energy,

B2 EAEMBEEL T%’éﬁ_ﬁﬁﬁ the Cambodia factory has participated in a solar energy

[58EI8 B © SZ%%*”‘TZ—EEE%%I project initiated by a local power generation company.

MELFERGEEBERS WAL The power generation company has installed solar energy

A% 47 410 ﬁ%%i 77 R E B generation systems in the Cambodia factory and allowed

NEB DB E X363k BB A5 8E - the factory to purchase the electricity at a discount.

HRIBRTIRE I EFERLT.6% During the Reporting Period, the Group has purchased

Bh4E 97,6005 T ° approximately 368MWh solar energy, which accounts for

approximately 7.6% of the electricity consumption of the
Cambodia factory, and saved approximately USD7,600.

EEHE
Overview of Electricity Consumption
EMEN By
Business Units Unit
BEMAERRYE JKEL B 39.7 40.6
Hong Kong Office and Showroom MWh
SEREIRIEKRER A A JK LB 434.7 523.0
Dongguan Speedy Garment Manufacturing Company Limited MWh
mERKX (R%)ARARF MW JKFL B - 131.9
Koyip Garment (Dongguan) Manufactory Limited Nete ! MWh
Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited ™2 JK L BF 4,812.1 3,458.7
Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited Nete2 MWh
BREEE JK BB 5,286.5 41541
Total consumption MWh
i1 SERR(RR)BERARBER=Z Note 1: Koyip Garment (Dongguan) Manufactory Limited has ceased
T=FlRILEE operations in 2023.
MEE2 . R IEBEAEE MG N - FTLAE 7108 Note 2: The increase in electricity consumption was due to the rise in
FEAMEF- relevant production.
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REREHRE
Overview of Fuel Consumption

Fuel Type

Y
Petrol Note 1
%/EE B 2
Diesel| Nete2
AR i
Wood Fuel Note3

fiFET: RRAEERREGRD AR
HOHFER P TR

MiEE2 . B TRUS BN D BT A SR
FERPT TR

FIEE3 - MRFIASBOERE K& FTIAAR
FRELBRER P TR

EEISEBIRE —Fp - REENHAE
R BRI R AR HS AN FEKF
AT - e — PR R o

i E R R ER R

ARER B ) E T HRE - BREH AR IR
BEEHERMEZRERE (GHG)
MERBERMER BREBRY-
“REmMA R BN E LT
BOHRENEE AEECEE
TEEARS ARERREER
BHMNETERES GELRE
B HERHEARE A RR R (R
BB & & I E -

B
Unit

37,083 45,117

2,000 4,000

— 3 -3

N 844 1,271
Tonnes

Note 1: The decrease in petrol consumption was due to a reduction in the
use of motor vehicles and transportation.

Note 2: The decrease in diesel consumption was due to the decline in
factory activity.

Note 3: The decrease in wood fuel consumption was due to the utilisation
of the consumption efficiency alternatives.

In the upcoming year, the Group aims to either maintain or
decrease energy intensity below the current year's level.

Greenhouse Gas and Air Emissions

The Group's consumption of electricity, fuel, and wood
combustion leads to the generation of both direct and
indirect greenhouse gases (GHG) and air emissions,
including particulate matter, sulphur dioxide, and nitrogen
oxides. Recognizing the environmental impact of these
emissions, the Group has implemented a monitoring
system to track GHG emissions and conduct regular
reviews. These reviews serve to assess the Group's
environmental footprint and facilitate the development of
reduction plans.
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BiE
Indicator

HE— EEAE R
Scope 1: Direct GHG Emission Noe?

E = R E R PR e
Scope 2: Indirect GHG Emission N2
BREREBHME

Total GHG emissions

MiE: ARREBERD A EERR
EREHRAM TR
MiEE2 . A ARE 1K FEH) 7R SR O0 - T IA

MERBEREIRER LA -

EE
Indicator

AE LY

Nitrogen oxides Note!

ma by

Sulphur oxides Nete !

gERL A 1

Particulate matter Note?
M1 : BRMBBENRD  FTARE
WmE MBI BERAE T

(-8

Going forward, the Group aims to maintain or decrease the
intensity of GHG emissions below the current year's level
in the next year.

BERBHERSE
overview of GHG Emissions
B
Unit

—EREE
Tonnes of CO,
equivalent (tCO,e-)
WE—ECEE
tCO,e-
%ft ke &

tCO,e-

1,125.2 2,978.4

3,536.6 2,588.4

4,661.8 5,566.8

The decrease in direct GHG emission was due to the decline in fuel
consumption.

Note 1:

Note 2. The increase in indirect GHG emission was due to the demanding

in total electricity consumption.

EERBERBE
Overview of Air Emissions
By
Unit

T
kg
T
kg
T
kg

210.43 499.67

0.58 0.73

4.40 5.87

Note 1: The decrease in nitrogen oxides, sulphur oxides and particulate

matter emissions were due to the decline in fuel consumption.
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BiE
Indicator

—MREEEW

General waste
BRI EBREEY
Metal waste recycled
BEREEY
Hazardous waste

5.4. Waste Management

Recognizing waste as a direct reflection of its
environmental impact, the Group has implemented various
measures to reduce and manage waste production and
handling.

To minimize waste production, the Group consistently
promotes resource optimization among employees. The
Group is committed to handling and disposing of waste
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
Additionally, the Group has engaged contractors to handle
and recycle different types of waste.

When procuring production supplies, the Group considers
environmentally friendly criteria. For instance, the Group
is gradually transitioning to durable and reusable trays,
hangers, and cutting boards to eliminate single-use items.

During the design and development processes, the
Group utilizes a wide range of fabrics for sampling and
testing in showrooms. To enhance resource efficiency,
the Group requires employees in workshops, factories,
and outsourced contractors to recycle and reuse fabric
scraps whenever possible. Staff are instructed to collect
fabric scraps and threads for donation during production.
Notably, in the reporting period, the Group did not generate
hazardous waste, such as Hexachlorobenzene and
Asbestos.

EEXENBREYHME
Overview of Waste Produced

B
Unit

NI 253 215
Tonnes

NI 160 260
Tonnes

N - -
Tonnes
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5.5.

AEBEFZERBEIMEABE The Group primarily utilizes packaging materials at the
ME mABI R BEAE RS = Cambodia factory, while the showrooms in Hong Kong or
AITHRZEEFRBREME - 1EE the PRC do not require direct use of packaging materials.
BEREMBE AEBZEEFR In selecting packaging materials, the Group considers
FRRR BB AR RE customer preferences while prioritizing sustainable
Blan T B W r B R BB R options, such as recyclable plastic packaging.
BERMEEESE
Overview of Packaging Material Consumption
EE B —E-_=fF —EB-__f
Indicator uUnit 2023 2022
BE v N 479.9 521.2
Packaging material Noe1&2 Tonnes
MizE1: BEMBERSERREHERE Note 1: Packaging materials represented carton boxes and plastic bags
B 4RAE e B E © procured by the Group in the Reporting period.
Mizt2: BEMBRIETZHERBHERE Note 2: Decrease in packaging material mainly due to the size of plastic
FEIRB DR RFTAEE At & bag and carton boxes are smaller than previous used. Thus, the
EFM T weight decrease.
AxER 5.5. Water Management
AEBEMAKEEBREES AT The Group’s water consumption encompasses usage
M-WMAEMIHmARK - EmE in the dormitory, toilets, offices, and factory. While the
A RE R RS IHEAKE R Group did not face any water sourcing challenges during
5 R PR B - (B R R HE B &R K the reporting period, it actively seeks to enhance water
BB UReAKHRE- efficiency by promoting water conservation practices.
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TE SR 28 TR - 7K 2R B Bt 3 g r] At the Cambodia factory, water is sourced from a
MUKW ERKNSAEE AN nearby river and an on-site retention pond that collects
R 2R AEBEEKEITEIEM stormwater. Prior to usage, the Group treats and tests
BIER - ARERIKE o b o BEET the water to ensure its quality. Additionally, on-site
WIGKER - AR BRI FIET 18 F KR water meters have been installed to monitor and assess
R BERK - AEEHBERER consumption patterns. Looking ahead, the Group aims to
BT R — F R RFF SRR A KA maintain or decrease water intensity below the current
EoFEEEREFHKFE- year's level in the upcoming year.
AXEHRE
Overview of Water Consumption
KB By
Business Units Unit
Bt N 377K - -
Hong Kong Office Note! m?
RS IRIREL KB R A7) W2 TR 16,498 24,674
Dongguan Speedy Garment Manufacturing m3
Company Limited Note2
BMERK(RE)ERARF W 377K - 413
Koyip Garment (Dongguan) Manufactory Limited Nete3 m?
Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited K 72,476 78,780
Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited m3
|AKE SR 88,974 103,867
Total consumption m3
MizE1: BARDEVEAKEERE EA Note 1: The Hong Kong office was not responsible for water consumption
KB A & E- as the landlord bore the cost of water usage.
MisE2: AKETHREIZHRERSB RHK Note 2: The decrease of water assumption mainly attributable to the
AP implementation of effective cost control.
M3 : BERK(RR)BRARBEES Note 3: Koyip Garment (Dongguan) Manufactory Limited has ceased
T =FIFIEEE- operations in 2023.
6. BEXRK 6. LOOKING FORWARD
BT IRHESGEZ FIEMEFMHEFK To enhance its understanding of ESG material issues and
MEAE R IR AEBEEREABET stakeholders’ needs and expectations, the Group undertook
TEZHEMHEBR EEZEMNT X an extensive expansion of stakeholder engagement during the
FAREBENT EEMETESGEEE Reporting Period. This comprehensive approach enabled the
g o Group to identify ESG material issues more accurately.
RERF AEBBANBREL2HEE Moving forward, the Group will utilize the insights gained from
Eb FESH R B E B BUE L E LR this engagement to develop business strategies that effectively
EHNEERB ASERHIREAFHE address these issues. The Group is committed to maintaining
RETHMER U THAMOETEL regular communication with stakeholders to stay informed about
FETER EABEE - their concerns and remain proactive in anticipating rising trends.
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7. BME 7. PERFORMANCE TABLE

BER

Indicator

BREHEREE
Energy Consumption and Intensity

£ JK LB 5,286.5 4,154.1
Electricity MWwh
Ao 7+ 37,083 45,117
Petrol Note1 L
565 F+ 2,000 4,000
Diesel L
AR EREE NI 844 1,271
Wood Fuel Tonnes
HpeFEE Wi FREFH 37,282 39,607
Total Energy Consumption Note2 GJ
BREREE FREH 80.6 70.5
ABB T
Total Energy Intensity GJ/HKD million revenue
BERBHERRZEE
Greenhouse Gas Emission and Intensity
#E— EEHEW WE SR EE 1,125.2 2,978.4
Scope 1: Direct Emission tCOe-
E = EEYEm M=t g = 3,536.6 2,588.4
Scope 2: Indirect Emission tCO.e-
HAERBHNE M-S tikE= 4,661.8 5,566.8
Total GHG Emissions tCO.e-
RERBETE WE ARS8 10.1 9.9
ER-yimnl €
Total GHG Intensity tCO.e-/
HKD million revenue
KBS BEpk WEs
Air emissions Note 3
RE Fx 210.43 499.67
Nitrogen oxides kg
maty Fx 0.58 0.73
Sulphur oxides kg
R T 4.40 5.87
Particulate matter kg
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BER

Indicator

EENBEEUREBE

Waste Production and Intensity
—REEEY

General waste

EEEEY

Hazardous waste

PR EREED

Metal waste recycled

RRE YR T M

Total Waste Intensity Noe4

BEMBEEE

Packaging Material Consumption
BEE Y s

Packaging Material Nete >

AKEREE

Water Consumption and Intensity
BAKE

Total Water Consumption

BRKEE

Total Water Intensity

MiEET: MRS EEBRERR D BT AU ERE
BT

MiRE2 © A Sm RO IR EE R > AT A
MREREB BT TR -

M3 : mRMRB R AR ERE
BT B o

Mizts : ARNAEEERRER AABREYEE
BREN RAURMPERNEF R

MiEES : BEMESEER SREMEHE-.
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Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

e 253 215
Tonnes
e - -
Tonnes
s 160 260
Tonnes
We, B &B Tl 0.89 0.85
Tonnes/
HKD million revenue

e 479.9 521.2
Tonnes
77K 88,974 103,867
m3
SN AKIEE AR 81.2 88.7

meé/employee

The decrease in petrol consumption was due to a reduction in the use of
motor vehicles and transportation.

The decrease in the total energy consumption was due to the overall
decrease in petrol, diesel and wood fuel.

The overall decrease in air emissions were due to the reduction in use of
fuel consumption.

The increase in waste intensity was due to the Group's growth and
expansion, indicating a high demand for our products.

Packaging materials include cardboard, carton boxes, and plastic bags.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and those
of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 29 to
the Financial Statements.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group's principal activities
as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group and an indication of likely future development in the
Group's business, can be found in the Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 9 to 15 of this annual report. This discussion
forms part of this director’s report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group continues to update the requirements of the relevant
environmental laws and regulations applicable to it to ensure
compliance. The Group strive to minimise environmental impact by
saving electricity and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other
materials. We also require the manufacturers and the constructor
to operate in strict compliance with the relevant environmental
regulations and rules.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group continues to update the requirement of the relevant
laws and regulations in various countries and regions, particularly
in the Hong Kong, the PRC and Cambodia, applicable to it to ensure
compliance. Substantially majority of the Group's assets are located
and the Group’s revenue is mainly derived from operations in these
areas. The Group was listed on the Stock Exchange on 15 January
2013. During the year 2023 under review, the Group complied with the
relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong, the PRC and Cambodia in
all material respects.

Key Relationships

(i) Employees
The Group offers competitive remuneration packages to attract,
retain and motivate employees. Key personnel have been part
of the management team since the inception of business.
During the year 2023 under review, the Group considered the
relationship with employees was well and the turnover rate is
acceptable and normal.
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(ii) Suppliers

The Group has developed long standing relationships with a
number of our vendors and take great care to ensure they share
our commitment to quality and ethics. The Group selects its
manufacturers and constructors carefully and requires them to
satisfy certain assessment criteria including experience, financial
strength, reputation, ability to produce high quality products and
quality control effectiveness.

(iii) Customers
The Group is committed to offer a broad and diverse range
of inspiring, value-for money, good-quality fashion to our
customers. We also stay connected with our customers in order
to meet their need. We have ongoing communications with them
through various channels like telephone, email and marketing
materials.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
the Group’s financial position as at 31 December 2023 are set out in
the Financial Statements on pages 87 to 180 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

DIVIDEND POLICY

According to the Company’s existing dividend policy, the Board shall
consider the following factors before declaring or recommending
dividends:

° the Company'’s actual and expected financial performance;

° retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the subsidiaries of the Group;

° the Group's working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future expansion plans,

. the Group’s liquidity position;

° general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group's
business and internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business, financial results and position of the
Company; and

o other factors that the Board deems to be relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the
applicable laws and the Company's Articles of Association.

e SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 8 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the Financial Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in Note 14 to the Financial Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of distributable reserves of the Company are set out in Note 34
to the Financial Statements.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year 2023, the Group made charitable contribution totalling
approximately of HK$20,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group's largest and five largest customers accounted
for approximately 45.4% and 95.9% of the total revenue for the year
2023. Purchases from the Group's largest and five largest suppliers,
which comprise raw material suppliers and third party manufacturers,
accounted for approximately 31.5% and 62.0% of the total purchases
for the year 2023.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Directors, their
associates, nor any shareholders who owned more than 5% of the
number of issued shares of the Company, had any beneficial interest
in any of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note
29 to the Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company who hold office during the year and up
to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Huang Chih Shen (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Huang Li Hun, Serlina
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Ting Kon
Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina
Mr. Cheung Cheuk Cheung, Terence
Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny
(Resigned on 31 January 2023)
Mr. Chan Tsang Mo (Appointed on 31 August 2023)

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years either from the
Listing Date or 14 February 2020 and shall continue thereafter until
terminated by, not less than three months' notice in writing served by
either party on the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
from 22 December 2021 or 31 August 2023, subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at annual general meeting and until
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by
either party on the other.

No Director is bound by any service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within 1 year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation on independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and all of them are considered to be
independent.

In accordance with the Company'’s Articles of Association, Ms. Huang
Li Hun, Serlina and Mr. Wong Ting Kon are subject to retirement by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS AND PERMITTED
INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director or other officer
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained
by him as a Director or other officer of the Company in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in
his favour, or in which he is acquitted.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Company during the year 2023. The permitted indemnity provision is
in force for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) when
the Report of the Board of the Directors prepared by the Directors
is approved in accordance with section 391(1)@) of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong).
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company or its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company or an entity connected with a Director of the
Company is or was materially interested, either directly or indirectly,
subsisting at the end of the year 2023 or at any time during the year
2023.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile” on pages 16 to 21 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Group fell within the following bands:

BE+-A=1t—HLFE
Year ended 31 December

—E-=F —E -4
2023 2022
AE AEL
Number Number

A8 Bl Emolument bands
= 2500,0007% 7T Nil = HK$500,000 5 4
500,0017% 7t 2=1,000,0007% 7T HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 2 1
1,000,001/ 7t 2 1,500,0007% 7T HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 2 3
3,000,001/% 7T 23,500,000/ 7T HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 1 0
4,000,001/% 7T 24,500,000/ 7T HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 - 1

REBELEMHRAMEI6ZREMAETHRENE
EFMRORESFESE - FFEDHH
RIS R I 7E35 %24 »

Further particulars regarding Director's remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in Notes 35 and 24 to the
Financial Statements, respectively.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no contract of
significance for provision of services to which the Company or its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
any Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries had a material
interest subsisting at the end of the year 2023 or at any time during
the year 2023.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 15 January 2013
and the deed of non-competition undertakings in respect of the
Controlling Shareholders was entered into on 24 December 2012
(the “Deed of Non-Competition”). The Controlling Shareholders have
confirmed to the Company of his/its compliance with the Deed of
Non-Competition provided to the Company during the year 2023.

The conflicts committee of the Company and the independent
non-executive Directors had reviewed the status of compliance and
also the confirmations by the Controlling Shareholders and, on the
basis of such confirmations, are of the view that the Controlling
Shareholders has complied with the Deed of Non-Competition which
has been enforced by the Company in accordance with its terms.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has made an annual declaration
in respect of their compliance with the terms of non-competition
undertaking as provided in their service agreements.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the status
of compliance as well as confirmation by each executive Director of
the Company and, on the basis of such confirmation, are of the view
that such executive Directors of the Company have complied with
the non-competition undertakings under their service agreements
and these non-competition undertakings have been enforced by the
Company in accordance with its terms.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group had entered into
a number of transactions with parties which are connected persons
of the Company under the Listing Rules. These transactions are
considered to be continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules, which need to be disclosed herein in compliance with the
requirements under the Listing Rules or the conditions of waivers
previously granted by the Stock Exchange. Details of the continuing
connected transactions for the year 2023 are as follows:

—_=E_—
2022

TET
HK$'000

Rental expenses payable or paid to:

Dongguan Shi Tianai Property

([FEEXRE])? Management Company Limited

(“Dongguan Tianai") 1 1,600 6,022

LK (BMN)BRAA Jinfeng Garment (Huizhou) Company
(&85 IM])° Limited ("Jinfeng Huizhou") - 41

B AER X (EM)ABMR AT Yicheng Weaving Garment (Huizhou)
([EHEIM]) Company Limited (“Yicheng Huizhou")c - 19
1,600 6,082

a. RERFAMEAHZEEREB100%E Rt AKE  a Dongguan Tianai is indirectly beneficially owned as to 100% by Century Grand, a

B R O A M S 50% 2 o

BE-Z-_=FRAA-+=-AR BREXETEZE
FERHEARES BUHBREETRATHAERA
RIMERE AL

b. ﬁE%)IIEEﬁ?:Faﬁ?%EE%EWO%*EE%'ﬁi
REE R EEA0%E R

N
il

C. B EMN B R EE S EA100%E S - R HZE
REE R EEAS0%E R

company owned as to 50% by Mr. Huang Chih Shen ultimately.
Dongguan Tianai was no longer controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother, and hence
no longer a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules starting

from 23 May 2023.

b. Jinfeng Huizhou is indirectly beneficially owned as to 100% by Century Grand, a
company owned as to 50% by Mr. Huang Chih Shen ultimately.

C. Yicheng Huizhou is indirectly beneficially owned as to 100% by Century Grand, a
company owned as to 50% by Mr. Huang Chih Shen ultimately.
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Notes:

1. Dongguan Tianai, as lessor, and Dongguan Speedy Garment Manufacturing
Company Limited (“Speedy Dongguan”) and Koyip Garment (Huizhou) Manufactory
Ltd. ("Koyip Huizhou"), subsidiaries of the Group, as lessees, entered into a tenancy
agreement dated 28 December 2022, respectively, pursuant to which Dongguan
Tianai agreed (i) to lease to Speedy Dongguan No. 27 Huailin Road, Huaide Village,
Humen Town, Donguan City, the PRC, with a gross floor area of approximately
12,927 square meters for factory and dormitory uses and (i) to lease to Koyip
Huizhou, No. 27 Huailin Road, Huaide Village, Humen Town, Donguan City, the PRC,
with a gross floor area of approximately 100 square meters for dormitory uses, both
for a term of one year commencing from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023.
The annual caps for the rental payable by Speedy Dongguan and Koyip Huizhou
to Dongguan Tianai under the said tenancy agreements, for the year ended 31
December 2023, is RMB4,031,897 and RMB27,980, respectively. For details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 28 December 2022. Dongguan
Tianai was no longer controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother, and hence no longer
a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules starting from 23
May 2023, and thus the above transaction ceased to be a continuing connected
transaction of the Company.

The continuing connected transaction mentioned above has been
reviewed by the independent non-executive Directors of the Company
who have confirmed that the transaction has entered into: (a) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (b) either on
normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient comparable
transactions to judge whether they are on normal commercial terms,
on terms no less favourable to the Company than terms available to
or from (as appropriate) independent third parties; (c) in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing such transactions on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of shareholders of
the Company as a whole; and (d) within the caps or the aggregate
transaction values set out in the Company’s announcements dated 28
December 2022.
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The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Company in this annual report in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The Company renewed the tenancy agreements on 28 December
2022 for a term commencing from 1 January 2023 and ending on 31
December 2023 between: (i) Dongguan Tianai and Speedy Dongguan;,
and (i) Dongguan Tianai and Koyip Huizhou. For details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 28 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, a summary of significant related party
transactions, which do not constitute connected transactions,
made during the year 2023 is disclosed in Note 33 to the Financial
Statements. The Company confirmed that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s existing Share Option Scheme was approved for
adoption pursuant to a written resolution of all of our shareholders
passed on 26 May 2022 for the purpose to provide our Company
with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to eligible participants and for
such other purposes as the Board approve from time to time.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board may, at
their absolute discretion, grant or invite any person belonging to any
of the following classes to take up options to subscribe for shares:

(@ any employee, supplier/service provider, customer, partner
or joint venture partner of the Group (including any director,
whether executive and whether independent or not, of the
Group) who is in full time or part time employment with the
Company or any subsidiaries, or

(b) any person who have contributed or may contribute to the
Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 10%
of the total number of shares in issue on the adoption date of the
Share Option Scheme unless the Company seeks the approval of the
shareholders in general meeting for refreshing the 10% limit under
the Share Option Scheme provided that options lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme or any other share option
schemes of the Company will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating 10% limit.
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The Share Option Scheme was adopted for a period of 10 years
commencing from 26 May 2022 and remains in force until 25 May
2032. The Company may, by resolution in general meeting or, such
date as the Board determined, terminate the Share Option Scheme at
any time without prejudice to the exercise of options granted prior to
such termination.

The exercise price per share of the Company for each option granted
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion but in any
event shall be at least the higher of:

(1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer for the
grant of option (“Date of Grant”) which must be a trading day;

(2) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
trading days immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and

(3)  the nominal value of the shares on the Date of Grant.

Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the
Company as consideration for the grant. The acceptance of an offer
of the grant of the option must be made within the date as specified
in the offer letter issued by the Company. The exercise period of any
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not be longer
than 10 years commencing on the date of grant and expiring on the
last day of such 10-year period subject to the provisions for early
termination as contained in the Share Option Scheme.

The total number of new shares of the Company that may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share options schemes of the Company shall
not exceed 60,000,000 shares, which represents 10% of the shares in
issue of the Company as at the date of this annual report.
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The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each grantee
under the Share Option Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the total number of shares in issue. Any further grant of options in
excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to issuance of a circular by the
Company and approved by its shareholders in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

Since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and during the year
2023, no options were granted under the Share Option Scheme.

Apart from the aforesaid share option schemes, at no time during
the year ended 31 December 2023 was any of the Company and its
holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate, and none of the Directors, or their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the shares
in, or debentures of, the Company, or had exercise any such right.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company's Directors and chief
executives had the following interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company, its Group
members and/or associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ"), as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code:
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Name of Group
member/associated
corporation

Name of Director

BEEALE
Mr. Huang Chih Shen

VN
Our Company

VAN
our Company

i

BEEXT
Ms. Huang Li Hun, Serlina

1. (L] B EERARRISAMABAERO 2HR -

2. P ERESEERANARBMGER MR =%
TZHEFZA=t—H #HRAUARTEFELTR
EERERR -FIL RIBFHFRARGES EXF
FEBWRBERB RN AR AR

EEps

Name of Group
member/associated
corporation

Name of Director

BERLE LEPN
Mr. Huang Chih Shen Sky Halo

B EE -

1 MEBENEERZEN R-F-=F+-A
St -EERMESREELANA

BREXWEEN R_F_=F+-A=+—
B EFERARAEBZTRABHRERARF]
HEEMEEXKE AR EAEE (EERE
7 R BB R BI B XVER) (R B 0 ~ A8 B A 10 3K
BREET HEAREES BB GRIFEXVE
F7X B8y BA MG AN A KBk 52 P ) AEAA
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518 B RS R A ERA R TAR ) -
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The Company

BHEHARER
S/ RERME (HizE1) BRESRABT D
Number and class Approximate
Capacity/nature of securities percentage of
of interest ([ -] shareholding
REEE R (ME2) 327,242,688% 54.54%
Interest of a controlled =gl
corporation (Note 2) 327,242,688
ordinary shares (L)
BB A 92,000/% 0.02%
Beneficial owner e=gald(h)
92,000
ordinary shares (L)
Notes:
1. The letter "L" denotes the Directors' long position in the shares of our Company or
the relevant associated corporation.
2. The disclosed interest represented the interest in the Company held by Sky Halo

which was in turn wholly owned by Mr. Huang Chih Shen, an executive Director
as at 31 December 2023. Therefore, Mr. Huang Chih Shen was deemed to be
interested in the interest of Sky Halo in the Company by virtue of the SFO.

HEYARER
2% +:3:31 (BtaE1) BREBLNED L
Number and class Approximate
Capacity/nature of securities percentage of
of interest (Note 1) shareholding
E=HEA A 10,0000% & 3 i% 100.00%
Beneficial owner 10,000
ordinary shares
Note:
1. The disclosed interest represented the interest in Sky Halo which was wholly

owned by Mr. Huang Chih Shen as at 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any other interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company, any of its Group members or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code.
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FERRNEQATRMDRIEBERADT  SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND/OR
WEEER KA SHORT POSITION IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

MR-TE-=F+—-"F=+—H #MEBZEMH - As at 31 December 2023, so far as was known to the Directors, the
UWTAL BE(EFARFEETHAE  following persons/entities (other than the Directors or chief executive
AN AARAF - EEMEBEKE QAT K8 of the Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests or short
HRBSEBBR S SBER D  HAESER A positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company, its Group
HABREZEF LS EMNEXVEE2RE3D members and/or associated corporations which would fall to be
HigxBRARRBRENERIOAR D2 disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
ANBRIEE S RS G0 E336KAATEEFE  Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to

MEDMAMERIAR be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
FEERERQT BHEHARER
BEER HE BB EEER 2% £:3:3-1 (K1) RESNE D
Name of Group Number and class Approximate
member/associated  Capacity/nature of securities percentage of
Name of Shareholder corporation of interest (Note 1) shareholding
iR (BiEE2) R A] EnlAA 327,242,6881% 54.54%
Sky Halo (Note 2) Our Company Beneficial owner LBEARL)
327,242,688

ordinary shares (L)

BE& 7+ (HHF3) FiN/NE]! Ei3 327,242,6881% 54.54%
Ms. Cheuk Wai Ying (Note 3) Our Company Family E=gili(h)
327,242,688

ordinary shares (L)

BeR AL ¢ St A ViN/NE EnBEAA 33,031,758% 5.51%
Mr. Chan Hung Kwong, Our Company Beneficial owner Az
Patrick 33,031,758

ordinary shares (L)

BEREKE ZN/NT| BEREAA 30,204,0000% 5.03%
Mr. Cheuk Lim Fai Our Company Beneficial owner =gy
30,204,000

ordinary shares (L)
B 5 Notes:

1. [LIEZALTRAARISAMEEK S EHZE 1. The letter “L" denotes the person's long position in the shares of our Company or
[ty 2 4f B - the relevant Group member or associated corporation.

2. BAREBREZHESHEMAX L MRZZ=_=F 2 Sky Halo was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the entire issued share
+ZRA=+—H H2PEBRTRABEEREE capital of which was wholly owned by Mr. Huang Chih Shen as at 31 December
2EHEE- 2023.

3. BEFFLBERS SEFREENRBEEL L 3 Ms. Cheuk Wai Ying, spouse of Mr. Huang Chih Shen, was deemed to be interested
THRAEEEERTERRARIMNER - in Mr. Huang Chih Shen’s interest in the Company by virtue of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors were
not aware of any other persons/entities (other than the Directors and
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company, its Group members
or associated corporations which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

During the year 2023, save as disclosed in the Prospectus, none of the
Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company or any of their
respective associates has engaged in any business that competes or
may compete with the business of the Group or has any other conflict
of interests with the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of its listed securities, and neither
did the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year 2023.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules during the year
2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices can be found in
the Corporate Governance Report contained on pages 22 to 36 in this
annual report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was set up for reviewing the Company’s
emolument policy and structure of all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Company, having regard to the
Company'’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices. No long-term incentive schemes have been adopted
by the Company.

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no important event affecting the Company and its subsidiaries
which has occurred after the reporting period.

AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditors, Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers, is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM
of the Company.

By order of the Board

Speedy Global Holdings Limited
Huang Chih Shen

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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To the Shareholders of Speedy Global Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Speedy Global Holdings
Limited (the “"Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are
set out on pages 87 to 180, comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2023,

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
° Net realisable value of slow-moving and obsolete inventories

. Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment

78 AFEIRBRIEI AR A A o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



RV 73 SRS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

REETEE

Key Audit Matter

BB N AEEEEETSE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

FERREFENATEEREFE
Net realisable value of slow-moving and
obsolete inventories

2R A MR A0 K M8 -
Refer to note 4(b) and note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EEBERERBERZNBEBRER 3755
BEMRECHBR BHRESNEABR
HWERENE P ERBERBRE TE - FH
FREGFEAREHRAE R =
+ZA=+—H ERERBHETENER
#5497,484,000/8 7T ©

The Group manufactures and sells a wide
range of woven wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear
and sweater knitwear products. The value of
these products will drop significantly when
they become obsolete or there is a change
in customers’ demand. The slow-moving and
obsolete inventories may be impaired. As
at 31 December 2023, management made a
provision of approximately HK$7,484,000 for
such inventories.

BMTHEREUFHEERREFTS A #I FEN NI KT
HiBIE - WiBBERAF e T EEIRE R EMER RRE R KE -

MERE FEME - FLURBTHGXINERERRAIRFOHTE T
(EEDNE ook aaEl

We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal control
and process of assessing the net realisable value of slow-moving
and obsolete inventories, and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and
the level of other inherent risk factors, such as complexity, subjectivity,
changes and susceptibility to management bias or fraud.

BMERITREEF B
Specific procedures we have performed included:

o EMAEERARTEERENHOEZENER BEGHT
SR BN FENRR

° We evaluated and tested the key controls over the impairment
assessment of inventories, including the procedures on
estimating the net realisable value of the inventories;

U BMERTEMHEEERNRRME WARNRTFERHZY -
MR R AR AR 1B LA ML

° We obtained the ageing profile of each inventory item and
tested the accuracy of the ageing profile, on a sample basis, by
checking to the inventory records;

o BMMETREEHEITEREEPESHEE THRFEX
T

° We checked the selling prices obtained from subsequent sales
orders and invoices, on a sample basis, and compared to the
cost of inventories;
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REETEE

Key Audit Matter

BB N AEEEEETSE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

MR AR FEN G FERANTHEE L
BMEREZ T HEIREFTERRERER -
o 8 K% PR B 17 BRUE AT il B9 N R R B 1 3R R
BEX THAREGFEEREEXKNT R
BERHAB WERFEREK VP EE KM
EPHEMHEEE  HEABUMLERER
RS ERAREMATAREE-

We focused on auditing the impairment
of slow-moving and obsolete inventories
because the estimation of net realisable
value is subject to high degree of estimation
uncertainty. The inherent risk in relation to the
impairment assessment of slow-moving and
obsolete inventories is considered significant
due to significant judgements involved in
estimating the selling prices less costs to
sell, taking into consideration of the ageing
of inventories, preliminary production and
sales plans agreed with customers, historical
experience of selling inventories of similar
nature and other available factors.

BMEEREENREYEEEAEENTHEAREFEN T EIR
FERE WAESHETE BUERNEITSER BL
MEEREETFENTHEN RBERME) EITHA

We discussed with management as to its assessment on the net
realisable value for slow moving and obsolete inventories with no
subsequent sales, collaborating explanations with sales orders,
current market prices of similar products, historical margins and
marketability of the relevant inventories, as appropriate;

BB EZYMREAHBENSHESTE LARER
HEPHRENNTEEREETE EREBEHMEAATER
FERTER:

We obtained evidence from events occurring up to the auditor’s
report date and challenged management’s expectation in
estimating the net realisable value by considering the preliminary
production and sales plans agreed with customers;

BMEREEECELEARESREESHEENER T8
R - HEFHENTSEERIEETE HEAUTEERFE
FIREARREMAFSEZRNHBES SR REERER
REMEZ UREZERAEERNERREEEFHETN
2

We considered whether the management’s judgements in
making the significant assumptions and selecting the data of the
latest selling prices, ageing of inventories, preliminary production
and sales plans agreed with customers, historical experience of
selling inventories of similar nature and other available factors
would give rise to indicators of possible management bias
and the implications to the audit when indicators of possible
management bias are identified.

EREiRErF RARREREERTEFERERERIERANH
ETRRBZATRD BN B FFo

Based on the procedures above, we considered that management’s
judgements and assumptions applied in the assessment of provision
for impairment of inventories were supportable by the evidences
obtained.
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REETEE

Key Audit Matter

BN ES TR EEREENEE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

M BERRERETE
Impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment

B2 A PSRRI FE4d) %6 »
Refer to note 4(d) and 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FA BEEBEEHEBUE -KERRER
B # 15 499,891,000/%8 7T °

The Group has recorded an impairment
provision of approximately HK$9,891,000 for
property, plant and equipment during the
year.

EEERTERELERTFELRADE BE
LEEREETEEERENSHRIER -
WTERBFEREFRRNSBERSEE SN
((ReELEsEU] ) NERBELRATER
HEXRA—_EFRSEMGTEATKE -
BEEEET G ReELSEMNERER
([fEAEE]) aREAFERDEERE ([A
FEREEKRA]) - FREBEDREERE
RETEIEHAEB(BEBAESEEEX.
BEEMERMBEX)ELRZOALIRRR
RERETERFTH -

Management identified whether events
occurred or circumstances exist indicating
the carrying value of property, plant and
equipment may be impaired and estimated
the recoverable amount of each cash
generating unit (“CGU") with impairment
indicators based on the higher of its value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal
calculation. Based on management’s
assessment, the value in use (“VIU") of CGU is
higher than its fair value less cost of disposal
(“FVLCOD"). The VIU was based on the
discounted future cash flow forecasts where
management made assumptions on certain
key inputs, including forecast sales growth
rate, budget gross margin and discount rate.

BMTHMERENASZEG LT MRENRER LFEBEEGETT
AHEZREMEERRAEAZR (EMHE T8 ME BSEER R I
SFREB) RO ) ;2 E R RS AR IR ALY AT BB o

We obtained an understanding of the management'’s internal controls
and process of assessing the impairment, and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and the level of other inherent risk factors, such as
complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to management
bias or fraud.

BMERTHRERFBIE:
Specific procedures we have performed included:

e EMFEBERENATFENGER UM EEBMR
Fr B BRK

° We evaluated the outcome of prior year assessment of
the provision for impairment to assess the effectiveness of
management’s estimation process;

o ERMFTEBILINBEERIA BT e I REEM
° We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
independent external valuer;

U BMAEEE TRRSEEBMNRREFHERE:
° We understood from management the business plan of the CGU
for the coming years;

o PR BERAEEERERIEE A KM = F0NBRTRIFENT
(it

o We compared the forecast sales growth rate and budget gross
margin with the historical performance in the recent three years;
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REETEE

Key Audit Matter

BB N AEEEEETSE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BMEINEZME BEERXERE B
AR E S BHERHS ke EmET T -
AR EITEAEEERE BEENERA
R AE IR R R IR 2 2 TR R IR K AT
Ry ERAE W WERRERER
HOEERRERASEKX-

We focused on auditing the impairment of
property, plant and equipment because the
estimation of recoverable amount is subject
to high degree of estimation uncertainty. The
inherent risk in relation to the impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment
is considered significant due to significant
judgements involved in estimating forecast
sales growth rate, budget gross margin,
and discount rate used for preparing the
discounted future cash flow forecasts.

BMERABEEERTEENE B NRB LR
WEBEEBR - RT (A RE R AT PT A AV BLER %

o We engaged our internal valuation experts to evaluate the
reasonableness of the methodology and assess the discount
rate applied to the impairment review by comparing to our
internal benchmark data;

o BMEBEZBMREANBENSHESER TEREE
BHIERHER R TN &

° We obtained evidence from events occurring up to the auditor’s
report date and challenged management's estimation of the
forecast sales growth rate; and

U BMEREREEEELYBAHEENERE FHEEMNERAR
EEHERABRIFNHE RS AIFEEREERZEZN
EBIE UAREERA T EEEERENEEREEZNTE -

° We considered whether the management’s judgement in making
the significant assumptions on the forecast sales growth rate,
budget gross margin and discount rate would give rise to
indicators of possible management bias and the implications
to the audit when indicators of possible management bias are
identified.

EREAEF RMAREEEETEYE BKERREHERERER
FTERO B RBRBEEENIRIF-

Based on procedures above, we considered that management’s
judgements and assumptions applied in the assessment of the
provision for impairment of property, plant and equipment were
supportable by the evidences obtained.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Pong Fei Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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RZEZ=F+=_A=+—H

As at 31 December 2023

R+=A=+—8
As at 31 December
—_Eg-= —_=E=-=
2023 2022
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
EREBEE Non-current assets
W% WE REE Property, plant and equipment 6 9,105 27,604
FREEE Right-of-use assets 7 214 2,617
mILEE Intangible assets - 16
EEFIEE E Deferred tax assets 19 2,646 2,580
11,965 32,817
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 8 43,259 48,147
JFEE LS IR R % L A R IR Trade and other receivables 10 62,370 71,160
TEfT5RIA Prepayments 1 16,252 7,013
FHIRITIFR Short-term bank deposits 13 30,942 -
BehBEeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 12 96,173 160,720
248,996 287,040
EEHAE Total assets 260,961 319,857
Ex EQUITY
RAAEEFEEAEMLER  Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company
& 7 Share capital 14 60,000 60,000
f& 10 &8 Share premium 14 53,441 53,441
HAf#E Other reserves 15 14,150 15,096
2EtEE Accumulated losses (58,056) (53,106)
SR Total equity 69,535 75,431
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MRZZE-_=F+-A=+—H Asat 31 December 2023

Rt+t=—H=+—H
As at 31 December
—ZE_= g
2023 2022
FET THT
HK$'000 HK$'000
=L LIABILITIES
ERBERE Non-current liabilities
HEBE Lease liabilities 7 - 331
EERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 19 1,224 1,996
1,224 2,327
REAE Current liabilities
JE AF AR SR % E A R A 3R Trade and other payables 16 88,389 83,791
BHEE Contract liabilities 5 1,009 523
BNERF IR BB Current tax liabilities 4,073 3,868
B 75 FE - 5RR Finance payables 17 30,591 43,301
RITEE Bank borrowings 18 65,918 108,311
HEaE Lease liabilities 7 222 2,305
190,202 242,099
EEHE Total liabilities 191,426 244,426
ERkEBEEE Total equity and liabilities 260,961 319,857

LR & B RS AR R R FE R S — R E The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read

on conjunction with the accompanying notes.

FERIE1B0E v MEBRERMN T -ME=FH The financial statements on pages 87 to 180 were approved by the
“+HN\BEZEeHE YHRUTREREE  Board of Directors on 28 March 2024 and were signed on its behalf.

BEER EHET
Huang Chih Shen Huang Li Hun, Serlina
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BE_Z-_=F+_A=1+—HLFE

BE+-A=1t—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—E=-=
2023
B 5 FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Wz Revenue 5 462,331 561,797
$HE A AR Cost of sales 22 (423,008) (519,200)
ER Gross profit 39,323 42,597
SHE RE AT Selling and marketing expenses 22 (1,482) (3,380)
TERAX Administrative expenses 22 (40,302) (54,718)
TREERERD, Net impairment reversal/(losses)

(E18) 558 on financial assets 3.1(0)&23 102 (8,403)
HEaA Other income 20 462 1,521
Hip Uk (B518) —F%  Other gains/(losses) — net 21 524 (4,302)
KReEEE Operating loss (1,373) (26,685)
BRI Finance income 25 3,190 977
Bh & AN Finance costs 25 (7,140) (6,347)
BLERK A —F58 Finance costs - net (3,950) (5,364)
F?Fﬁ SHAIEE Loss before income tax (5,323) (32,049)

BRER, (FAX) Income tax credit/(expense) 26 373 (2,409)
KATRERFEAES Loss for the year attributable to

FREE equity holders of the Company (4,950) (34,458)
Hb2mEK A Other comprehensive income
HEAJBEEF DI E ltems that may be reclassified

1Bz Ay IH B subsequently to profit or loss
N ER Currency translation differences (946) (10,819)
FREMEZEKA Other comprehensive income

MBRFIE for the year, net of tax (946) (10,819)
RAAEEFEAEM Total comprehensive loss for the year

FRE2EEGEASE attributable to equity holders of

the Company (5,896) (45,277)
ERAQTEZEZFE AEL Basic and diluted losses per share for
EESREAREBESE loss attributable to equity holders
(AR BTIIR) of the Company for the year
(expressed in HK$ per share) 27 (0.0083) (0.0574)
FiliRE 2 E U R K P B T — ORI The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE_T-_=F+-_HA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

AAREREEAENL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
S B4 s E Hitv i Rt ER @i
Share Share Other  Accumulated

capital premium reserves losses Total

v FET Vv THT THT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(PitzE14) (P &E14) (PitzE15)
(note 14) (note 14) (note 15)
RZE--E-F-Hz&&H Balance as at 1 January 2022 60,000 53,441 24,726 (17,459) 120,708
FAEE Loss for the year - - - (34,458) (34,458)
Hi2EEA Other comprehensive income - - (10,819) - (10,819)
BT A ERE Transfer to statutory reserves - - 1,189 (1,189) -
FRE2EFREE Total comprehensive loss for the year - - (9,630) (35,647) (45,277)
R-ZB--F+-A=+—-Hz#&# Balance as at 31 December 2022 60,000 53,441 15,096 (53,106) 75,431
RIB-=F-A-Az&H Balance as at 1 January 2023 60,000 53,441 15,096 (53,106) 75,431
FREE Loss for the year - - - (4,950) (4,950)
HEr2EBA Other comprehensive income - - (946) - (946)
HEEEERE Transfer to statutory reserves - - - - -
FRZEFELE Total comprehensive loss for the year - - (946) (4,950) (5,896)
R-E-=F+-A=+—-Hz#&# Balance as at 31 December 2023 60,000 53,441 14,150 (58,056) 69,535
LR AP e R ERN A The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE_T-_=#+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

BE+-A=+—-HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-=

2023
THT
HK$'000

_EE__E'E

=

2022
T
HK$'000

RETHNEESRE cash flows from operating activities
KETEBFERS Cash generated from operations 30(a) 29,907 22,427
B Income taxes paid (260) (60)
EARFLE Interest paid (7,140) (6,341)
KETEBMIA SR AEE Net cash inflow from operating activities 22,507 16,026
RETEBNEESRE Cash flows from investing activities
BEWE WE&REZ 5 Payments for purchase of property,

plant and equipment 6 (963) (1,446)
HEME BMEMBREHRE  Proceeds from disposal of property,

SKIB plant and equipment 30(0) 553 461
R HRER 1T 17 338 0 Increase in short-term bank deposits (30,942) -
BB Interest received 2,576 977
LA GRS M FEE Net cash outflow from investing activities (28,776) ®)
MEIHNEERE cash flows from financing activities
S IR S R RTTIE B Proceeds from finance payables and

Fr {8 3k18 bank borrowings 197,201 243,683
BIE M e R IE & Repayments of finance payables and

RITEE bank borrowings (252,304) (285,070)
MENRZEZERD Principal elements of lease payments (2,071) @,477)
BLE VS B HYIA M FEE Net cash outflow from financing activities (57,174) (45,864)
ReRBESEEYRD Net decrease in cash and cash

T equivalents (63,443) (29,846)
FUReRESEEYD Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of the year 160,720 193,107
EXFHHReRIRSE Effects of exchange rate changes on

Bz cash and cash equivalents (1,104) (2,541)

FRESRESZEEY cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year 96,173 160,720

PR ReREREEME—

BFBIE

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in

3R o ANNUAL REPORT 2023 91



RO SRR SE

W

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

92

—REH

ABERHIERBR AR (AR A
MEBAR (MEIAKEEIERER
ZRERMAmEHEE ASRERHE
HRBR IR SR BE R M ELE
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BARMG R

AARR=ZE——FNANA=ZFTN\HIRE
MEHEARZE(ZE—ZFBIR)
TRERSTMK Y AERE2ERA
A) o s % =5 R b ik B Vistra (Cayman)
Limited, PO. Box 31119, Grand Pavilion,
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand
Cayman KY1-1205, Cayman Islands

ARAB-ZE-—=F—ATHHEESE
BHERIMERAREREM -

BB EMEN ZFEREAMBHRRIIN
BT (BTl 251

FREEREHREBE

21 RREE
AEBNEAMBHRRDRIEETE
MBmREE ([BEYVHREE
A1) REB R RMED (£622F ) H)
BEREEBREH ETRELRAR

AN BB BV BREER MR
BRERERETERGHEE
EEAAEE G BRE  FEX
BEIEEITHRE A 8 NS E A
SE RN 2 B OF R B R AR
BRBEAFEZBRELMGEAZH
WS 4% BB M RE4 -

GENERAL INFORMATION

Speedy Global Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the apparel supply chain servicing business which offers a
wide range of woven wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear and sweater
knitwear products to a number of owners or agents of global
reputable brands (the “Apparel Supply Chain Servicing Business”).

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 28
September 2011 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law (2010 Revision) of the Cayman Islands.
The address of its registered office is at the office of Vistra
(Cayman) Limited, PO. Box 31119, Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way,
802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman KY1-1205, Cayman Islands.

The Company has been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 15 January 2013.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar ("HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622). They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

ARSI AR AT o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 WEELREHBELD ()
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2. 40
e

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continuead)
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the

Group

The Group has applied the following new and
amended standards for its annual reporting period
commencing 1 January 2023:

New and amended standards Subject

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
Amendments to HKFRS 17 Amendments to HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17 Comparative Information -

Initial Application of
HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimate

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform -

Pillar Two Model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Policies

Save for the impact of adoption of amendments to
HKAS 12 set out in Note 2.2, the new and amended
standards listed above did not have any impact on
the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or future
periods.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

2 mUEERSTBREH () 2

21 RBEE (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b) KRG ZAZIEETER R 52 (b) Amended standards and interpretation not yet
= adopted
RZEBEZ=F+=ZA=+— Certain amendments to existing standards and
HEBEME T TEBRAN interpretation have been published that are not
HRBEAMBT RRZ2E mandatory for 31 December 2023 and have not
BAREERREHM -ZFE been early adopted by the Group. None of these is
ZERTBEE T EEE AR K expected to have a material impact on the Group
WM AR EE AR ATE in the current or future reporting periods and on
BRORRRGEEERTE - foreseeable future transactions.

RT5 B 8%
ZERRNEE
B HEER
Effective for
annual accounting
periods beginning
on or after

RETEARRE

Amended standards and
Interpretation

Subject

BRRRBESE (KIEFT) BREREEST (KB HBHRENEN —ERA
HEeAREKERKINEHRETNHE

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised) Presentation of financial
Statements — classification by the borrower of a term loan

that contains a repayment on demand clause

—ZE-FE—-A—H

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised) 1 January 2024

BERGIHERER (BIIX) MBAERDEENE —ET-_mN¥—A—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of liabilities as current or non-current 1 January 2024
BERGIERER (BFTX) MERENFERDEE —ZT-_Hm¥—-HA—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current liabilities with covenants 1 January 2024
BN BRSERE 165 (BRIAR) ERMERNMERRE —E-_ME—-HF—H
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease liability in a sale and leaseback 1 January 2024
BRGTERETHR K HERRE 25 —ET-mN¥—A—H

BREMBRELEE7R (BFX)
Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7

Supplier finance arrangements

1 January 2024

EEGFERE25 (BFIAX) 7. B —E-RF—-H—H
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025
BEMBRELENFEI05R K BREFHRABENANAELELBNEELSHIRA 7€

BE S ERE28% (BFTA)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture

94 ARERIAEIRB R A A] o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

To be determined
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 mRBEERSTTHESSH (2 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

22 B REES 2.2 Changes in accounting policies

ER G ERE125 (BRI A K
BT EB SR ERIE125% 10 V)16 T
REABRWBE - EFETBERRE
E R F e R K A] H0RE B £ R
MR MHEEREEERM - HAt-
ERANRERIELENERER
RELEHEEE (EEB AW
FERBR ) MOEER R A (A

ERBERR  AEEE DR HEE
FEREEEMMERABELNER
ZR W ERMBRRME19RE
B RR R R BR o AT - X AE B IE
ERBERT AT B ERIZE2
SR E VIR E R U AR A B
B KT 2F B EIELTH AR
BREBETNENTE-

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer
applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences, such as leases
and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities
are required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided
that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred
tax liability for temporary differences arising from these
transactions.

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group has
determined the temporary differences arising from right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities separately, which have
been reflected in the reconciliation disclosed in Note 19
to the financial statements. However, they did not have
any material impact on the overall deferred tax balances
presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position as the related deferred tax balances qualified for
offsetting under HKAS 12.
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ERER

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance.

(@) Market risk

()

06 BRI AR AT e SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations.

Foreign exchange risk arises when future
commercial transactions or recognised assets
or liabilities are denominated in a currency
that is not the entity’s functional currency. For
group companies with Renminbi ("RMB”) as
their functional currency, foreign exchange
risk arises primarily with respect of HK$. For
group companies with US dollars (“USD") as
their functional currency, foreign exchange
risk arises primarily with respect of HKS$. For
group companies with HK$ as their functional
currency, foreign exchange risk arises primarily
with respect to RMB. The Group manages its
foreign exchange risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates.

The Group has investments in the PRC, whose
net assets are exposed to foreign currency
translation risk. Currency exposure arising from
the net assets of the Group’s investments in the
PRC is managed primarily through dividends
paid outside the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 HERRERE#E) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 BREBEER (£) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continuea)
(a wmHEEE (&) (a) Market risk (Continuead)
) SrEREE (E) () Forejgn exchange risk (Continued)

w0 Exposure

AEBENRREHARAR The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk
B HNES TR B i O (LA at the end of the reporting period, expressed in
TCHR) AT HK$, is as follows:

s
Foreign currency
AR EY Hity @it

RMB usD Others Total
TET TERT TERL FTET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

—E-_=f+=-ZB=t+-H 31 December 2023

BekB2EEY Cash and cash equivalents 4,089 20,615 858 25,562
B M B R L At MR IR Trade and other receivables 27,519 6,923 - 34442
ERRRREMENTIE Trade and other payables (5,894) (385) - (6,279)
ZBC--F+ZA=1+-8 31 December 2022

Re KR EEY Cash and cash equivalents 5,685 33,088 247 39,020
B W R 8 e A B MR Trade and other receivables 26,402 18,008 - 44,410
BB RERRITEE Finance payables and bank borrowings - (4,907) = (4,907)
FERTIRA R E A 08 Trade and other payables (17,724) (868) - (18,592)
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3 MEBEBRER#E) 3

3.1 BHEBEE (&)
(a) mHEmE (&
0 SMNEREE (&) (@
RIBHRERH T
FA-ATELHERES
BN RS AR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

During the year, the following foreign-exchange
related amounts were recognised in profit or
loss:

BZE+-A=1+T—HLEFE

Year ended 31 December

—_=ET_-= —E-=
2022
FH T
HK$'000

2023
FExT
HK$'000

S AHM Uz, (18) Net foreign exchange losses

" IE B 18 F 5R included in other gains/(losses)
(FFEE21) (note 21) (221) (4,095)
S ARERAESNE  Exchange gains on foreign
CR- AL ES currency borrowings included
(Bf5E25) in finance costs (note 25) 5 38
FARRPTEBAT Total net foreign exchange
E 1B TR FIE losses recognised in
BB loss before income tax
for the year (216) (4,057)
BRRE Sensitivity
REBFBFERFBERE The Group mainly operates in the PRC and
BEEEBE MAHLD Hong Kong with most of the transactions
RPUAFBI AR ([ A denominated and settled in Chinese Renminbi
R#]) -Ex(I%Ex]) ("RMB"), United States dollars (“USD") and
LA ERE E 5 HK$. Foreign exchange risk arises from future

ERBRE BEEER
Z FINBEEHRAE
NEINETEIGE F5E
AEEBBTHERL
REHER BRI
FERE - SIBINER
BRASEBERBERR
Hizm -BHek
MITHS ENERERR
Hi B 308 B 5 IE
NFBEBARIBITEEDN
FE ORESEEVTS
RARMEEI012 16
1718 EE -

08  AEmHERARAT e SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

commercial transactions, acquired assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. The Group manages its foreign
exchange risks by performing regular reviews
and arranges hedges against foreign exchange
exposures when considered necessary. Details
of the Group's trade and other receivables, cash
and bank balances, trade and other payables,
finance payables and bank borrowings are
disclosed in Notes 10, 12, 16, 17 and 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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3 UHEREE A

3.1 WHKRAMEE (&)
@ wHHEE (&)
Q) SrERE ()

BRRE (&)
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EHMEE R AR
FENKRITBRE LT
BEEZERBREAAR
BESHE R B R R R
Huh el R IEME X
Wz BREmLEAT
[% 491,074,000 7T ( =
T~ — 4 : 600,000
JT) e

RZE_=F+_A
=+—B METES
TTEREP5% (—F
—ZF:5%) BFfE A
BN AAFE
BBk ATIS R 1805 FI) 15 =
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(@

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Sensitivity (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 5% (2022: 5%)
against the HK$ with all other variables held
constant, profit after income tax for the year
would have been approximately HK$1,074,000
(2022: HK$600,000) higher/lower mainly as
a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of RMB-denominated trade and
other receivables.

As at 31 December 2023, if USD had
strengthened/weakened by 5% (2022: 5%)
against the HK$ with all other variables held
constant, profit after income tax for the year
would have been approximately HK$1,143,000
(2022: HK$1,892,000) higher/lower mainly as
a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of USD-denominated cash and bank
balances.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

100 RiEmrimpRARAT o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk arises
mainly from cash and cash equivalents, short-
term bank deposits, finance payables and bank
borrowings. Cash and cash equivalents, finance
payables and bank borrowings at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. Cash and cash equivalents and short-term
bank deposits at fixed rates expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group's
certain cash and cash equivalents, finance
payables and bank borrowings were held at
variable rates.

The interest rates and maturities of the Group’s
finance payables and borrowings are disclosed
in Note 17 and 18.

Management monitors interest rate fluctuations
to ensure that exposure to interest rate risk is
within an acceptable level.

As at 31 December 2023, if HK$ interest rates
on certain cash and cash equivalents, finance
payables and bank borrowings had been 25
(2022: 25) basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, profit after
income tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$154,000 (2022: HK$98,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/
lower net interest expense on cash and
cash equivalents, finance payables and bank
borrowings.
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3 BBRRERE#) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

31 MBREBER (&)
(b) EEER

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) cCredit risk

0 mEEREE
EERBIZARNEEE
B-AEBEZEERR
HREELECFED
1B IRTT 17 7R M R U B
N E A EUGRIR A E
- BEREECDEREE
BRI B R E s B

ZEEERR -%EHE

()

Risk management

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. The
Group's credit risk arises from cash and cash
equivalents, short-term bank deposits and
trade and other receivables. Management has
a credit policy in place and the exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis. The carrying amounts of these balances
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to

HhERAEALNEER credit risk in relation to financial assets which
BemEEZRRIEE are stated as follows:

B BRHUELAT

BE+-A=+-ALHFE
Year ended 31 December

—_Egq2-= —_=E-—
2023 2022
FExT FB T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RekBeEEBY Cash and cash equivalents 96,173 160,720
RHERITIF Short-term bank deposits 30,942 -
UG BR F N E b fE UL ZXTE  Trade and other receivables 62,370 71,160
189,485 231,880

R-_E-_=Frx_-_F

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, most of the

—ZHFE+-R=+— bank deposits are deposited with reputable
B KEHRITFE RS banks in Hong Kong and state-owned banks in
BEHRREEEERTN the PRC. The credit quality of cash and bank
MITEFREAEAR balances has been assessed by reference
TRe RIBRITHEHBD to external credit ratings or to historical
EREXRE2ZIBE information about the counterparty default
ARSI EBARZHHE rates. The existing counterparties do not have
KRB B R - 3R defaults in the past.

BERGARBEREN

Koo
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(0
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Risk management (Continued)

In respect of trade and other receivables, the
Group has policies in place to ensure that the
sales of products are made to counterparties or
customers with appropriate credit history and
the Group performs credit evaluations of these
counterparties and its customers.

The credit period of the majority of the Group's
trade receivables is within 90 days and largely
comprises amounts receivable from business
customers.

In order to minimise the credit risks, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up actions
are taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews regularly the recoverable
amount of each individual trade receivable to
ensure that adequate provision for expected
credit losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Group has the following financial assets
that are subject to the expected credit loss

model:

° cash and cash equivalents at bank

° short-time bank deposits

° trade and other receivables

While cash and cash equivalents and short-
term bank deposits are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.



RO SRR MYSE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 UHEREE A

3.1 BHEABEE (&)
(b) FEERE (&)
() EREERE

AEBRRAEEVER
ER e 40N LK i
EAHERBEEER
HUREERZ MBS

iR -

RITEEHBEEESE
W IR IR D #ZE R
B B R BT

K
DHRe

BHEBEERETDRZE
EERCE R HER
HEELEEEERLE
tEH -ELBEEEEE
HE ARRAIGERE
BRI RIGRIARE
MERBKEEREZNE A
K RTREIEE #L

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(if)

Impairment of financial assets

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for doubtful debts.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the past
repayment history and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.
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3 BKREBER @) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 BREBEER (£) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) =ERE (&) (b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) EHEEHRE (&) (i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
FEUCER X (#&) Trade receivables (Continued)
BRELEE R_F On that basis, the loss allowance for doubtful
—=#+-A=+—8 debts as at 31 December 2023 and 31
2%+ AH December 2022 was determined as follows:
—t+—HBMREEER
HBEEWT:

104

ZECZZETZAZT-A

BHERE

RELE-ERER
(F#7) (Hizt0)

FiERE(TEL)

31 December 2023
Expected loss rate
Gross carrying amount
- trade receivables
(HK$'000) (note 10)
Loss allowance (HK$'000)

s as
#i830R

H#iB1208

More than
120 days
past due

More than
30 days

Current past due

0.01%-0.75%  0.02%-2.75% 1.04%-10.05% 13.99%-17.03%
44,994 6,573 - -
60 57 - -

al-
#iB210A
More than
210 days
past due

a8
i#i8300A
More than
300 days
past due

100%

27
27

51,594
144

CECCETZAZT-A

EHEEE

BEAE-EUEN
(Fi&7) (W0

BERE (TEL)

31 December 2022
Expected loss rate
(ross carrying amount
- trade receivables
(HK$'000) (note 10)
Loss allowance (HK$'000)

fatd
8181208
More than
120 days
past due

More than
30 days
past due

Current

001%0.75%  0.04%-4.00% 3.61%-13.33%
57,935 8,924 165
157 5 17

]
#2108
More than

210 days
past due

20.20%

198
40

#H
183007
More than

300 days
past due

100%

27
27

67,249
246
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st B 5K 5 18 1k 1 B 4 )
EIERBERHRNT

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)
The loss allowances for trade receivables as
at 31 December reconcile to the opening 10ss
allowances as follows:

BE+t-A=1t-RLHEE
Year ended 31 December

—Egq=-= —_E_-—
2023 2022
FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
F7) At beginning of year 246 2,269
RIREHE Allowance for doubtful debts (102) 215
FRHMEET A Receivables written-off during
Z FEUREIR the year as uncollectible - (2,238)
FR At end of year 144 246
FEU R ARE (B =) Impairment (reversal)/losses on trade
SBREREERFANE receivables are presented as net impairment
5 RRER R, (E518) reversal/(losses) within operating profit.
R EE o {4 18 48 Uk B 5E Al Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
B2 Al A written off are credited against the same line
Rl—IEH - item.

AEEBGEEERR
EFHBER-AKRE
FHREHEESEOA
443,544,000 7T © 1k Z<
SEEE-_ZT_=F
+-A=+—BItFE
B #595.9% (— B ==
£F 1 524,106,000 7T -
193.3%) ° 1 K JIE Uk BR
S84 548,392,000
BT HZFTZ=F
+—A=1+—HHEK
BR SN AE A ABR93.8% (=
T F+ZHA=1+—
H : 61,759,0005% 7T * 1
91.8%) ° 7~ & & T i &=
P ES SR M R B IR SRIB 45
BEOKEREER ZEMR
EZEERE-

The Group has concentration of credit risk.
Sales of goods to the top five customers
constituted approximately HK$443,544,000,
representing 95.9% of the Group's revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
HK$524,106,000, representing 93.3%). The top
five trade receivable balances accounted for
approximately HK$48,392,000, representing
93.8% of the gross trade receivable balances
as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022:
HK$61,759,000, representing 91.8%). Collections
of outstanding receivable balances are closely
monitored on an ongoing basis to minimise the
credit risk.

%R « ANNUALREPORT2023 105



RO SRR SE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 UHXEREE A

3.1 BHEBEE (&)
(b) EFEERE (&)

() EREERE (&)
RESHRA AR Z H Al
TREE
KA B R E A
TREEREEMEI
RE-ANEERIEEE
B A5 3RS RO A
MIE A — R
1ty B A & YR TR B0 TR
EEER-

HEMEAEENEM
JE W 3R TR A 1T 18 Bl 5 A4S
PAGHER R B8 R
& I8 78 Y A UL 3 B i
H-BAEENESRE
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=+—H H®EA &K
T3 0% 2 B B W SR IB RE
R B kB EE R
TEK-

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(71)

106 AiEmripRARAT o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
other receivables. The Group applies the
general approach in assessing the expected
credit loss on other receivables according to
the requirements of HKFRS 9.

Other receivables known to be insolvent are
individually assessed for impairment provisions
and written off when reasonably expected to be
uncollectible. Indicators of insolvency, including
the fact that debtors face significant financial
difficulties.

The identified impairment loss on other
receivables that applied the general approach
was immaterial as at 31 December 2023.
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3.1 MBEBREE (&)
(b) EEmRmE(E)
() EREERE (&)

RIEEANERNERE
ERE (&) &8
FER
FA-ATEHERES
MEEAHENSENE
3 ATER

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Net impairment (reversal)/losses on financial
assets recognised in profit or loss

During the years, the following amounts were
recognised in profit or loss in relation to
impaired financial assets:

BE+t-A=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—E=-= —E-—

_—— [ —

2023 2022
T THET
HK$'000 HK$'000

WA (BE), B8 Impairment (reversal)/losses
—EWERFEEEME  — movement in loss allowance for

B8 (M:E23) trade receivables (note 23) (102) 215
—BEETHEZ - impairment loss on other

H Ath JE W SRR RVE receivables individually

E518 (B5E23) assessed (note 23) - 8,188
TREERE Net impairment (reversal)/losses

(#[) /BT on financial assets (102) 8,403
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3 BERRER#) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 MBEREE (&)
(c) mEBEZEE

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk

EENRPESRAREEER
RFEERFAERS LR
EEVMUREBRANEE
REBRRESHERESKE
THMEE-AEBENEE
XBHEES MBEMNRK
HARRITRERMHAT EE
BEge

TRREAWVIMAE DA
SEZIFTEEREBENSE
B EI B4R Rl 3 4 -

RTABEBESEHR/ALR
BERBeRE-W12EA R
MR SRR N EL AR T AR -

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities to meet
obligations when due. The Group finances its working
capital requirements through a combination of funds
generated from operations, finance payables and
bank borrowings.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on their contractual maturities.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due
within 12 months equal their carrying balances as

ARMRTEL TEX-

the impact of discounting is not significant.

PR-F -FZMER MEELER @t
Less than Between Between

Contractual maturities of 1year 1and2years 2and 5 years Total

SREBNENIMA financial liabilities TR TR F#x Tz

R-Z-=%+-A=+—-H At31December 2023 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FITE Non-derivatives

B IE 0R Finance payables 30,591 - - 30,591

RTEE Bank borrowings 65,918 - - 65,918
B I 0B R #R 1T Interest payments on finance

EBEFEMAR payables and bank borrowings 2,869 - - 2,869

HEBE Lease liabilities 222 - - 222

HEARFEMNRK Interest payment on lease liabilities 2 - - 2

FE 9 BR R E A FE A5 R Trade and other payables* 73,577 - - 73,577

Foh Total 173,179 - - 173,179

108 RiEmmiEmiARAT o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



RO RIS i = b5t
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 HERRERE#E) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 BREBEER (£) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) mHELER (&) (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
PR—F —FERMFN MEERER
Less than Between 1 Between 2
Contractual maturities of 1 year and 2 years and 5 years Total
EMALEIEHA financial liabilities THAT FTAET TET AT
“—“#+-F=+—H At31December 2022 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E NS Non-derivatives
B ST 3B Finance payables 43,301 - - 43,301
BITEE Bank borrowings 108,311 - - 108,311
B RS E1 3O KR 1T Interest payments on finance
BEEFEMAR payables and bank borrowings 2,049 - - 2,049
HEBE Lease liabilities 2,305 331 - 2,636
HEABENENR Interest payment on lease liabilities 52 4 - 56
ENERAREMEMZE  Trade and other payables* 71,832 - - 71,832
FEE Total 227,850 335 - 228,185
* T A M EN B EREF T *  Excluding other taxes payable and accrued payroll.
ﬁ °
MisE: RITIEERBEAENT LT Note: The interests on bank borrowings and lease liabilities are
W-_B =N B calculated by applying the respective applicable interest rates
+-A=+—BEBEANF as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 over the period up to their
EHE EEHIBARIE respective maturity dates.
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3 BXEBEREE) 3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 EXEHE 3.2 Capital management
(@ EEE®E (a) Risk management
REBNEAREBBEKGE The Group's objectives when managing capital are to:
e (RIEBEHERBELERE e  safeguard their ability to continue as a going
BEZEENRE N KM concern, so that they can continue to provide
A 448 /5 IR R 75 SR [B1 3R returns for shareholders and benefits for other
K R E AR ) & 5 KA stakeholders; and
@R
o HRHEMEREHEIN e maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
AR E & P o the cost of capital.
BTHEBIABERNLER In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,

110

AEBEAREERBEIN TK
ROBEE2H RABRREE
ER - BOTHBRIHERE
PURAE B 75

BELXZRENFERE
mABEAE BB FRRER
& B TR K PR B0 B 75
MR\ RITEELRHESR
ERBERRERAEEED
AR e IRTTERETE

BHE_ZET-_=%f+_AH1
—t+—HILFE ALAEHE
EFEeRN WEEARE
EEESIE

the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The gearing ratio is calculated at net debt divided by
total equity. Net debt is calculated as total finance
payables, bank borrowings and lease liabilities as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position, less cash and cash equivalents, and short-
term bank deposits.

Since the Group has a net cash position as at year
ended 31 December 2023, gearing ratio is not
applicable.

Rt+t=-—H=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-=F

—_E_-—
2023 2022
FET FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000

ReRBASEED Cash and cash equivalents
(FF3E12) (note 12) 96,173 160,720
RHIRITIE Short-term bank deposits 30,942 -
BCIRITEE M EN Less: bank borrowings, finance
HELHEAE payables and lease liabilities
(BF5E7 ~175218) (notes 7, 17 and 18) (96,731) (154,248)
FRE MR Net cash position 30,384 6,472
B Total equity 69,535 75,431
BELE Gearing ratio TEA TiEA

Not applicable

Not applicable
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3 B¥RRERE#) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 AFEME

AEEeREE (BRBEER R
HEEHE RERREEEY
REMBTER)REHERAR
(62 5 & A5 Bl 30 % L b A5 5K
B TS e IR BNEASRTT (6 & K B
HESEE AREIHARE
WEREEEE N FERE -

34 EHEHMEERESRARE

EAREB AT A AITHE S A K
ERReE TASBRFEEL
REIFABEREENGEAR
R-WHEERAENEHEKHE
WHEMBRRRRE L FHR - AE
B IR AT S B IR T 5
BELAIBEATNAFEESRE
o DI AESR R LA A

T EGEH R R A

mEMBHERFER GG BERE
H HRIVSGFANERGER - EEEN
FEEAAEE NS R BUREF L -

st A S FEFE - REDREE
SRBEEMARML BREAREHE
BYBRELXEREBRBBERATHERR
AR ARREMHTRA -

(@) BENHIRIEEFREH
EEMSHERGR F2ELEX
FlE- BEXHF AL RZ A
BRARGEEIEERAHBA LS
Rt B MR EFRIEERBE
RENREVCH ARAEZRER
EEHIRE PR Z PSP KR
TR

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets,
including trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and short-term bank deposits, and short-term
financial liabilities, including trade and other payables,
finance payables, current bank borrowings and current
lease liabilities, approximate their fair values due to their
short-term maturities.

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial

liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position
where the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts, and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting
but still allow for the related amounts to be set off
in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the
termination of a contract.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of
accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact
on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

(@) Current and deferred income taxes
Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income tax. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such difference will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provision in the
period in which such determination is made.
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EEBEHEH R ()

(a)

(b)

(c)

BN RIESEFR S8 (44)
EEER/T AR ZRATIA
JES 18 T AT A SR 35 R 2R PR ER B 7
AR ARZ SR ZEN
BMEBENELENREE -BERE
RERIBE TR -

FEZEEFE
AEEFEREREKM ERMK
FREF L B SR S R HH B
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BRI HER S - JHF 2 A &
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BROMARBEERUEEERZ
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Ez EBERRBE EFEHE
BLEFHFHMREEEL ZE
HimHBRERE L - BEEERS W
&R HEHFA L FGE

THMEERE
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MR RTEHEBRL R ZBRERE
EoAREBEMEEZ SRR MEE
A ERASEE  RIEAEHE
MES RITMREREREHR
ZHIEESRHELHE -FTRAER
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3. 1)y R A% ©

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Current and deferred income taxes (Continuead)
Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of
their actual utilisation may be different.

Net realisable value of inventories

The Group Inventory comprises of finished goods, work in
progress and raw materials. Among them, finished goods
and raw materials are subject to impairment testing. Net
realisable value of finished goods is the estimated selling
prices in the ordinary course of business less estimated
selling expenses. The net realisable value of raw materials
is the estimated selling price of finished goods produced
using this raw material less the estimated costs to be
incurred upon completion, estimated selling expenses and
related taxes in the ordinary course of production. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and
the historical experience of selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes
in economic conditions in places where the Group
operates and changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to changes in market conditions.
Management reassesses these estimates at each reporting
date.

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in Note 3.1(b).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

(d)

(e)

JUDGMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs to sell is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

Useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation charges
for its property, plant and equipment. This estimate is
based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in response
to severe industry cycles. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Changes in any of these estimates
could result in a material change to the asset carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements.
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(a)
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AEEZR=REEEREVER
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KEMEAEEKERI0%HIA LR E
2EPHUREEINT :

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

Revenue

The Group’s revenue is recognised at a point in time when
a group entity has delivered products to the customer; the
customer has accepted the products and collectability of
the related receivables is reasonably assured. During the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group’s
revenue was derived from apparel supply chain servicing
business.

Revenue from the major customers, which amounted to
10% or more of the Group’s revenue, is set out below:

BE+t-HA=1+—HILEFE
Year ended 31 December

—EgE-=F —=E=-=
2023 2022
FE T FHETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ZEEA Customer A 209,862 258,183
EFB Customer B 188,016 200,133
397,878 458,316

RAMBREEFRR T -_=F—
A—BEEAHNABERENE®
RUT 25 #) A523,0008 T (— T - —
£ 5,428,000/ 7T ) °

DEER
EREDERTELERRE ([X
BRERRE]EHNOREETE
BREDH TELERKERED
FERMFEEEDBOKRE I
ERRESARBRITES-

HE_T-_=FR-_FT-__F+=
A=+—BHLtFE AEBEEZEH
EREHEERBES -EREH
RSB IER—AE— &
DEEITESLS  E A TR HE MR
HHE - REEFER MIRHRE
7 5 A ARR o

(b)

The revenue recognised in the current financial year
relating to carried-forward contract liabilities as at 1
January 2023 was approximately HK$523,000 (2022:
HK$5,428,000).

Segment information

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision-maker (“CODM"). The CODM, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segment, has been identified as the executive
directors of the Company.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
the Group is principally engaged in apparel supply chain
servicing business. Management reviews the operating
results of the business as a single operating segment as
the nature of services, the type of customers for services
and the method used to provide their services is same in
different regions.
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5 WERIFER (&) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b) ZEESR (&) (b) Segment information (Continued)
AEFEzREEFZRAMAF The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from customers
(BREBBRFEAM) 2EF M located in China (including Hong Kong and the PRC)
AEBEBEHETERNPHE whilst the Group's business activities are conducted
T-AEEEREEFEHEE S 2 predominately in China. An analysis of the Group's sales by
HEDWTT geographical area of its customers is as follows:

-
2022
T T
HK$'000
H China 437,594 532,559
BOM K2 3k 32N Europe and North America 15,742 20,535
e e Other countries 8,995 8,703
462,331 561,797
REBBRIELERIEE E SN2 FETR An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets other than
PEE - REEMEHEED 25 deferred tax assets by geographical area in which the
W assets are located is as follows:
—E-_F
2022
T T
HK$'000
H China 3,377 5,627
RIpE Cambodia 5,942 24,610
9,319 30,237
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(c)

WEBANETHEER
ER#HE—RE LRI F T

AEBAEERZOREXRR &
HEERLERSBRLAZER
BRAMZmEEAEAIKEHE R
EmEsgEcER (NERXNT
EF) HERHEMEERER
EREENBE BXEAREY
EREEENLZETEMNRETE
ITHERHE XNRERCDESR
EEME BEFLBELXRREEE
EEF BHMEBEREHEERD
BEXEm BRGEXERB KA
SEAEEBREZEAMARUIRE
BERE TR%E-

EmAREAMSHERTNHEERR
FPAROBLETNSHREEmM-
ZEFHEREENHER B
BRIR G HEEN N REERN
REABE -ERBEIRNERRAE
HEEEEGE MR INERE
WHENERBEOB AT TS HLE
BIER T T IARER - SHE T MERN
Bt FEBEERN G -AR0BE
OBEMEEMIIN A MISER &
BRSTFHEEARETTE-

ERHIBERRINE mE R RE
REENRBPISNA FEBE—
BBy ] T ARERR - ok B B 2 (B
REARM

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(c) Accounting policies of revenue recognition

Sales of goods - Apparel Supply Chain Servicing
Business

The Group manufactures and sells a wide range of woven
wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear and sweater knitwear
products to a number of owners or agents of global
reputable brands. Sales are recognised when control of
the products has transferred, being when the products
are delivered to the customers, the wholesaler has full
discretion over the channel and price to sell the products,
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
wholesaler’s acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs
when the products have been shipped to the specified
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the customers, and either the wholesaler
has accepted the products in accordance with the sales
contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or
the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

The products are sometimes sold with volume discounts
and customers have a right to return faulty products
in the wholesale market. Revenue from these sales is
based on the price specified in the sales order, net of the
estimated volume discounts and returns at the time of
sale. Accumulated experience is used to estimate and
provide for the discounts and returns, using the expected
value method, and revenue is only recognised to the
extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal
will not occur. The volume discounts are assessed based
on anticipated annual purchases. No significant element
of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with
a credit term of 30 to 90 days, which is consistent with
market practice.

Receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required
before the payment is due.
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6 WX BMERRE 6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
HEXE HFEREE BLAZRE e RE L h)
Leasehold Furniture office Motor
Buildings improvements and fixtures  equipment Machinery  vehicles Total
FHET FHEx TR TR THx FHET TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
M=2--%-A-H At 1 January 2022
XA Cost 1375 18,55 3,257 5,900 80,834 565 115574
2ithE Accumulated depreciation 31) (16,379) (2,620) (5128) (£2.990) (5345 (7289)
EEFE Net hook amount 944 2177 637 772 37,844 307 12681
BE-B-_E+-A=1-H Year ended 31 December 2022
LE5E
FNREFE Opening net book amount 944 2177 637 772 37,844 307 12,681
EXER Exchange differences (75) (39 - (82 (366) (29 (591)
RE Additions - 76 9 2 1329 - 1,446
e Disposals - - - - (1,868) - (1,868)
FERY Depreciation charge (60) (937) (56) (387) (10,165) (129)  (11,73)
HEBE Impairment loss - - - (144) (2,186) - (2,330
FRERFE Closing net book amount 809 1277 590 191 24,588 149 27,604
RZBZZf+ZA=1-H At 31 December 2022
KA Cost 1,300 2,463 3266 5,816 65,901 5623 84,399
ZHFERRE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (491) (1,186) (2,676) (5,655) (41,313 (5,474) (56,795)
REFE Net book amount 809 1277 590 191 24,588 149 27,604
BE-E-=Ft-A=1-H Year ended 31 December 2023
LEE
FUREFE Opening net book amount 809 1277 590 191 24,588 149 27,604
ERER Exchange differences (14) () - (12) (30) (6) (63)
RE Additions - - - 590 - 373 963
HE Disposals - - - - (301) (187) (488)
FERX Depreciation charge (57) (154) (242) (26) (8.242) (299) 9,020
FEBE (K#b) Impairment 10ss (note b) - - - - 9,891) - 9.891)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 738 1122 348 3 6,124 30 9,105
R-B-=%+-A=1-A At 31 December 2023
XA Cost 1,286 2462 3266 6,426 65,566 5,690 84,69
2HAERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (548) (1,340) (2,918) (5,683) (59,442) (5,660) (75,591)
REFE Net book amount 738 1122 348 3 6,124 30 9,105
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6 ME -BMERREE)

@) NEA2EUBENROFERNS
wmF

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continuead)

(a)

Depreciation expense has been charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
follows:

BE+-A=+-RALEE
Year ended 31 December

—E2_= —ZF-=
2023 2022
THEx T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
$HE A Cost of sales 7,850 10,165
TR Administrative expenses 1,170 1,569
9,020 11,734

(b) M%E BERRBREER

RZEBE-_=F+=-_A=+—H'"
¥ BELEHEOREREBEIER
ERARRMBARHAREER
ARIREMBAR (KB HEE
EHENME BEREEED
2 RUE B 559,891,000 7T - H A&
BT =F+ZA=1+—HIEHF
EEZEE - SAHRAEEBSEL
BUBBZREREGHTOT:

TREJNEDREEADE BE M
RENREELBEMZ TERR:

Wzt (EEFHIBRES)
BEEMNE (5UE%)
BRELATRAIRE (%)

118

(b)

Revenue (% compound annual growth rate)
Budget gross margin (% of revenue) 7.1
Pre-tax discount rate (%)

Impairments loss on property, plant and
equipment

As at 31 December 2023, the impairment provisions
on property, plant and equipment mainly included the
impairment provision of HK$9,891,000 made on the
property, plant and equipment owned by the Company’s
subsidiary Splendid Gains International Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Splendid Gains Group”)
which suffered loss during the year ended 31 December
2023. The impairment provision in relation with the CGU of
Splendid Gains Group are estimated as follows:

The following table sets out the key assumptions for the
CGU that has significant property, plant and equipment
allocated to them:

BEEE
splendid Gains Group

6.9

18.2
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6 WE- -KWBERRKE ) 6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

b) ¥ BERZEREEISE (b) Impairments loss on property, plant and
(#&) equipment (Continued)
EREETIAABESAEZE it Management has determined the values assigned to each
FEFERINER: of the above key assumptions as follows:
GE BEEEEMRALE
Assumption Approach used to determine the value

Wik (EEFHERED)

Revenue (% compound
annual growth rate)

BEEMNZX (HRE®)

Budget gross margin
(% of revenue)

B i A B IR &
Pre-tax discount rate

BELEAFE2HRE - ReELEEM
2 F AE A 515,019,000
TomREEABMNCEEFER
H 18 £ A24,910,0007 7T ° & It -

RZEZ=F+=A=+—8"

ME- WELZEFEDRERS
9,891,000 7T °

EREER/ENER X ERR
ZEBAEREH K TEEHY
¥ BEERENREMNEMEX
&

HDORBRERR BREHMSEROUERBZE_ZE-_=F+_A
=S+ HLEFECHRANIEEBEHEE -

It is determined based on past performance, management’s
expectations of market development and confirmed sales orders for
the year ending 31 December 2023.

AFERABAFAREERENE L - ENRBERSEESMNB
TRAREBEHRKNIBENETE -

Average margin as a percentage of revenue over the five-year forecast
period. It is determined based on the CGU’s past performance and
management’s expectations for the future.

REREIIR S EA BN R ELEMTERE B TR -
Reflect specific risks relating to the CGU and the countries in which it
operates.

Based on the key assumptions above, the value in use
generated by the CGU is approximately HK$15,019,000
while the carrying amount of the net assets of the CGU is
approximately HK$24,910,000. Therefore, an impairment
provision of HK$9,891,000 was made on property, plant
and equipment as at 31 December 2023.

Management believes that any reasonably foreseeable
change in any of the above key assumptions would not
cause any material difference of property, plant and
equipment to the impairment.

119
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6 WE BEKRRE

(c) MELERAEAFH
PrETHZ A NMART A 2 A F B
ERERIATERFHNHEEH
(RBIEHERE)EITITE  BRIFZ
EREFNEERREAZEEE
NEBRETE D BREKARE

MnESE (NBRHESRE)
. g 204F
. HEEE 2E54F
(THHAskFEET 2 A
FHREE)

. GREEERE S5E10F

. PWRERME 3ZE5F
. 23 7E104F
. pat:] AT 55

BENBRERAIERAFHRERE
HIREEH UIFEERE-

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(c)

Depreciation method and useful lives
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost or revalued amounts, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives or, the
leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter
of their useful life or the lease term, unless the entity
expects to use the assets beyond the lease term as
follows:

° Buildings 20 years
o Leasehold improvements 2-5 years

(shorter of lease term or
expected useful lives)

o Furniture and fixtures 5-10 years
° Office equipment 3-5 years
° Machinery 7-10 years
° Motor vehicles 4-5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.
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7 HE

AR REAEEESEEANEEA
# e

(@) REREFBRRRERDHHE

RAEFBIMARIIR T AT FIER
HEARHFR

7 LEASES

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a
lessee.

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position
The consolidated statement of financial position shows the
following amounts relating to leases:

R+=—HA=+—H
As at 31 December

—E-= —E-=

2023 2022
TR TAET

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHEEE Right-of-use assets
gF Buildings 214 2,509
A Motor vehicles - 108
214 2,617
HEas Lease liabilities
mE Current (222) (2,305)
e B Non-current - (331)
(222) (2,636)

BE-T-_=FT-A=t—HL
FE - UEAECHEEE(ZT
ZZF AR -

ARER THERRTHAENA
EERE AFEFEHRAREEREE
B &R0 5 2 Bl £316,0007%8 7T
T ZF fE) &343,000% T
(ZTZZF:|,) -

There were no additions to the right-of-use assets during
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Same).

Due to the modification of the rental area of office in the
lease agreement, the amount of deduction in right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities this year were HK$316,000 (2022:
Nil) and HK$343,000 (2022: Nil) respectively.
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7 MWMEH 7  LEASES (continued)
(b) REEZHWRARBEIANE (b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income
FEEEBERYTT AT SIEH The consolidated statement of comprehensive income
HERREEFIE: shows the following amounts relating to leases:

BE+t-A=1t—HILEFE
Year ended 31 December
——— —Em— —

—_—=< —— —_—<

2023 2022
Ff FEx TAET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

FRAEEERERX Depreciation charge of
right-of-use assets

gF Buildings 1,979 4,017
RE Motor vehicles 108 281
2,087 4,298

FERZ Interest expense
(T ARMERA) (included in finance cost) 25 43 235

S EHEAMAMMAY  Expense relating to short-term

(FTASHE A K leases (included in cost of sales
THEFAX) and administrative expenses) 22 9,550 6,246
HEXEBEEEMRE Expense relating to leases of
(WEmR L35 A low-value assets that are not

CHIHEE)BEHEN shown above as short-term
X (FFATTEFEX) leases (included in administrative

expenses) 22 410 195
HE_Z-_=%f+-HA=+—H The total cash outflow for leases during the year ended 31
HFEE HERSRLEBENAE December 2023 was approximately HK$11,215,000 (2022:
11,215,000 L (ZF = — % : HK$11,802,000).

11,802,0007 7t ) °
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7 W&
(c) *EENEEETHRZEETY
LIFEPN-
AEEERZHARRERSEZ®WA

E-HEAHNNEHRABTEREETR—
ERF-

BRFREESHERIFEERD -
AEBERIFEBEBERKEHNK
EBOEEHERIFHERD - AW
RAEBELSAEANEHERE
ﬁﬁ? EE‘“ET D HREE RIEHE
By M REIERE - HER

)\EE‘J

HEZRENEERE REEERZ
N[ ) 1R R B AR o T B 15 R T B
wEMZE (REBEAMKEESR
EB’HEETW? Bon) - HEEET
SREEEER-

RETEEMERNE  AEE:

o ETRERTEAMERE
BABTESHE= RS
BB BE AR
AEBEZFREARBE
G

s FERRME BARETE
BB ARMBERENE
ERER (ROLESE =778
B)RBERRN X &

e ETHAOBENAE fi
HIRR B B R

LEASES (continuead)

(c) The Group's leasing activities and how these

are accounted for

The Group leases various offices and vehicles. Rental
contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 5
years.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real
estate for which the group is a lesseeg, it has elected not
to separate lease and non-lease components and instead
accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received;

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by certain subsidiaries in Hong Kong, which does not
have recent third party financing; and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.
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7 W&

(c)

AEENEERBRZEEE
WA A B (48)

1t {18 51| 2 FEL A PT E1S B A B 9 5RIB
AR LB B By P B 5T B O 8 SH B K
MECBEMMRELTSRIE)
AGEERESZMNEAEETIZE
fEEM R -

HENRBERREEANSMXE
B MREREEZME (ULBER
EEFERAKEEES) AR
PR AT A R 8 B 5A R - B1E
BIAEABERULERE N ER
BEEFHEEERONEE A
BOUER  ERAGHEAEST
WBASTTH R -

EREEERTREECASTHM
HEHmEPREERREREE
THE-MRAKEEAIEEEITE
BREERR UERREELRN
BENERSwARTE-

HAEEEEEREMBN R
BREGEZEBRSTHRINER -
BEEEEERREIAEARIERR
= o

LEASES (continued)

(c) The Group's leasing activities and how these

are accounted for (Continuea)

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to
the individual lessee (through recent financing or market
data) which has a similar payment profile to the lease,
then the group entities use that rate as a starting point to
determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with all leases of low-value assets
are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Low-value assets comprise small offices and
apartments.
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8 #E 8 INVENTORIES
R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—Egq=-= —_E_-—

2023 2022
FET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R Raw materials 26,347 20,887
TR Work in progress 6,997 3,948
RIRK GB Finished goods 17,399 29,392
50,743 54,227
B TR ERER S Less: provision for impairment of inventories (7,484) (6,080)
43,259 48,147

(@ BERAEIBERE (a) Assigning costs to inventories
FEERITE B KB i T 16 The costs of individual items of inventory are determined
KETE ° using weighted average costs.

(b) REZPBRIANVNE (b) Amounts recognised in profit or loss
BHE-_Z-_=Z=F+-A=Z+— Inventories recognised as an expense during the year
AFFEHRAEAINGTE A ended 31 December 2023 amounted to HK$340,238,000
340,238,000 L (Z & = = F : (2022: HK$455,220,000). These were included in cost of
455,220,000 7T ) © 5% F AT A sales.

SHERAN o

FEMREZER FENS R Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value
52,895,000 L (& = —F: amounted to HK$2,895,000 (2022: HK$392,000). These
392,000 7m) EREE-T == were recognised as an expense during the year ended
FTA=T—HLEFERRAE 31 December 2023 and included in ‘cost of sales’ in the
AW EFAGEEAKERFTH consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
[EHERA] -

AR AEEE S IR R IR K AR The group reversed HK$1,491,000 of a previous inventory
REBEEY BN T =F& write-down in 2023, as the group sold the relevant goods
[B] 2 B Y13 & 051,491,000/ T ° that had been written down at original cost. The amount
BOmSBEETAGEEERER reversed has been included in ‘cost of sales’ in the
FETSEERA] - consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

FR AEEBVELESAAER (= During the year, the Group has not disposed of obsolete
EF MR WERES B goods (2022: Same) and wrote off against the impairment
& F DA SE - charge provision.
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9 REHESMERMmTIE 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

R+=—HA=+—H
As at 31 December

— = — = — = — —

—_—_=—= —_—

2023 2022
B e FET FHT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

EWMEE Financial assets

IR ANETENSBEE  Financial assets at amortised cost

JRE U5 BR 5K R H b FE U SR IE Trade and other receivables 10 62,370 71,160
HERITER Short-term bank deposits 13 30,942 -
RehBEeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 12 96,173 160,720

189,485 231,880

R+=-—HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—=E_= — = —4F

—_=—= —

2023 2022
THT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000

tHas Financial liabilities

IR ENSBBE  Financial liabilities at amortised cost

JEERF R E M FETZIE*  Trade and other payables* 16 73,577 71,832
B 75 BB A5 5R0R Finance payables 17 30,591 43,301
RITEE Bank borrowings 18 65,918 108,311
HEAaE Lease liabilities 7 222 2,636
170,308 226,080
* T EEEMENHBERESTE- * Excluding other taxes payable and accrued payroll.
AEBEEBEESR TANSERRR The Group's exposure to various risks associated with the
M 535w il - 3R 45 B R = B R b A S K financial instruments is discussed in Note 3. The maximum
OarsEsREEMNREE exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the
carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned
above.
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10 FEUWBRF R H b B WSk IE 10 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
R+=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—_=E=E_-= —_E_-—
2023 2022
FTHExT FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEUAR K Trade receivables 51,594 67,249
H g skIE (MisEc) Other receivables (note c) 10,920 12,345
62,514 79,594
BB E R Less: provision for impairment
— FEBR 3K — Trade receivables (144) (246)
— H A E Y IR - Other receivables - (8,188)
62,370 71,160
AEEETEPHNEERBTE AVAE Credit terms granted to customers by the Group are usually 30
VH BEFXFEREEEDHRITRBR to 90 days and which are mainly due from customers with good
LREERNEF- R_TE-_=ZF+_A credit history and low default rate. As at 31 December 2023, the
—+—H EBUREFREZZAHNE ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on invoice date is
RO : as follows:
R+=—A=+-—8
As at 31 December
—E-= —_E_-—
2023 2022
FTHExT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
30HA Within 30 days 32,401 42,973
31£90H 31 to 90 days 19,152 18,873
91£180H 91 to 180 days 14 5,147
HBiE180H8 Over 180 days 27 256
51,594 67,249
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10 FEUR AR H £t FE WK IR (47)

AEBEERERNOE@ERAATEEF

128

&

10 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

R+t=A=+—8
As at 31 December
—=E-= g
2023 2022
FET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT 488 28,571
AR 42,638 20,808
ETT 8,468 17,870
51,594 67,249
(@ PEAEWRRRHEAEKR (a) cClassification as trade and other receivables
H
JEREER AT B B EBRATE I Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
EmEMETHRBERE,H goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
FRIE - H — R A30E90H M B #i 4 business. They are generally due for settlement within 30
B RAEHYRREEE- to 90 days and therefore are all classified as current.
JRE U5 BR 0 I H A FE W R IB W) P AR MR Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
BHEORESEER BEARE the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
B3 B JE YR SR N H At FE W SR IR they contain significant financing components, when they
N EER NEEFE EWERR are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
R B FE W IE H) B IR RIS 49 and other receivables with the objective of collecting the
RenE HLEEEAERNX contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
SEIRE SHPK AN 2 o subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
(b) FEWERF R H b EUWFKIEAF (b) Fair value of trade and other receivables
&
ARV IR RIBER R B E - & Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables,
RHEERAEEAFEMRSE- their carrying amounts are considered to be approximate
to their fair values.
(c) WERRE (c) Impairment and risk exposure

128 17 USSR A3k I L At B SR TR (B
MEMRAEEAZNEERRE
2RIMIEE3T -

Information about the impairment of trade and other
receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit risk can be
found in Note 3.1.
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11 FENRE 11 PREPAYMENTS
R+=HBA=+-—H
As at 31 December
—_=E_= —E -4
2023 2022
FET T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
ARV EHRE - NTE - Prepayments for purchases of
JEREm KRB raw materials, processing fees,
consumables and insurance 16,252 7,013
12 BEREEZEEY 12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
R+=BA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-= g
2023 2022
FET T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITRS Cash at bank 95,790 160,285
FEE® Cash on hand 383 435
96,173 160,720
REERe RBITHESROBEEDERAT The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and bank balances
A are denominated in the following currencies:
R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—_EB—-= — -
2023 2022
FET T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
AR RMB 14,444 32,921
BTT HK$ 59,089 94,008
E usbD 21,782 33,553
Hin &g Other currencies 858 238
96,173 160,720
ARBIRKITIEEIBEMISERLBNE RMB is currently not freely convertible currencies in international
o AR N R IMNE R i A R BE market. The conversion of RMB into foreign currencies and
B 78 = 0 B BT 28 4 Y H0NPE B I 38 B remittance of RMB out of the PRC, is subject to the rules and
ROEIREMR regulations of the foreign exchange control promulgated by the

PRC government.
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13 EHRTHER 13 SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS
R+=HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—_=E=E_-= —E-=
2023 2022
TER FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RREIRITIF Short-term bank deposits 30,942 -
R-EBE-_=ZF+-_A=+—H K&EH As at 31 December 2023, the Group holds the short-term bank
F5A M52 BER 1717 3K R30,942,00078 T - deposits of HKD30,942,000, which is with a maturity of 122 days
BEI2K BN _ZE-_WFE—A+—HE| maturing on 12 January 2024 (2022: Nil) and an expected annual
M(ZZEZZF: &) EHFEREA return of 4.68%. Due to the short maturity, the Group consider
4.68% - MR EAREBE - A EE R AT H that the fair value of the short-term bank deposits is the same
WITHERNATFER_T_=F+_H as the book value as at 31 December 2023.

=t+—HBH/EEEMR-

14 BERRGEE 14 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

BB RNERERAOT Ordinary shares issued and fully paid are as follows:

EREREE EER RORE
Number of
ordinary  Ordinary Share

shares Shares  premium Total
TAET THET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZZ-Z=FR-_F-_% Asat31December 2023 and 2022
+-B=+—8H 600,000,000 60,000 53,441 113,441
RZE_=F+=-A=+—RH A% The total authorised number of ordinary shares as at 31
3B I% 42 20 51,200,000,0000 (=& = = December 2023 was 1,200,000,000 (2022: 1,200,000,000) with a
£ :1,200,000,0000% ) * &M B £0.178 par value of HK$0.1 per share (2022: HK$0.1 per share).

(2 —F : 8RONET) °
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15

el

HihfR1E 15 OTHER RESERVES

ELfE ZERfE -GOREE ELXRE #ELE
Exchange Statutory  Merger  Capital Total
reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserves
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(FizE@)  (FED))

(note (@)  (note (b))
R-B-—£-5-H As at 1 January 2022 6300 11597 2,957 3872 2472
BN =R Currency translation difference (10,819) - - - (10,819)
EBEEERE Transfer to statutory reserves - 1,189 - - 1,189
WZ-B-Z—&#+=-H=+—H Asat 31 December 2022 (4,519) 12,786 2,957 3,872 15,096
fE 5 =% Currency translation difference (946) - - - (946)
B ETERE Transfer to statutory reserves - - - - -
R-ZZE-=%+=-8A=+—H Asat 31 December 2023 (5,465) 12,786 2,957 3,872 14,150

(a)

(b)

EEME

R B AR ) K o BB B R B Ao 4
BERAN ARENFTERQFA
RIBHEF R ERRZ RAKR
1 0 A 0 R AT AR R D BE R
EffE-PEELAESENE
DHATEMNBARNESTSE

)'j‘_':_o

AEBTZ2PRMEB LR BRET
B AR & RAGRNMK B TR
MO EEERE BEELHE
3 B TE & AN50% © 0K R 7 s 4R
ANFER A A DK A E
4o

BOtRE
AEENEHEESRER-F
—ZFEREAMKENE AR
PR B R B SR AR AR PR B AT AN A
BEENERE:E

(a)

(b)

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the PRC regulations and the Articles of
Association of the PRC companies, the PRC subsidiaries
of the Group are required to make appropriations from
net profits to the statutory reserve, after offsetting
accumulated losses from prior years, and before profit
distributions are made to shareholders. The percentages
of profits to be appropriated to the above funds are
determined by the board of directors of the PRC
subsidiaries.

The principal PRC subsidiaries of the Group appropriates
10% of their net profit as shown in the accounts prepared
under PRC generally accepted accounting principles to
statutory reserve, until the reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital. Appropriation of the statutory reserve
must be made before distribution of dividends to equity
holders.

Merger reserve
Merger reserve of the Group represented the difference
between the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the reorganisation completed in 2012 over the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange thereof.
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16 EFERMRHEMESRE 16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—Egq=-= —_E_-—
2023 2022
FET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
JERTBR R — B B = IB Trade payables — due to
(FF3ED)) third parties (note (b)) 69,504 66,525
JEETTE Accrued payroll 11,093 10,433
E e3R8 Other payables 4,073 5,307
EH R IE Other taxes payable 3,719 1,526
88,389 83,791
FEN R A EERBBTEREREZEIE Trade payables are unsecured and are usually paid within 30
OB NZIT - WEMERFBBEFRS to 90 days of recognition. Where trade payables are settled via
EIRAEE QRSN AREE R HRE - electronic cash transfer, they are derecognised when the group
EIESBUBA 3 REF A FRIEREAE has no ability to withdraw, stop or cancel the payment, has
NBRSMERENUARTEENER lost the practical ability to access the cash as a result of the
PNERREIEER - electronic payment instruction, and the risk of a settlement not
occurring is insignificant.
(a) ENERIFRHMESREZL (a) Fair value of trade and other payables
T
R JE A<F B R R EL i < 50 TE /8B A2 P The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are
M EREERR REA QT considered to be approximate to their fair values, due to
BREE- their short-term nature.
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16 EAERRREMENIE &£ 16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

(b) ENEFRAEER AEEE2MH (b) Trade payables are unsecured. The credit period granted
FEE M EEBRN F30E90A - by the Group’s principal suppliers ranges from 30 to 90
RZEZ=F+-A=+—H & days. As at 31 December 2023, the ageing analysis of trade
NHERFIZBEZAPMNERE S TN payables based on invoice date is as follows:

T
R+=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—=E_= —E -4
2023 2022
THExT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
30H A Within 30 days 29,888 33,764
31£90H 31 to 90 days 33,673 27,370
91%180H 91 to 180 days 3,068 523
Hi@E180H Over 180 days 2,875 4,868
69,504 66,525
7R B R AR R N H A e W R IE 2 The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other
FREIEN TS EBEHE - payables are denominated in the following currencies:
R+=—BA=+—H
As at 31 December
—_Egq2-= —=E-—
2023 2022
FTHExT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
AR & RMB 68,296 64,323
BT HK$ 9,736 17,209
ETT usD 10,357 2,259
88,389 83,791
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17

134

bl

Bt 35 PR Y FRTR

17 FINANCE PAYABLES

Rt+t=-—B=+—H
As at 31 December

TE e & ik, FE R &

current Non-Current Current  Non-Current

FHET THET T FHIT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

B 765 FE < 3R IB Finance payables 30,591 - 43,301 -
() HIHENFIBEEARR SEH A (@) Finance payables are linked to specific transactions. The

SERRTEARBAORER
W R RITI AR ERE A M
EREIRF - AR EFEBIRTTRE B
AR AREEEERPNAANS
KA B - AN FRHIR — RS
—HMER-ARFIRAERER
B h B B 75 e AN SRR A SR TT SR LR
(N

RZEZ=F+ZA=+—88mn
BEHERFNER34% (ZF
= +=ZA=Z+—H:234%)
BN 8 R BRE (A R SR
TEC=ER-E-—F+-H
—+t—HHNAFERE-

)

Group provides the purchase contracts and invoices
to the banks and authorises the banks to transfer the
corresponding amounts directly to the suppliers’” accounts.
The Group authorises the banks to withhold the principal
and interest from the designated accounts of the Group by
the maturity. The terms of finance payables are generally
three or four months. The Company provides guarantee to
the banks for the finance payables granted to the group
entities.

The weighted average effective interest rate per annum
as at 31 December 2023 was 5.34% (31 December 2022:
2.34%), and the carrying amounts of finance payables
approximate to their fair values as at 31 December 2023
and 2022.
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17 BABENARIE(#) 17 FINANCE PAYABLES (Continued)
(€ AEBEWIMEENFIEZRATEH (c)  The Group's finance payables are repayable as follows:
B
R+=—B=+-—H
As at 31 December
—=E-= g
2023 2022
TER FH&IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
—F R Within one year 30,591 43,301
FHEFRERERDENRNEE I & The above repayment schedule is based on the assumption
B R G 08 3R ZSRE R IR R that the Group has not violated any terms that would
IERE R ERAE o trigger the repayment on demand clause.
d) AEBEFBEMSFIBZERMAENLT (d) The carrying amounts of the Group's finance payables are
P EHEEE: denominated in the following currencies:
BR+=—BA=+-—H
As at 31 December
—EC-_=F —E -4
2023 2022
THExT FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT HKS 17,722 20,619
ETT usD - 4,870
AR RMB 12,869 17,812
30,591 43,301
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18 HRITERE 18 BANK BORROWINGS

Rt+t=-—B=+—H
As at 31 December

E FERE mE FETRED
Current Non-Current Current  Non-Current
FERT FER FAT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RITEE Bank borrowings 65,918 - 108,311 -
(@) MREBRITRE FAARITEERRE (@ According to the bank facilities, all bank borrowings are
el - MaziR1T MR ZRER subject to review at any time and overriding right of
BUEEMRERN - Bt e85 repayment on demand, therefore, they are all classified as
BnEaEe current liabilities.
b AEBRITEEAZRATFHE (b)  The Group's bank borrowings are repayable as follows:

E
NN

R+t=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—=E-= g
2023 2022
FERT FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
—F R Within one year 60,604 102,396
—FEWFN Between 1 and 2 years 608 597
MEERFN Between 2 and 5 years 1,960 1,903
BRAF Over 5 years 2,746 3,415
65,918 108,311
FHlEFREERDER TS BN & The above repayment schedule is based on the assumption
B R 08 3 R ZE SR E R R that the Group has not violated any terms that would
ERBBRERIEDL trigger the repayment on demand clause.
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18 RITHEE ()

©

FMERETNRZHFERFTE R
—E-=F+_A=+—HHM
BEHEBRFNER6TI% (ZF
&+ -—A=+—H:588%) °
ZERTEEAESHEEZE B2
E=—F(ZE-—F: —F==
F) ROTEEZEMERAER
TR =FERZFE_F+R
Zt+—HRNAFERESE-

AR R B2 BEEA TR
e

©

HK$

18 BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

All the borrowings are at variable interest rates. The
weighted average effective interest rate per annum as at
31 December 2023 was 6.73% (31 December 2022: 5.88%).
These bank borrowings are repayable by installments up
to 2032 (2022: 2032) and the carrying amounts of bank
borrowings approximate to their fair values as at 31
December 2023 and 2022.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:

R+=A=+—8
As at 31 December
—EC-=F —E -4

2023 2022
THExT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000

65,918 108,311
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19 EEHREEERELEHRESE 19 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX

LIABILITIES
(a) EEMEBEE (a) Deferred tax assets
R+=HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E_= —_=E-—
2023 2022
FET T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EHREEUTEEEEGYN The balance comprises
HWRFEEE: temporary differences
attributable to:
AR Bad debt allowance 24 61
FERERE Inventory impairment allowance 1,856 1,504
HEAE Lease liability 36 440
teesr Social security 766 1,015
2,682 3,020
RIFHE IR HE R Set-off of deferred income tax
FiEHAaR liabilities pursuant to set-off
provisions (36) (440)
EEMSHEREFE Net deferred income tax assets 2,646 2,580
EEMEEE: Deferred tax assets:
— 1218 A A Uk B & 5 IE FR IE - Deferred tax assets to be
BE recovered within 12 months 1,880 1,565
— 1218 A & Uk B &9 I JE 5 T8 - Deferred tax assets to be
BE recovered after 12 months 766 1,015
2,646 2,580

138 RiEmmiEmiERAT o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



RO RIS i = b5t
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 EEHREEERELEHRESE 19 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX
(&) LIABILITIES (continued)
(a) EXEMRBEEE (&) (a) Deferred tax assets (Continueqd)
FERE
SRR B HESE HER:
Inventory

Bad debt impairment Lease Social
Movements allowance  allowance liability security Total
TET THT THT THT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

W-Z--%-A-H As at 1 January 2022 690 1,400 1,348 1,119 4,557
ERZSE Translation difference 2 o - 4 2
RIEE (F08) /3 A (Charged)/credited to profit or loss (653) 108 (908) (108) (1,561)
R-ZZB--#+=-A=+-H Asat31December 2022 61 1,504 440 1,015 3,020
R-ZBE-=f-HF—H As at 1 January 2023 61 1,504 440 1,015 3,020
EREE Translation difference - @) - 2 -
RIEE (k) /3 A (Charged)/credited to profit or loss (37) 354 (404) (251) (338)
R=ZE-=%+=-A=1+-H8 Asat 31 December 2023 24 1,856 36 766 2,682

RZEBEZ=F+-_A=+—H 'K
& [F 3 £ 5t &5 18 4977,795,00055 JT

— T~ — 469,940,000 T ) HE
SRR I BT 15 B B EE #916,851,0007%8
T(ZEZ=ZF+=ZA=+—8:
15,203,000/ 70) + It Jh B A A E
REEBE TS A A KIERT &M A
VEHK SE B0 18 B5 18 o AR 15 4 & 0 0% -
BEENESHBETERALE -
I 4EE B A o 1 AR B P i 2 SRR SR
FERBEAIEEARRAEFA
8 H 5 Rl A 495,096,000/ 7T
11,477,000 7T ~ 14,180,000/ 7T *
24,950,0007% 7T 112,972,000 7T »
DRHR_ZE-_MF - —_FE_HF
ZERNFE ZELEFRFT
ZNFEER|H

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not recognise
deferred income tax assets of approximately
HK$16,851,000 (31 December 2022: HK$15,203,000)
in respect of losses amounting to approximately
HK$77,795,000 (2022: HK$69,940,000), as it is uncertain that
future taxable profit will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised. In accordance with the regional tax
law, Hong Kong profits tax losses can be carried forward
indefinitely and have no expiry date, while in Mainland
China and Cambodia income tax losses are allowed to
be carried forward to future years for a maximum period
of five years, which are approximately HK$5,096,000,
HK$11,477,000, HK$14,180,000, HK$24,950,000 and
HK$12,972,000 expiring in 2024, 2025, 2026, 2027 and 2028
respectively.
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19 EEHREEERELEHRESE 19 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX

(#) LIABILITIES (Continued)
(b) EEEHEBEERE (b) Deferred tax liabilities
R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E2_= —F-=
2023 2022
TERx FHE T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EHRERBUTEEEMNN The balance comprises
WRFERE: temporary differences

attributable to:

EREEE Right-of-use assets (36) (440)
IRFRIEITE Accelerated tax depreciation (15) (571)
BENGIGE Assets appraisal increment - (76)
ROIKM B A B A Undistributed profits of subsidiaries (1,209) (1,349)
(1,260) (2,436)
BB R T H IR Set-off of deferred income tax assets
FIiSBiERE pursuant to set-off provisions 36 440
EEFFEHAETEHE Net deferred income tax liabilities (1,224) (1,996)
EERESE: Deferred tax liabilities:

-NREARNFEERLEFIEAE - Deferred tax liabilities to be

settled within 12 months - -
-12EAESEERELERIBAE - Deferred tax liabilities to be

settled after 12 months (1,224) (1,996)

(1,224) (1,996)
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19 EEFREBESEERELEHRESRE 19 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX
(%) LIABILITIES (continued)

(b) EEREBERE (£) (b) Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

RO MM B Hit g
BREEE MEHERE BEFMERE DREF HEZE

Accelerated Assets  Undistributed  Other taxable

Right-of-use tax appraisal profits of temporary
Movements assets  depreciation increment subsidiaries difference Total
BT BT FHT FET FET TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZB--%-f-H As at 1 January 2022 1,348 1,202 149 1,624 273 4,59
SABER Credited to profit or loss (908) (631) (73) (275) (273) (2,160)
R-ZB--%+=-A=1+-R As at 31 December 2022 440 571 76 1,349 - 2,436
R-B-=%-A-8 As at 1 January 2023 440 571 76 1,349 - 2436
SAER Credited to profit or loss (404) (556) (76) (140) - (1,176)
R-B-=%+=A=1+-H As at 31 December 2023 36 15 - 1,209 - 1,260

20 HaA 20 OTHER INCOME

BE+t-A=1+—HILEFE
Year ended 31 December

— — = — = — —

2023 2022

Fi& T T T

HK$'000 HK$'000

AT 48 B Government subsidies 41 1,058
RKES>BENES KA Rental income from subcontractors - 47
H Others 421 416
462 1,521
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21 Htbkz(FE) —FE 21 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) — NET

BE+t-A=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-= —_E_-—
2023 2022
THExT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
b B EFE Net foreign exchange losses (221) (4,095)
HEWE - HELEHE Net gains/(losses) on disposal of
Uzt (BR) 38 property, plant and equipment 65 (1,407)
EREE HE s Gains on modification of lease
agreement 27 -
BEBE R —ZEFPTEMNNKIE Write-back of advanced proceeds
(&HERE) received from a customer
(contract liability) - 805
B 18] S5E AT B SE 2 FE HBR 3R Write-back of trade receivables
previously written off 597 -
H Others 56 395
524 (4,302)
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22 mMEESHEX

22 EXPENSES BY NATURE

A ER A 38 E I 8 R 2 DA R AT Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing

KR AMFEZ T

expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

BE+t-A=1+-RHLHEE
Year ended 31 December
D —aw— —

— = — — —_—<

2023 2022
TR TAT

BN QR ERREEED

P AR MR BB R A
ENNIEREREEM

EERAMFAX (MiE24)
HERHERMEBEE
ERMHAE SR (ME7(0)

W BB MR FERE (K EEe)

BEHMAY

KES

JE BN B 2

% EEH B &

BERBE

HERAX
GFERERETFE (K8

Hit (ffeEta)

HK$'000 HK$'000

Changes in inventories of finished

goods and work in progress 8,944 (3,227)
Raw materials and consumables

used, processing fee paid and

merchandise purchased 331,294 459,105
Employee benefit expenses (note 24) 60,176 63,972
Depreciation and amortisation 11,123 16,734

Rental expenses relating to
short-term leases and low-value

assets (note 7(b)) 9,960 6,441
Impairment of property, plant and

equipment (note 6) 9,891 2,330
Transportation expenses 8,220 10,436
Utilities 4,716 4,768
Entertainment expenses 4,372 2,959
Auditors’ remuneration 1,901 1,760
Professional service fees 1,655 1,234
Travelling expenses 1,531 1,625
Allowance for inventory impairment,

net (note 8) 1,404 392
Others (note a) 9,605 8,769

HEMA  HE R EHFRSTAR

Total cost of sales, selling

THZ 2% and marketing expenses and
administrative expenses 464,792 577,298
(a) HAXEZRE#ERMRERNS - REBRE - (@) Other expenses mainly comprises repairs and maintenance expenses,

BRI A EHER MEEMAX

insurance expenses, cleaning expense, office supply expense and sundry
expenses.
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23 SREERME (BE) EIEFEEE 23 NET IMPAIRMENT (REVERSAL)/LOSSES ON
FINANCIAL ASSETS

BE+t-A=1t—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—_=E_= —E-=
2023 2022
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REREAE (MEE3.1(0)) Allowance for doubtful debts
(note 3.1(b)) (102) 8,403
24 EEEANBEX 24 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

BE+-A=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-=HF —E-_F

2023 2022

FET FHIT

HK$'000 HK$'000

T& e s Wages, salaries and bonuses 48,846 50,346
EERAREEE T Directors’ and senior management’s

emoluments 6,321 8,501

e RERA Social security costs 2,879 2,327

& o ERL Welfare and allowances 2,130 2,798

60,176 63,972
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24

EERAMEX (#) 24 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued)
HE_ZT-="F+-HA=1T—HItFE" During the year ended 31 December 2023, the five individuals
AEEBRAEEZEHTATEEE(ZE whose emoluments were the highest in the Group included 2
ZZE2R)ESF-ESTHNMeEHR (2022: 2) directors. The directors’ emoluments are reflected in
M2 A - REBEE_ST_=F the analysis show in note 35. The emoluments paid or payable
T AT —HALFEEMAKEMNEE to the remaining 3 (2022: 3) individuals during the year ended 31
3B (ZZE-—F:3%) ALtHBiem T~ December 2023 are as follows:

BE+t-A=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-= — T

— = - =

2023 2022
THExT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000

HAFH & Hi R UAREYEF Basic salaries, other allowances

and benefits in kind 2,153 2,789
1B E mERIRET B R (MisEa) Employer’s contribution to pension
scheme (note a) 36 43
2,189 2,832
(a) RAEERE -_E-_=F+-_A=+—HI (@) There are no forfeited contributions for the defined contribution plans of the
FEMTHERTEMS  LESZRER Group available at the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil) to reduce
(ZZZ=F )R RREEHRK future employer’s contributions.
RN S B A AR | The emoluments fell within the following bands:

BZEZ+-A=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E_= —E -4

2023 2022
A
Number of individuals

SREM 48 Bl - Emolument bands:
1,000,000/ JT A T Below HK$1,000,000 2 2
1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,000/ 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1 1
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25 BIEWARBERKA 25 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS
BZE+t-HA=+t-ALEE
Year ended 31 December
e e

—_—_<—= —_—<——

146

2023
FERT
HK$'000

2022
TATT
HK$'000

BRI A Finance income
- REFBEFEWHREWA — Interest income on cash and
cash equivalents 440 977
— RESRITHE AR 2 WA - Interest income on short-term
bank deposits 2,750 -
3,190 977
A& A AR Finance costs
— UBENFRIBELRIRITEESNTE - Interest expense on finance
il & payables and bank borrowings (7,102) (6,144)
- BN/ EANAEAEN S RIE - Interest and finance charges
(53 paid/payable for lease liabilities (43) (235)
— HNEEEIE KRR - Net exchange gains on foreign
currency borrowings 5 38
(7,140) (6,341)
BB P A F R Net finance costs (3,950) (5,364)
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26 FriE® (&) BxX 26 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

(@) FBH (EBR) BX (@) Income tax (credit)/expense

BE+t-A=1t—HILFE
Year ended 31 December

—E_= -
2023 2022
FET FHE T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BNERPRTIS R Current income tax
—HEMEMER - PRC corporate income tax (“CIT")

(TEMBER]) 60 3,008
—BBNEH - Hong Kong profits tax 175 -
—RIFEFEH - Cambodia profits tax 230 -

465 3,008
BEFTSH (FTEE19) Deferred income tax (note 19) (698) (324)
ESH Corporate income tax (233) 2,684
FRETENAEH (F1FE19) PRC withholding income tax (note 19) (140) (275)
FrE® (%), BxX Income tax (credit)/expense (373) 2,409

() HBEHESFEH (i) cayman Islands profits tax
RNRARBEMNEAF S The Company has not been subject to any taxation in
SRIE - the Cayman Islands.

(i) EEFEH (ii) Hong Kong profits tax
HE_Z-_—Ffk=-ZT=_— Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime for the
F+_A=1T—HILFE" year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the profits
BREFESH MBS CEE tax rate for the first HK$2,000,000 of assessable
2,000,000/ 7T Ji& 55 7 4 7 &9 profits is lowered to 8.25% (half of the rate specified
FISHME T HAE8.25% (& in Schedule 8 to the Inland Revenue Ordinance).
TR GBI BT FRSATAR B Bl & Assessable profits above HK$2,000,000 continue to
2 —) ° 2,000,000/ 7T A £ be subject to the rate of 16.5%.

B FE SR 05 7 IS B R B K
16.5%F5
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26 Fi8% (&) Bx (&) 26
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(@ FmEBH (ER) BX &) (a)

(i) RAHZEFEH
RZTEZZF KXEBERR
HEMNEZEWNBAR 2 —
Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Co.
Ltd. (TAgile 1) 45 B %51 7 1
H-_Z-NF-HA-BZEZ
T _F=A=+—HHH
Z IR E R o A AN B
AgileE #EEZ AR (BIEE
HNHRE - FTRRMBINR
100,000 7T Kk £ B E 5t A
REEER-

1R 95 SR S HOE - MAgile ™
FERRREB G A
HIBIE20%F) 5 R ek 48
W 251% M) SR B (18 15 18
B (UBREERBE)H
R-BE_ZE_=ZFRK_F
T+ A=t+—HLF
B AgilesEERE BER
ERAEHDIZMBR TR
BEMESHALH BB E
BMFTIS TR R S R

(iv) HELEFEH ([1LEHFE
#/)
REEET R BT
MNERBCEMSHIIBER
R FIZ R R25% (2 - —
1 25% ) B o

(v) FEEHAEH (v)

REBEEMEREA HFEE
AEBEBINEBER QR T
BB BREMBHRALEE

REERAFEIERES% (=

T F 5% E R B
JB 2~ E BREREY B B A TR
i

ARSI AR AT o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continuea)

Income tax (credit)/expense (Continuea)
(iij) Cambodia profits tax

In 2022, Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Co. Ltd. ("Agile”),
one of the wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group
in Cambodia, received tax reassessments from the
tax authority for the period from 1 January 2019 to
31 March 2022. This exposure (including additional
taxation, penalty and interest) was settled by Agile
with approximately USDO0.1 million in the current
period and the amount was charged to the profit or
loss of the Group.

Pursuant to the Cambodia tax laws, Agile is subject
to 20% profits tax rate or Minimum Tax at 1% of total
revenue exclusive of value added tax, whichever
is higher, if it is not qualified for the conditions for
exemption of Minimum Tax. During the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022, Agile was l0ss-making
and, of the view of the management, maintained
proper accounting records in accordance with the
tax regulations that they are exempted from Income
Tax and Minimum Tax.

(iv) PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

CIT is provided at the rate of 25% (2022: 25%) on the
assessable profit of the entities within the Group
incorporated in the PRC.

PRC withholding income tax

According to the CIT Law, as there is a tax treaty
arrangement between the PRC and Hong Kong where
the Group's foreign immediate holding companies
are located, a withholding tax on dividends from
subsidiaries in the PRC has been provided for at a
rate of 5% during the year (2022: 5%).
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26 Fr8%i(ER) BX A 26 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (cContinued)
(b) FIBH (E&) BAXBFAS (b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax
(credit)/expense
The tax on the Group's loss before tax differs from the

AERNZIERRNAEEER theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rates

BalMETENERESE #1585 applicable to profit or loss of the Group's entities in the

NS respective jurisdictions as follows:

AE BB ATE BB IR A B %

BE+-A=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—Eo=F —_E_-—
2023 2022
TEx T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
bR P15 R A &S 18 Loss before income tax (5,323) (32,049)
REANZRDAERNAEE  Tax calculated at rates applicable to
BERERNHETENTIE profit or loss of the Group’s
entities in the respective
jurisdictions (1,307) (5,970)
WEBERELEMSHEER Tax losses for which no deferred
WIEEE income tax assets were
recognised 2,420 8,375
FRBEYNMmERELERIE Utilisation of tax losses for which
BAEMNMIEES no deferred tax assets were
recognised previously (772) (62)
BAMBTRBH KA Income not subject to tax (631) (131)
TRIOR R X Expenses not deductible for tax
purposes 57 471
BHHMEAEBFRENEAQR  Tax effect of withholding tax on the
AN aFNHIETE distributable profits of the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries (140) (274)
FTE® (%), HxX Income tax (credit)/expense (373) 2,409
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27 BREE

(@) EREXER
BRERNEBRAARERFTBA
EEFRBEERAFANEBTLR
g HEE -

27 LOSSES PER SHARE

(a) Basic losses per share
Basic losses per share is calculated by dividing the loss for
the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

BE+-A=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-=F —=E-=

2023 2022
T THET

ARRESFBAREFA

HK$'000 HK$'000

Loss for the year attributable to

EE (AT equity holders of the Company
(HK$'000) (4,950) (34,458)
B BT EmAR AE T E Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue 600,000,000 600,000,000
FREAREE (BT Basic losses per share (HK$) (0.0083) (0.0574)

(b) SREHEE
HRBE_E_=F+_A=+—
HIEFERATEABTHEESTEN
TER(ZE_—F 8) W8k
BEEBSNERELNEIS-

28 IKRE

ARAREEWE/ELRTREE -
=+ A=+—HLEFERB (=
T4 4E) o

=

(b) Diluted losses per share
As there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares during
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil), diluted
losses per share was equal to basic losses per share.

28 DIVIDEND

No dividend was approved and declared by the directors of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).
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29 MIBAF 29 SUBSIDIARIES
RZEZ=F+_HA=T—HHHBEA The following is a list of subsidiaries as at 31 December 2023:
AW

ERTR
EE SR BERAE FisEERRE D
Issued and

paid up Effective percentage of

Name of company Type of legal status  Principal activities capital equity holding
—EC-= —2__F
2023 2022

MEBAR-REBELZEE ((KBELES)EMAY HEBLEREERES
Subsidiaries - incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BV1"), operated in Hong Kong and directly owned

Higrowth Ventures Limited BRER BEER 1,000% 7T 100% 100%
Higrowth Ventures Limited Limited liability Investment holding UsD1,000 100% 100%
HERAEERAA BREMF BEER 1,001 100% 100%
Rich Vast International Limited Limited liability Investment holding USD1,001 100% 100%
ETLBREBRAF BREMF BEER 1,001 100% 100%
Mega Dollar Investment Limited Limited liability Investment holding UsSD1,001 100% 100%
BEBAEERAF BREMF BEER 1,225% 7T 100% 100%
Splendid Gains International Limited Limited liability Investment holding UsD1,225 100% 100%
Hanson Global International Limited BRER REER 100% 7T 100% 100%
Hanson Global International Limited Limited liability Investment holding usb100 100% 100%
BEEREBAF BRER REZR 1% 100% 100%
Portbase Holdings Limited Limited liability Investment holding usb1 100% 100%

MEAR-RPRFMALIKEERBERS
Subsidiaries - incorporated and operated in the PRC and indirectly owned

REBERENAKERRA HNEBERE MREMEERBES 40,000,000/ T 100% 100%

Dongguan Speedy Garment Manufacturing Wholly foreign owned  Apparel Supply Chain -~ HK$40,000,000 100% 100%
Company Limited enterprise Servicing Business

BEHK (R5E)FRDA INEBERE AREt ftPESR RS EH 10,000,000 T 100% 100%

(BHEEREEX (EMERLR)

Koyip Garment (Dongguan) Manufactory Wholly foreign owned  Apparel Supply Chain ~ HK$10,000,000 100% 100%
Ltd. (formerly as Koyip Garment (Huizhou) enterprise Servicing Business
Manufactory Ltd.)
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29 MIBAT (£) 29 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

ERTR
v 8 R TEER BERA FEERERESL
Issued and

paid up Effective percentage of
Name of company Type of legal status  Principal activities capital equity holding
—E-= —ET--F

— =

2023 2022

MELAR-RERIMAIREERBERES
Subsidiaries - incorporated and operated in Hong Kong and indirectly owned

ARBREKR (BE)ERRAA BREME AR5 it P S IR 75 £ 75 10,0007 7T 100% 100%

Speedy Garment Manufacturing (Hong Kong)  Limited liability Apparel Supply Chain HK$10,000 100% 100%
Limited Servicing Business

BEEE (AR)BERRA BREMF REEEERSES  1,000,000% T 100% 100%

Jointex Garment Manufactory Limited Limited liability Apparel Supply Chain  HK$1,000,000 100% 100%
Servicing Business

BEHXERAT BREMF AR5 it PR SR IR 7S 2 75 10,0007 7T 100% 100%

Goalwill Garment Manufactory Limited Limited liability Apparel Supply Chain HK$10,000 100% 100%
Servicing Business

EREE (BE)AERRA BREMF AR5 it PR SR IR 7S 2 75 10,0007 7T 100% 100%

Pageant Enterprise (Hong Kong) Limited Limited liability Apparel Supply Chain HK$10,000 100% 100%
Servicing Business

EELEBRAA BREM MRE B R £ 10,0007 7T 100% 100%

Well Faith Enterprise Limited Limited liability Apparel Supply Chain HK$10,000 100% 100%
Servicing Business

HEAFA-RRERSIMA L REBLERBEES
Subsidiary - incorporated and operated in Cambodia and indirectly owned

Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited AR & T PREMEHREEL 50000005 T 100% 100%
Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited ~ Limited liability Apparel Supply Chain USDS5,000,000 100% 100%
Servicing Business
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30 REREEH

(a) REMBHRE

30 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a) Cash generated from operations

BE+t-HA=1+—HILEFE
Year ended 31 December

—_ 2= -
2023 2022
FTHExT FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FREE Loss for the year (4,950) (34,458)
RTINS EELFHE: Adjustments for:
— Fi8% () BxX - Income tax (credit)/expense (note 26)
(K5E26) (373) 2,409
— JTE R (MiFE22) — Depreciation & amortisation
(notes 22) 11,123 16,734
— W BERERBREAE — Impairment of property, plant and
(Hf3E6) equipment (note 6) 9,891 2,330
- HEWE BERZE - Net (gains)/losses on disposal of
(ki) /B85 property, plant and equipment
(Mf5E21) (note 21) (65) 1,407
— BB (MI5E25) — Finance income (note 25) (3,190) 977)
— BERKA (MFE25) - Finance costs (note 25) 7,140 6,341
— BN EEREE (MFsE21) - Net foreign exchange losses (note 21) 221 4,095
—Eoek—E2E5F - Write-back of advanced proceeds
TEfS 5RE (MEE21) received from a customer (note 21) - (805)
— FERERE (MH:F22) - Allowance for inventory impairment
(note 22) 1,404 392
— (#[E) FEEREEEME - (Reversal)/accrual of allowance for
(P 7E23) doubtful debts (note 23) (102) 8,403
— ERHEEwE N E - Gains on modification of lease
(Ff&E21) agreement (note 21) (27) -
LEB IR L Operating profit before working capital
changes: 21,072 5,871
- FE - Inventories 3,484 (4,628)
— EWER R EMEWFIE - Trade and other receivables 9,506 44,636
— JBEIE - Prepayments (9,239) 10,045
— ENERREMENMNZIE - Tade and other payables 4,598 (28,592)
- GH8aRE — Contract liabilities 486 (4,905)
LEMBIRE Cash generated from operations 29,907 22,427
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30 REREEHR (&)

(b) EHARERERT HEWE
B M ERBREHRAEBRE:

30 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds
from disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise:

BE+-_A=1+-HALEE
Year ended 31 December

—_EFE_= —=E-—

2023 2022

FTHExT FHT

HK$'000 HK$'000

BRELFE (FIEEs) Net book amount (note 6) 488 1,868
HEWE MELE#BIKE,  Netgains/(losses) on disposal of
(E18) %8 (Max21) property, plant and equipment

(note 21) 65 (1,407)

HEWE - HELEZBEMS Proceeds from disposal of property,
IR plant and equipment 553 461

(c) REFBEYR

(c) Net cash reconciliation

R+=—B=+—H
As at 31 December
—Egq=-= —_E_-—
2023 2022
TExT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
ReRBEEEBY Cash and cash equivalents 96,173 160,720
FRHEIRITIF R Short-term bank deposits 30,942 -
B 75 B 5 5R0E — Finance payables — repayable
ER—FNEE within one year (30,591) (43,301)
RITEE— Bank borrowings - repayable
R —FANEE within one year (65,918) (108,311)
HEAaE— Lease liabilities — repayable
ER—FRNEER within one year (222) (2,305)
HEARE- Lease liabilities — repayable
ER—FRER after one year - (331)
e FHE Net cash 30,384 6,472
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30 HEREER (&) 30 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)
(c) REFHEEER (&) (c) Net cash reconciliation (Continued)

8E REEBFEEE
Assets Liabilities from financing activities
MERDH
BeRRE BHRT MERIH MERIH NUBEN MERIH
ZEN #H MHEEGRE MHHEEEE RE MRTEE

Lease Lease Finance Bank

Cash Short- liabilities liabilities  payables borrowings

and cash  termbank due within  due after due within  due within
equivalents deposits 1 year 1 year 1 year 1 year Total
THT THL T THT THL TEL THEL
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000

WZE2--%-F-HZ2 Net debt as at

BEFE 1 January 2022 193,107 - (4,477) (2,636) (83,562) (109,437) (7,005)
Remeg Cash flows (29,846) - 4477 - 40,261 1,126 16,018
5 AR Foreign exchange

adjustments (2,541) - - - - - (2,541)
g2 Transfer - - (2,305) 2,305 - - -
HinZE) Other changes

MERX Interest expense - - (235) - (2,797) (3,309) (6,341)

FERF (2305 Interest payments

LERETE) (presented as
operating cash flows) - - 235 - 2797 3,309 6,341

WZZE-Z#+-A=+-H Netcashasat
ZBEFE 31 December 2022 160,720 - (2,305) (331) (43,301) (108,311) 6,472

R-E-=%-F-A2 Net cash as at

REFH 1 January 2023 160,720 - (2,305) (331) (43,301) (108,311) 6,472
Reneg Cash flows (63,443) 30,942 2,071 - 12,710 42,393 24,673
EiEE Foreign exchange

adjustments (1,104) - - - - - (1,104)
g2 Transfer - - (331) 331 - - -
Hitn 23 Other changes

REBR Lease modification - - 343 - - - 343

FlERx Interest expense - - 3) - (1,726) (5,371) (7,140)

FERF (2305 Interest payments

LERETE) (presented as operating
cash flows) - - 43 - 1,726 5371 7,140

W=ZE-=%+-A=1-H Netcashasat
ZBEFE 31 December 2023 96,173 30,942 (222) - (30,591) (65,918) 30,384
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31

32

156

REHEERE

REEHAAIHELLEHE NEER
K EHEEFRBEMNT

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group's future aggregate minimum lease payments under
short-term non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Rt+t=—H=+—H
As at 31 December
—E_= ===
2023 2022
FE T THET
HK$'000 HK$'000
—F R Within 1 year - 3,699
HAREBIE 32 CONTINGENCY

RZBEZ=F+=A=Z++tH ARA
B — KM B A A Bt H 2 Ehad s Uk B SR
SRR A R o IR IE SR I B E
Bl BT AR HER AN 8l
B8 B 1L20%F) 15 B B 2 ok AR UL ZR 1% /Y
SEM(TEEER) (LREEAE)
BUNFTSR - AEBZ B EHRBRER (T
BIE SR R A B & 7 %9 A200,000% 7T
(FHE R 491,600,000/ 70 ) °

AEBRRRBHRRBEEN G E
RIE - WHREHBR H L5 - HEHRG
WRAR) At g Al e E A HBERM ISR
EYTERAT EAKERS  HA%
ERE A AN E L R IR
BAARBEELBAEE Bt A&EE
WARRRBEEN LA FHBRZEFEE
B RAR At

On 27 December 2023, a subsidiary of the Company has
received a letter from the tax authority in Cambodia regarding
its accounting records. Under the Cambodian tax regulations,
an entity has an obligation to pay Income Tax at 20% of taxable
profit or Minimum Tax at 1% of total revenue exclusive of value
added tax, whichever is higher, if the entity is not qualified for
the conditions for exemption of Minimum Tax. The potential
tax exposure (excluding penalty and interest) of the Group is
estimated to be approximately USD0.2 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$1.6 million).

The Group considers that the Cambodia tax authorities’ position
is unfounded and has challenged their assertion. It is not
practical to estimate the potential financial effect of the above
assertion of the tax authorities but the Group considers that it
is not probable that a material liability will arise if the Group can
well defend its position with the tax authorities. Therefore the
Group has not recognised a provision in relation to the above
assertion of the tax authorities in these consolidated financial
statements.
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33 ERBEFIRS 33 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

AEENEBERERERQR/EXR
ERAR R A (758 e XA 5 R A
) HFFH AR AI5A.54% M0 - A& E
BB AL RITRERREERELE
(TEEZED -

MEFR S BENERAMEREHEM
AR RERMETASEL T B REE
RREHEBMEAZE N AZTHK
BRAERE-

ARNBEERE LTI RALAR
BE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=+—BILtFE
EAREBHEITEAR SN EEHIEE
Valk

A/ AE

The immediate and ultimate holding company of the Group is
Sky Halo Holdings Limited (incorporated in the BVI), which owns
54.54% of the Company’s shares. The ultimate controlling party
and chief executive officer of the Group is Mr. Huang Chih Shen
("Mr. Huang").

Parties are considered to be related if one party has, directly
or indirectly, the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other parties in making financial
and operating decisions.

The directors of the Company are of the view that the following
companies and individuals were related parties that had
significant transactions or balances with the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2023:

BEEBENER

Company/Individual

REMRENXEEBRAG ([REXE]) (M)
(Dongguan Shi Tianai Property Management Company Limited)

("Dongguan Tianai") (note)
BEBERARAT ([FHE])

(Master Trend Garments Ltd.) ("Master Trend”)

TERKX (BN BRRA ([£EFM])

(Jinfeng Garment (Huizhou) Company Limited) (“Jinfeng Huizhou")
B aESRX (BN BRAF ([MEREM])
(Yicheng Weaving Garment (Huizhou) Company Limited)

("Yicheng Huizhou")
BEBERXERAR ([BEAE]D

(Shing Fun Knitting & Garment Limited) (“Shing Fun Knitting”)

M B-F_=FAA-F+=AR REXET
BREESERARRRS RETEARE
EwRAED

Relationship with the Group

BEEERERRES
Controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother

& S R L R
Controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother
HELERA L RES
Controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother
&S RH L R
Controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother

BB ST A R A M aR 2
Controlled by Mr. Huang and his sister

Note: Dongguan Tianai was no longer controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother,
hence no longer a related-party of the Group starting from 23 May 2023.

) o ANNUALREPORT2023 157



iR ORI i = b 5t
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33 EXBEFRS (#) 33 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(a) BAEFRXEF (a) Related party transactions
MR Bk M ETREEIN Saved as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
REBEZZE_=F+=_F=+— during the year ended 31 December 2023, the following
HIEFE ANEBEGEMEFET transactions were carried out between the Group and
UTRG - ARAEERR BE related parties. In the opinion of the directors of the
FRGTINABERBEPET Company, the related party transactions were carried out
BBGEF TR R E BB E T in the normal course of business and at terms negotiated
7 o between the Group and the respective related parties.

BEt+t-A=1+-BLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E=-= —E -4
2023 2022
FET AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
() JETELE 171525 () Short-term lease expenses
HEFS payable or paid to
RERE Dongguan Tianai 1,600 6,022
5 B s Shing Fun Knitting 120 140
e Master Trend 120 140
g =M Jinfeng Huizhou - 41
BB M Yicheng Huizhou - 19
1,840 6,362
(b) SREEETH (b) Senior management's compensations

BZE+t-A=1+—HIEE
Year ended 31 December

—E2-= —FE-_—
2023 2022
FE T FH T
HK$'000 HK$'000

TERFUREMEYEHA  Wages and salaries and

other benefits in kind 7,600 8,429
ft& R R Social security costs 72 72
7,672 8,501
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3 KATFMBERRRR FHEEE 34 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

R+=B=+-—H
As at 31 December
—_Egq2-= —_=E-
2023 2022
B 5 FTHExT T T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
IRBEE Non-current assets
KRB AR ZIEE Investments in subsidiaries 46,868 55,360
REEE Current assets
AR RIE Prepayments - 151
= A& Other receivables 63,869 70,458
RehBEeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 59 61,325
63,928 131,934
EEAE Total assets 110,796 187,294
R EQUITY
EAREEREEA Equity attributable to equity
PEfLRE R holders of the Company
[N Share capital 60,000 60,000
f&1nm B Share premium 53,441 53,441
H S Other reserve (b) 46,837 46,836
Byt Accumulated losses (a) (180,330) (172,047)
(20,052) (11,770)
aE LIABILITIES
REBEE Current liability
H b e3R8 Other payables 130,848 199,064
REZHERER Total equity and liability 110,796 187,294
AARFBRAKRER-ZZE-_NF=A The statement of financial position of the Company was
“tHNNHBAESEEHETHILTRESR approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2024 and was
Fo signed on its behalf.
BER EET®
Huang Chih Shen Huang Li Hun, Serlina
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34 ARRUBRRAKRRRAEE B
(%)

(@ AAFRRFAEREH

34 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(@) Movement of accumulated losses of the
Company

THET
HK$'000

R-—E-_—_F—H—H As at 1 January 2022 (1,142)
FREE Loss for the year (170,905)
R-ZE-_—_F+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2022 (172,047)
R=-—ZTE=-=%—-H—H As at 1 January 2023 (172,047)
FAEE Loss for the year (8,283)
R-ZE-_=%+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2023 (180,330)

HE-_T-_=—FR-FT-_F+=
A=+ BLFEBEIERAR
ARRRNAFEERERWB AR Z
REERORERE EHAFE
REBGRAVBEELEZE-

(b) HtbfEfE
ARREMEFEERE-T——F
SRR B PTIEE HTE A BRI E
PR BB BE B M BT IRAR
MWEEZ B E5E-

The loss for the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022
were mainly attributable to the impairment provision
recognised by the Company during the year for its
investments in subsidiaries, which did not have impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial results during the year.

(b) Other reserve
Other reserve of the Company represented the difference
between the investment cost in the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the reorganisation completed in 2012 over the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange thereof.
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35 EERTETHRAEME

BE-_B-=f{+-B=t-HLEE

35 DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2023

EEmERKEF
FHEHR
Employer's
contribution to
a retirement
benefit scheme
TET
HK$'000

Ezfis e g7

Directors'
Fees
TR
HK$'000

Discretionary
bonus
TARL

HK$'000

Total
TARL
HK$'000

Salary
ThART
HK$'000

HiTEE Executive directors

B (M) Mr. Huang (note (i) - 3,402 - 18 3,420

BELUL Ms Huang Li Hun, Serlina - 1,430 - 18 1,448

BUHHTEE Inciependent non-executive directors

Eha i Mr. Wong Ting Kon 180 - - - 180

gzt Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 180 - - - 180

RAERE Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 180 - - - 180

R B L (M) Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny (note (i) 15 - - - 15

RIER A (BIFEGD) Mr. Chan Tsang Mo (note (i) 60 - - - 60
615 4,832 - 36 5,483

BE-R-CFT-A=T-RALEE

Year ended 31 December 2022

ek 54 [BiEZAN

contribution to
a retirement
benefit scheme

Directors'
Fees
TAL
HK$'000

Discretionary

bonus

TET T
HK$'000

Total
FHT
HK$'000

HirEE Executive directors

BEE () Mr. Huang (note (i) - 3793 300 18 4111
ERLAL Ms Huang Li Hun, Serlina - 1,430 - 18 1,448
BUAHTEE Independent non-executive directors

EFERTE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 180 - - - 180
[k Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 180 - - - 180
ROELE Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 180 - - - 180
REWEL Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny 180 - - - 180

720 5223 300 36 6,279

B 5 - Notes:

(i)

(iii)

BRERARATRER -BEEEVREE
TEC=F+ A=+ -RILEFERERR
EREEAME (ZT=—F:8) -

R-ZEZ=F—A=+—8 BRirWwHEL
HEBUEATESTIR _ZS=_=FN\A
=+ —HRERCERSTABILIENTE
E Bt zINEBEZSZ=FR=_T =
E+ZA=+-—ALEE BEAATES
BEE BT

HE-_Z-_=F+-A=+—HILFE XK
SEBEAES I HEAMNE  EARSIK
SN A BANA 7R £R BB ) AR B 3 1 B B B A
B(ZF==F:8\)-

(i)

(iii)

Mr. Huang is the chief executive officer of the Company. No director has
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: Nil).

On 31 January 2023, Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny retired as an Independent
non-executive director and Mr. Chan Tsang Mo was appointed as an
Independent non-executive director later on 31 August 2023. Except this, no
director of the Company was appointed/resigned during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office (2022: Nil).
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35 EERFETHRAENE (&)

162

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EEENKFE
TERESTEEARRZEWER
B EEATIREMEMBREME R
FENZERFZ(ZE ==

| o

EERIEBRBENSFRIF =
FN AR E SRR RIEK
A 1EBESRAEERERL
RIGHEE(ZE_FE) -

REMEEREMEAE=FX
TR E
MERE-—ZATRENRFES
R (R EEEEERB AL
SHRBE) MENKEMEAE=
FRRE(ZEZZF:8]) -

EX ZESZANZEAERE
REESFHENERBZERK
BUERURERZZEALTH
FRIEEF REFEHAX
AEBREEEEHENERZE
FBUERARERZEALH
HMXZHBER (2T ==

') o

ESHEXS RHEIEHFH
EAER

B mEREMELPAREEIN
RERE T -_=FFREMEK
B NEBMERT TP RAE
BEBMARRZESTHERAME
EETFHRAEBEARSECEER S
ZHREH(ZEZZF )

35 DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any
directors in respect of their other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiary undertaking (2022: Nil).

Directors’ termination payments or benefits
No payment was made or benefit provided to directors as
compensation for the early termination of the appointment
or in respect of termination of the services of directors
during the year (2022: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

No consideration was provided to or receivable by any
third party for making available the services of a person as
a director of a company, or in any other capacity while as a
director (2022: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors.

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors during the year
(2022: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
no significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year 2023
(2022: Nil).
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36

HtERSTBREE

A FRBERUZEREMBRERF
Rz EmMmBEE RSB REE B
SEHRPIN ZEBERFAEEINNFE
WERER B -ZEVBREXRDAR
SE(BARRIKENMBRARIANK) R
8o

(@) &HFRAIREDS AR

i KERE
BB X A48 AN SR B A R
BOFMAER (BREEBK
R EARERZ2EZE
R8 i A HE 7] & (o] 3R 1 L B =X
FAUERBENESD LA
ENEBEEEZERLY
MENFZENHFORE K
SENZHZER-MEQ
AERFEEEEAKE 2
REZBEEAAR -MELQ
AIEEGIER L ZBENE
NN

AEBEBAHARBUES
FOEARR (2B EE36((D)) °

ANAERZ EEARHEKX
F R R R B T LAM
HoRRIERFRBEEREE
BMERNEE SRARKRERE
BhEME - BB AR
S RRELBRETHE
AT R HL S AC SR [ PR IR A 69
GRRER B

MEBEARNEERERTH
FEREDZDRIEFNEM
ek EaEHR LM
WEEX TR

36 SUMMARY OF OTHER MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of other potentially material accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
The financial statements are for the Group consisting of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

(a) Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(refer to note 36(b)).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the statement
of comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and financial position respectively.
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36 HttERSFTHEME (&) 36 SUMMARY OF OTHER MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(a) EHtRAIRESEAR (&) (@) Principles of consolidation and equity

(i) FrEfEEz 25
AEEHEFERESERS
(328 2 3 2 422 I 4 ) 45 1F
HEAKEREARS-FTE
BRSSP ERIER R
S EIF R ESREEZE
B B A R R R M A
AR AERA R o o SR IR AR A &5
AEHBEETFNESAREK
REZENEREZERERAR
AHAABHBRTNET
b A RERR -

(b) %IE6f

AEBERBUBETHES A ES
AR TwetelERERET
A HMmEE - WHE—HHB LA
s EaRE:

.« FHREEOATE:

o WWBEBHWAIEHEAAM
EERE:

o  AEBEBBEITHE:

s FAREBLRHEENEME
ELBENRFE R

s WEBAREMEMFENRK
R RF(E -

EXBABRETEANA B
BEARAENBBERIAREE
BRKREE ARERAFEVTHE
(DEPISMERERIN) - AR BIRZE
TR B E N P E SR FEE AR
Rz PTG B U E B R T BRI B B F
1B RO £b I R 10 15 R B RE A 1)
e Fak

accounting (Continuea)

(i) Changes in ownership interests
The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with owners of the Group. A change in
ownership interest results in an adjustment between
the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount
of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and
any consideration paid or received is recognised in a
separate reserve within equity attributable to owners
of the Company.

(b) Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred;

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business;

° equity interests issued by the Group;

° fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement; and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.
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36 HMERETHEME (&)

(b) EHEH (&)

W B AERAR AN IR EE A R ST 8K
A& :
o  FTEENE:

s RNEWEEENITMIFER
kot LR

o EMAAMRHKEERNR
BREE A ST E

HBAME B EREEFEAFE
MER DARIEBE -MZF
SRR T US55 P BRI B B %
ENATE ARERSERRNE

EEEETMBORESNE ]
RRENFAEBBEERERLBA
HMRE-FAANMRETZER
B IE 8 AN R AR BAI B LR
BRI B R BES
BOUEFROMN R -SAREDES
BodemMABE- DEATRAR
MEEERENTEESEQFE
mAFEZERNIBE TR -

HEFBE 0D BETT RIWEED
SRR B BV R T B R UK R R
HIM AR E (B ERWE BN A FE
EfE -ZEHMEEENEM
Yk BB T B iR o

36 SUMMARY OF OTHER MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Business combinations (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the:
° consideration transferred;

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity; and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than
the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified
as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.
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36 HthEXRSHBERME (&) 36 SUMMARY OF OTHER MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(c) DWW/H (c) Segment reporting
EENHNIRRHAM T EEERRE Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
REMNABRE - H RS- with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
BEECTIROHERATELERRK decision-maker. The chairman of the board, who is
F BEIREERETHEES I responsible for allocating resources and assessing
H)FRIR performance of the operating segments, has been

identified as the chief operating decision-maker.

(d) s»¥HmE (d) Foreign currency translation

(i) WEEHRZIEE (i)

AEEEERBNPBHRERA
MIER AR ERZEM
EXTEZLBERENEE ([
REEKFE -HEVH®R
KRBT (BT HNER B
TTRARANINEEE R kA
SEHNENEE-

(i) X5 8EE (ii)
SNER BIER 5 E A E R
BERYREEE - HEZF
RSN R AINETTENE
BEENRBERFRERER
B E SR HME W K B 1R B
EREDER -HMEFEA
ERBEREHHPREER
FEREH R EARKEBINE
BEREHOMEL AR
REmIEEARR -

ERBENEX KakER
AR AEEERaRME
PR 7o P H A BE 3 I R
EEEFAREEZERER
[Efh (E1R) e — 8]
o
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Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar ("HK$"), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally
recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in
equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges
and qualifying net investment hedges or are
attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign
operation.

Foreign exchange gain and loss that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, within “finance
costs”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within “other (losses)/gains —

"

net".
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36 HttERSFTHEME (£) 36 SUMMARY OF OTHER MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d) semE(#) (d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) FE2 7
MESREER (HFEBEE
RGBS ROER) WIS
BB Z25EEIR L%
BRI AT IT R
BRERZINEY:

© SHSIHFBMRAE
B2 B 3 DA A
% B 0 I B %

o

. EHRERBEHUA
BB R B R
W (BERFHERT
TREXSAMERZ
ST EmARNE:E
R A BB %
A% 5 A E =i
H): R

s FARLELMENE
R H b 2 M

27
n?Ju\ °

(iii) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

o income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

o all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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36 HttERSFTHEME (£) 36 SUMMARY OF OTHER MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(e) ME - BERZE (e) Property, plant and equipment

M- BEREERELRARR
AITERRFEAEBR(MA)A
R-BELRABHERERBEZS
HEMEEMFHX -

REBREB &R EEF a8 7] 58
MAREE B2 E B RARER 5
AHER HERERATAGARE
REESRRR/ENEE (REMA
BRME) < E @ ARIERERE
BB B R - R F R AR
HE -FIBEMEERRERXY
RELAZERXHHEHBE AR
il

WEEREEGN G TRE 2R
(P3E36(R) ) » BIRZ A B # AR H (B B
iSE VR

HE 2 e REE T R LB PT1SK
TRERREERERE  WrT ARET -

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 36(g)).

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in
profit or loss.
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36 HtEREHEME (&)

()

(8

BILEE

BANEEB 1T E
BANERETEFFERBEARE
%5 TE B A A] R P B AT EE AR KR
EEARILEIE - W FE R AL AR
AT {2 P R HAQE S 8K -

FERMEERE
BERERFHOHERELEE
BAEEITEE ESFRETRE
A (A EFHRBEREBER
B 5 A BERE R - R B SR EETT A
) BEAEHABREDETR
REESAAKE e EMmE
EFLRENR BEREESR
HAl e m & B0 RS R QR E
BERE-TMEEEASEERFERM
HEXRKNEFERBERENRS
EopARENS EERAS
FIERIIR &R AR RIER R D4
HEABEBUNEMEEREEAR
B (ReELBEM)NRSRA - M
FERAEE (FERIN) HBRRE
AN EREM R BEETER
TR

36 SUMMARY OF OTHER MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

()

(8

Intangible assets

Acquired computer software licences

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives of 3 to 5 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

4R « ANNUAL REPORT2023 169



RO WIS R EE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 HttERSFTHEME (£) 36 SUMMARY OF OTHER MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(hy EtbemEE (h) oOther financial assets

(i) H%E (i) Classification
TEBRBECREENESR The Group classifies its financial assets in the
THIFTEER following measurement category:

o IEREER AT E A e  those to be measured at amortised cost.

o
NDEGTEREECRHEE The classification depends on the entity’s business
MEBEARIBSREOH model for managing the financial assets and the
FR T 5E contractual terms of the cash flows.
AEEERERZEEEN The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
¥BEAFEREEBRRE only when its business model for managing those
E Ak e assets changes.

(ii) FERRAKILER (i)  Recognition and derecognition
E—RAITAEENESREE Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
RRXZGAB(REEAZEER are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
BEEMHB)BER - NZES the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
A EWEIR SR ENER Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
EEfkeEE BXE to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
EEBREEEEERNEBR expired or have been transferred and the Group has
B B b Ko [ 3 B - Rl & 4R transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
IFHEREREE- ownership.

(iii) & (iii) Measurement

REBENRERE B
FEFECHEE - MLB
ETRMEERERRMA IR
B
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At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset.
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36 HttERSFTHEME (&) 36 SUMMARY OF OTHER MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(hy Efh&mEE (&) (h) oOther financial assets (Continued)

(iii) FE (%) (iii) Measurement (Continued)

EHTA Debt instruments

ERTAZEEFTEBRAR Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
AEBEREEZEBRER depends on the Group’s business model for
DZBEEEZRENEN- managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
REBBEEBEIEDER of the asset. The Group classifies its debt instruments
REHEKAFTECERMEE - as financial assets at amortised cost.

R AYENSRIEE Financial assets at amortised cost are assets that
DEAKBREHNBESREM are held for collection of contractual cash flows
BE BHeREERIN where those cash flows represent solely payments
e RFNEZEEREHEK of principal and interest are measured at amortised
KEFE-ZZeMEEZH cost. Interest income from these financial assets
BUARERFZ AT AR is included in finance income using the effective
BIRA R IFEREEMNE interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
MlimkEEEE N BRE derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss
R H Ath U m A EREE B and presented in other gains together with foreign
Woes & EE— 5 R RmE exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
BiERGEEEKERPIE presented as separate line item in the consolidated
BENIEE YR statement of comprehensive income.

(iv) JetfE (iv) Impairment

REBIZATE R EFHIZ
B AR ZEH T AN
MzEBMEEER KRE
BETZEZGTEERRES
K8 AT E ©

KRR S NEEE
REEM B ®EER R
A2 TE  BRR A
EREUKFIRERRERE
HIEE - R 2HMEST -

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables, see Note
3.1 for further details.
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172

HUERSTHBREE (&)

(i

()

(k)

n

3
JRAT R TE 8 G T2 A R BK AR B2 A
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BEAXHEEHS RERER
EIEERE D BC o A DAINHE 5 R
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BN HNBR BN R TN EETE © 7]
I FEREABEHBRT M
EE R AR TR AR R RSB
B S RS o

RERBSEED
REJNGERERER R KR
CEEVERRTERTS SRHKE
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BIRPD)ARRITEL - RITEX
SRR A BIRAKRFRBBE
MEER-

&N

BakoBEAED (ME14) BE
57 B 0 BT R A7 S HARE A R A
A R IIA TSR RIR
(HBRHE)

FEAS BR R % HL At FE A 7ROR
ZEFRREM BEEFE BRI
HEFAEENEmERE AR
BB ME o FE AN R R R EL At FE AN RIR
2 /RBDAE ERREHR2
& A WK B B R 5RER SN B AN 25
BAFEER REARERA X
SRR ANGT E

36 SUMMARY OF OTHER MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

()

()

(k)

)

Inventories

Raw materials, work in progress and finished goods
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of
normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned to individual
items of inventory on the basis of weighted average
costs. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after
deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial
institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity (Note 14).
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented
as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12
months after the reporting period. They are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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36 HWERETEHERME &)

(m) &8

(n)

EENSRAFELNRELENR
SEANTER o & B H R IR # S A AR
FHE TSR (R RXHHA) f
BEOBENTAZRRAERMNE
EREEHRERRBR R
EXRERINHNERERRER
WXZER EALD LT RE
K& RABEIRER AR - RULER T -
ERREEEERERAL WL E
EEERABIHNEHHERSRA
BERIREL RIZE M EREIERR
BESRENEBENRER LIZEH
BE HARTHE 8E -

& #IFTR] A B R ARRR - AEH
[ERE - EEgaRA M BRRE
Bh-BEAUAEETS -T2
REENEREESNRE (2
EEBEIFRSEEXCAERE)
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36 SUMMARY OF OTHER MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(m) Borrowings

(n)

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.
In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs.
To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement
of financial position when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or
loss as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liabilities for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

44§ o ANNUAL REPORT2023 173



VW=

W

B 15 e = MY o E

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36

174

HEXRSTBREE (&)

(0) BENHARIEEFTSH
HAMEHAXKERASERE T
EHERMER SRR A ER
BMA AT RO BEIR - WARIRE B =
BRARE A AR BRI AELR
HEERABZESHETHE-

(M)

(ii)

RIFE P 158
BIMmERH REAR
AREMBARZERESL
ERMMAFEBRRN RS
HAREEMAEE LR
B E-EEEE R
MR ERFRENERE
5 % 8 7% BR S A0 AR 0 I
EERBBRTRERERAR
B RIS MR A B B R R
TR

EEFTEH

EREFERODEAAERL
MEEMBEMNHERRE
FAaVBRERERERER
EHEBERE AN WEL
MEABERKAREENIS
FER - A E A& 1R R - fi i
EMBHRRERNR S (X
BHRINFHEELBER
NITHER MEXZETF
EeMRERERV AL R
I 8 B A E AR F AR TR &
AMREREE TS
ABR IR EFT S BT AR 3R
EHRRADERHEREN
B A R (e 0% ) I A T8 B R
ERMEETERBHEENK
BEERECMSHAGERER
HRETE

WERAELRERT SR
ARARNSAZEEREZER
BiE - QIREREEH AR E -

36 SUMMARY OF OTHER MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(0) Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(i)

(i)

ARSI AR AT o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.
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36 SUMMARY OF OTHER MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(o) current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(ii) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

(p) Employee benefits

(i)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect
of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

3% o ANNUALREPORT2023 175



VW=

W

B 15 e = MY o E

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36

176

HEXRSTBREE (&)

(p) BEEA (&)

36 SUMMARY OF OTHER MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
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(p) Employee benefits (Ccontinued)
(i) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for long service leave and annual leave
that are not expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service. These
obligations are therefore measured as the present
value of expected future payments to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to
the end of the reporting period using the projected
unit credit method. Consideration is given to
expected future wage and salary levels, experience
of employee departures and periods of service.
Expected future payments are discounted using
market yields at the end of the reporting period
of high-quality corporate bonds with terms and
currencies that match, as closely as possible, the
estimated future cash outflows. Remeasurements as
a result of experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or 10ss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position
if the Group does not have an unconditional right
to defer settlement for at least twelve months after
the reporting period, regardless of when the actual
settlement is expected to occur.

Post-employment obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “Pension Scheme”) set up pursuant to
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for all of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
Pension Scheme. The assets of the Pension Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administrated fund. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid.
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POLICIES (continued)

(p) EEER (&) (p) Employee benefits (Continued)
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(iii) Post-employment obligations (Continued)
Pursuant to the government regulations in the PRC,
the Group is required to contribute an amount
to certain retirement benefit schemes based on
approximately 7% to 20% of the wages for the year
of those employees in the PRC. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of those employees of the Group.
Contributions to these retirement benefits schemes
are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as incurred.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations
in Cambodia, all enterprises or establishment must
register with the National Social Security Fund
("NSSF"). Employers are obliged to pay contributions
to the NSSF for occupational risk and heath care
schemes for all employees. In occupational risk
scheme, the contribution rate is 0.8% of employee’s
monthly salary whereas in health care scheme the
contribution rate is 2.6% of employee’s monthly
salary. Contributions to these benefits schemes
are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as incurred.

(q) Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make
good obligations are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.
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36 SUMMARY OF OTHER MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(q) Provisions (Continued)

r

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Earnings per share
(i)  Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

o the profit attributable to owners of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares;

o by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.

(i) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account:

J the after income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares, and

o the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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36 SUMMARY OF OTHER MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payment that are based on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

. amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.
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36 SUMMARY OF OTHER MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(s)

(t

(u)

(v)

Leases (Continued)
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability,

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer
at the discretion of the Group, on or before the end of
the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the
reporting period.

Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in profit or loss as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes, see Note 25. Any other interest
income is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets
the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grants will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.
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